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Independent Auditors” Report

To the Members of Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

L

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Aditya Birla
Capital Limited ("the Parent”) and its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its subsidiaries together
referred to as “the Group”) and its share of net profit after tax and total comprehensive
income of its associate and joint ventures, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2025, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate/consolidated
financial statements of such subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures referred to in the Other
Matters section below, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associates and joint ventures as at March 31,
2025, and their consolidated profit, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated
cash flows and consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group, its associate and joint ventures in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of consolidated financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereninder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the
consideration of audit report of the other auditors referred to in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph
below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate/consolidated financial statements of
components audited by them, were of most significance in our audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

5. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Impairment testing of Goodwill

Carrying Value of Goodwill: Rs 554.83 crores as at March 31, 2025

See Note 15 to consolidated financial statements.

The Group has goodwill of Rs 554.83 crores as | Our audit procedures included the

of March 31, 2025 which represents goodwill | following:

acquired through  various business

combinations and allocated to Cash Generating | Design and Controls:

Units (“CGU”). e Tested the design and the operating
As per Group’s policy, a CGU to which effectiveness of internal controls over the
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment assessment process
impairment annually, or more frequently when including valuation methodology used in
there is an indication of the unit may be impairment assessment on the carrying
impaired. value of goodwill; and

As disclosed in Note 15, impairment of | ¢ Obtained an understanding of the
goodwill is determined by assessing the process followed by the Parent in
recoverable amount of each CGU to which determining the CGU to which goodwill
these assets relate. is allocated and determination of

recoverable amount of each CGU.
We have identified the annual impairment
assessment as a key audit matter because of its | Substantive Procedures:

being an area of estimate and judgment, | ¢ Compared the Parent’s assumptions and

exposed to significant changes in external

business environment and is based on the

following key assumptions like:

* Determination of comparable companies;

e Internal data of the Company used for
valuation purpose; and

e Market Multiples.

data to externally sourced/internal data
in relation to key inputs such as share
price in the market capitalization, book
value, etc,;

e Evaluated Parent’s key assumptions used
in the valuation methodology; and

* Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation of recoverable amounts of
each CGU.

Assessing (he cuipleleness aud accutdey ul

the consolidated financial statements

disclosures made by the Group as per

applicable Ind AS.
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A. Key Audit Matters reported in the standalone financial statements of the Parent for the year

ended March 31, 2025

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Impairment of loans to customers

Consolidated Financial Statements)

(Refer Note 2 for material accounting policies and Note 56 for credit risk disclosures of the

As at March 31, 2025, the Parent has reported
gross loan assets of ¥ 1,24,122.94 crores against
which an impairment loss of ¥ 1,778.43 crores
has been recorded. The Parent recognized
impairment provision for loan assets based on
the Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) approach laid
down under ‘Ind AS 109 - Financial
Instruments’.

The estimation of ECL involves significant
management judgement and estimates and the
use of different modelling techniques and
assumptions which could have a material
impact on reported profits. Significant
management judgement and assumptions
involved in measuring ECL is required with
respect to:

data used to create assumptions in the
model.

» determining the criteria for a significant
increase in credit risk.

»> factoring in future economic assumptions
techniques used to determine probability of
default, loss given default and exposure at
default.

These parameters are derived from the Parent’s
internally developed statistical models and
other historical data.

Disclosure

The disclosures regarding the Parent's

the key judgements and material inputs to the
ECL results. Further, disclosures to be provided
: ; per RBI circulars with regards to Non-

9 2

e Considered

> ensuring completeness and accuracy of the A

application of Ind AS 109 are key to explaining

QOur audit included assessing the

‘appropriateness of management’s judgment

and estimates used in the ECL Computation
through procedures that included, but were
not limited to, the following;:

e Obtained an understanding of the

modelling techniques adopted by the
Parent including the key inputs and
assumptions;

the Parent's accounting
policies for estimation of Expected Credit
Loss on loans and assessing compliance
with the policies in terms of Ind AS 109;

e Obtained an understanding of the

management’s  updated  processes,
systems and controls implemented in
relation to impairment allowance
process.

e Verification of the computation of the

ECL including reasonableness of the
methodology and assumption used to
determine macro-economic overlays;

» Tested on sample basis, the design and

operating effectiveness of key controls
over completeness and accuracy of the
key inputs and assumptions considered
for calculation, recording, monitoring of
the impairment loss recognized and
staging of assets;

¢ On a test check basis, assessed the critical

assumptions and input data used in the
estimation of Expected Credit Loss
models for specific key credit risk
parameters, such as the movement logic
between stages, Exposure at default
(EAD), probability of default (PD) or loss
given default (LGD);
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Performing Assets and provisions isalso an area |e

of focus.

Considering the significance of the above
matter to the overall financial statements and

extent of management's estimates and

judgements involved, it required significant |e

auditor attention. Accordingly, we have

identified this as a key audit matter.

Obtained written representations from
management and those charged with
governance on whether they believe
significant assumptions used in
calculation of expected credit losses are
reasonable;

Assessed the appropriateness and
adequacy of the related presentation and
disclosures of Note 50 “Financial Risk

Management”  disclosed in  the
Standalone financial statements in
accordance  with  the applicable

accounting standards and related RBI

circulars and Resolution Framework.

B. Key Audit Matters reported by the Auditor of Aditya Birla Housing Finance limited for the
year ended March 31, 2025

Key Audit Matter

| Auditor’s Response

Provisioning based on Expected Credit Loss model (ECL) under IND AS 109 and testing
of impairment of assets, more particularly the Loan Book of the Company

Subjective estimates:

Under IND AS 109, “Financial Instruments”,
allowance for loan losses are determined
using expected credit loss (ECL) estimation
model. The estimation of ECL on financial
instruments involves significant judgment
and estimates and therefore increased levels
of audit focus in the Company’s estimation of
ECLs, which are as under;

Data inputs - The application of ECL
model requires several data inputs. This
increases the risk of completeness and
accuracy of the data that has been used to
create assumptions in the model.

Model  estimations -  Inherently
judgmental models are used to estimate
ECL which involves determining
Probabilities of Default ("PD"), Loss Given
Default ("I.GD"), and [xposures al
Default ("EAD"). The PD and the LGD are
the key drivers of estimation complexity
in the ECL and as a result are considered
the most significant judgmental aspect of
the Company' s modelling approach.

During the course of their audit, the auditors
performed the following procedures:

Review of Policy/procedures & design/
controls.

Minutely going through the Board
approved Policy and approach note
concerning the assessment of credit
and other risks and
ascertainment/ageing of 'default' by
the borrowers and procedures in
relation to stages and ECL
computation.

Testing key controls relating to selection
and implementation of material macro-
economic variables and the controls over
the scenario selection and application of
probability weights.

Assessing the design, implementation
and opetating effectiveness of key
internal financial controls including
monitoring process of overdue loans
(including those which became overdue
after the reporting date), measurement of
provision, stage-wise classification of
loans, identification of NIPA accounts,
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e Economic scenarios - Ind AS 109 requires
the Company to measure ECLs on an
unbiased forward-looking basis reflecting
a range of future economic indicators.
Significant management judgement is
applied in determining the economic
scenariosused and the probability weights
applied to them.

The effect of these matters is that, as part of
our risk assessment, we determined that the
impairment of loans and advances to

customers, involving estimations and
judgements, with a potential range of
reasonable outcomes greater than our

materiality for the Ind AS . Financial

Statements as a whole.

assessing the reliability of management
information.
¢ Understanding management's approach,
interpretation, systems and controls
implemented in relation to probability of
default and stagewise bifurcation of
portfolios for timely
stress and early

product-wise
ascertainment of
warningsignals.

e Testing and review of controls over
measurement of provisions and
disclosures in the Ind AS Financial
Statements.

e Involvement of Information system
resource to obtain comfort over data
integrity and process of report
generation through interface of various
systems. Walk through the processes
which involve manual work to ascertain
existence of maker-checker controls.

e Understanding of models and general
economic indicator criteria used for
regression testing over data of the loan
book.

Substantive verification

e Sample testing over key inputs, data and
assumptions impacting ECL calculations
to assess the completeness, accuracy and
relevance of data and reasonableness of
economic forecast weights and model
assumptions applied.

e Model calculations testing through
selective  re-performance, wherever
possible.

e Assessing disclosures - Assessed
whether the disclosures on key
judgements, assumptions and
quantitative data with respect to
impairment of loans (including

restructirmg related disclnsiiees) in [he
Ind AS Financial Statements are
appropriate and sufficient as also
aligned to regulatory requirements.
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Information Technology

IT systems and controls

The Company's financial reporting processes
are dependent on technology considering
significant number of transactions that are
processed daily across multiple and discrete
Information Technology (IT') systems. The
Financial accounting system of the Company
is interfaced with several other IT systems
including Loan Management & Originating
systems and several other systemic
workflows.

IT general and application controls are
critical to ensure that changes to applications
and underlying data are made in an
appropriate manner. Adequate controls
contribute to mitigating the risk of potential
fraud or errors as a result of changes to the
applications and data. These includes
implementation of preventive and detective
controls across critical applications and
infrastructure.

Due to the pervasive nature of role of
information technology systems in financial
reporting, in our preliminary risk
assessment, we planned our audit by
assessing the risk of a material misstatement
arising from the technology as significant for
the audit, hence the Key Audit Matter.

During the course of their audit, auditor
performed following procedures:

In course of audit, they, inter alia, reviewed
user  access  management,  change
management, segregation of duties, system
reconciliation control and key financial
accounting and reporting systems.

e Review of the report of IS Audit carried in
earlier year(s) by an independent firm of
Chartered Accountants pertaining to IT
systems general controls including access
rights over applications, operating
systems and databases relied upon for
financial reporting.

* Deployed our internal experts to carry out
IT general controls testing and identifying
gaps, if any.

e Our other processes include:

o Selectively recomputing interest
calculations and maturity dates;

o Selectively re-evaluating masters
updation, interface with resultant
reports like LTV Report, SUD Report,
Portfolio movement Report;

o Selective testing of the interface of
SAP FA module with other IT systems
like Loan Management System and
other workflows;

o Testing of the system generated
reports and accounting entries
manually for core financial reporting
matters (i.e. verification around the
computer system);

o Evaluating the design,
implementation and  operating
effectiveness of the significant
accounts-related IT  automated

controls which are relevant to the
accuracy of system calculation, and
the consistency of data transmission.




M M NISSIM & COLLP

inpiA CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Continuation Sheet

C. Key Audit Matters reported by us along with other Joint Auditors of Aditya Birla Sun Life
Insurance Company Limited for the year ended March 31, 2025

Information Technology Systems

The Company is dependent on its
Information Technology (“IT”) systems due
to the significant number of transactions that
are processed daily across such multiple and
discrete IT systems. Also, IT application
controls are critical to ensure that changes to
applications and underlying data are made in
an appropriate manner and under controlled
environments. Appropriate controls

contribute to mitigating the risk of potential
fraud or errors as a result of changes to
applications and data. On account of the
pervasive use of its IT systems, the testing of
the general computer controls of the IT
systems used in financial reporting was
considered to be a Key Audit Matter.

During the course of their audit, auditors
performed the following procedures:

With the assistance of our IT specialists, we
obtained an understanding of the Company’s
IT applications, databases and operating
systems relevant to financial reporting and
the control environment. For these elements
of the IT infrastructure the areas of our focus
included access security (including controls
over privileged access), program change
controls, database management and network
operations. In particular:

e  We tested the design, implementation,

and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s general IT controls over the IT
systems relevant to financial reporting.
This included evaluation of Company’s
controls over segregation of duties and
access rights being provisioned [/
modified based on duly approved
requests, access for exit cases being
revoked in a timely manner and access of
all users being recertified during the
period of audit.

e We also tested key automated business

cycle controls and logic for the reports
generated through the IT infrastructure
that were relevant for financial reporting
.or were used in the exercise of internal
financial controls with reference to
financial statements. Our tests included
testing of the compensating controls or
alternate procedures to assess whether
there were any unaddressed IT risks that
would materiality impact the Financial
Statements.
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D. Key Audit Matters reported by the Auditors of Aditya Birla ARC Limited for the year

ended March 31, 2025

Fair Valuation of financial instruments - Security Receipts (SRs)

Company has invested in SRs issued by
various trust incorporated by the Company
for acquisition of distressed credit Business.
Depending on the arrangement such
Investments are in the range of 100% - 15% of
the total SRs issued by the various trust. The
said SRs are subsequently measured at Fair
Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) as
per the business model of the Company and
considered as level 3 in the valuation
hierarchy. Total investment in SRs
outstanding as on March 31, 2025 is Rs.
3,736.82 Lakhs.

Company determines the fair value of SRs
based on the Net Assets Value (NAV) report
provided by the trust. The NAV of the said
investment can only be estimated by the
trusts using a combination of the rgcovery
range provided by the external rating agency,
estimated cash flows, collateral values,
discount rate used and various other
assumptions.

Considering the complexities involved and
various assumptions and significant
judgements made by the trust in deriving Net

Assets Value of such SRs, we have
considered the valuation of these
investments as a key audit matter.

During the course of their audit, auditors
performed the following procedures:

- tested the design and effectiveness of
internal controls implemented by the
management in respect of valuation of the
investments including those relating to
assessment of recovery plan by Asset
Acquisition Committee for determination of
appropriate recovery rate based on the range
provided by the External Rating Agency.

e Assessment of the valuation inputs;

o Analysed reasonableness of the
estimated cash flows and recovery
rate, the other relevant judgments
and estimates, if any; and

o Assessed the information used to
determine the key assumptions;

o Compared the historical estimates of
the cash flows with the actual
recoveries and obtained explanations
for the variations, if any;

o Compared the management’s
assumption of discount rate with the
supporting  internal/ external
evidence;

o Valuation report of collateral assets

E. Key Audit Matters reported by the Auditors of Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Limited for the

year ended March 31, 2025

Revenue from Asset Management and Advisory Fees and Porifolio Management Fees (as
described in Note 2 (xiv) of their standalone financial statements)

Revenue from operations is the most
significant balance in the Statement of Profit
nd Loss. It majorly comprises of:

During the course of their audit, auditors
performed the following procedures:
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o Asset Management and Advisory Fees
amounting to Rs. 1,560.96 crore.

o Management Fees from Portfolio
Management and Other  Services
amounting to Rs. 98.13 crore

There are inherent risks in computing the
different revenue streams including manual
input of key contractual terms and
computation of applicable Assets Under
Management (AUM), which could result in
errors. Considering the complexity in
contractual terms involving multiple
schemes, it requires monitoring to ensure all
financial terms and conditions are captured
accurately and applied appropriately.

Any discrepancy in such computation could
give rise to a material misstatement in the
financial Statements.

Accordingly, we have considered revenue
from -asset management and advisory fees
and management fees from portfolio
management as a key audit matter.

* Obtained and read the accounting policy
for revenue recognition.

* Obtained an understanding of the
significant revenue items and identified
where there is a higher risk of error due

to manual processes, complex
contractual terms, and areas of
judgement.

* Tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls in place
across the Company relevant to
recognition of Management Fees.

* On a sample basis, obtained and tested

arithmetical accuracy of revenue
calculation and the reconciliation with
the accounting records.

* On sample basis, verified the input of
contractual terms with rates approved
by the management

* On a sample basis, checked the receipts
of such income in bank statements.

* Obtained and read the investment
management fee certification report,
issued by statutory auditors of mutual
fund schemes and reconciled the
certified amount with the accounting
records.

* Re-calculated Asset Management and
Advisory Fees and Portfolio
Management Services Fees in respect of
certain sample contracts and compared
with the actual fees charged by the
Company for such contracts.

o Evaluated the disclosure relating to
management fee income earned by the
Company.

F. Key Audit Matters reported by the Auditors of Aditya Birla Money Limited for the year

[

nded March 31, 2025

Information Technology and General Controls

:

The financal accounting and reporting

systems of the Company are fundamentally
reliant on IT systems and IT controls to

process significant volume of transactions.

During the course of their audit, auditors
pertormed the tollowing procedures:

e They understood and assessed the overall

IT control environment and the controls in
place which included controls over access
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Due to the complexity, large volume of
transactions processed daily and reliance on
automated and IT dependent manual
controls, matter pertaining to adequacy and
effectiveness of IT Control environthent is
considered as key audit matter.

Our areas of audit focus included user access

 financial reporting and various interfaces,

to systems and data, as well as system
changes.

Tested the design and operating
effectiveness of IT access controls over the
information systems that are important to
identified

configuration and other

application controls.

management, developer access to the Tested IT general controls (logical access,

production environment and changes to the change management and aspects of IT

IT environmient. These are key to ensuring, IT operational controls). This included

dependent and application based controls testing that requests for access to systems

are operating effectively. were appropriately reviewed and
authorised.

e Tested the Company's periodic review of
access rights. We also inspected requests
of changes to systems for appropriate
approval and authorization. In addition to
the above, we tested the design and
operating  effectiveness of certain
automated and IT dependent manual
controls that were considered as key
internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements.

e Tested the design and operating
effectiveness compensating controls in
case deficiencies were identified and,
where necessary, extended the scope of
our substantive audit procedures.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon

6. The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Parent’s Boards Report
including annexures to the Boards Report (including annexures thereto) and Management
Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) (collectively referred to as “Other Information”), but
does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our Auditor’s Report thereon.
The Other Information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this Auditor’s
Report. :
Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the Other Information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
L cotection with vur dudit of the Consolldated Financial Statements, our responsibility is
to read the Other Information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially rhisstatgd.
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When we read the Other Information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Board of Directors’ for the Consolidated Financial Statements

7. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Parent's
Board of Directors. The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance (including other comprehensive income),
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its
associate and joint ventures in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the
entities included in the Group, its associate and joint ventures are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of their respective Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which
have been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by
the Board of Directors of the Parent Company, as aforesaid.

8. In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the .
companies in the Group, its associate and joint ventures are responsible for assessing the
ability of respective companies, to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
Board of Directors either intends te liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. ~

9. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, its associate and
joint ventures are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process. |

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Slalements.

?.

11
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11. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also: [

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit ‘
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on the internal financial controls with
reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls based on our audit;

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of |
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors; \

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
-exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group, its associate and joint ventures to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group, its associate and joint ventures to cease to continue as a going concern;

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation; and

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such
entities or business activities within the Group, its associate and joint ventures to express
an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities
-included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further
described in paragraph (a) of the section titled “Other Matters” in this audit report.

12
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12. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
of 'the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and are therefore the Key Audit Matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication. ;

Other Matters ;

15. We did not audit the financial statements of twelve subsidiaries, whose financial statements
reflect total assets (before consolidation adjustment) of Rs. 34,932.12 crores as at March 31,
2025, net cash inflows (before consolidation adjustment) of Rs 491.17 crores, total revenue
(before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 3,644.50 crores , total net profit after tax (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 286.78 crores and other comprehensive loss (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 2.84 crores for the year ended on that date, as considered
in the Consolidated Financial Statements. These financial statements and other financial
information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us
by the Management and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our
report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

16. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net profit after tax of
Rs. 416.80 crores and other comprehensive income of Rs. 25.33 crores for the year ended
March 31, 2025, as considered in tpe Consolidated Financial Statements, in respect of three
joint ventures and one associate. These financial statements has been audited by other
auditors whose report has been furnished (o us by Uw Matagenent and our opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these joint ventures and associate, is based solely on the report of the
other auditors and the procedures performed by us as stated under Auditor’s
Responsibilities section above.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on “Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements” below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with
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respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of other auditors stated in
paragraphs 15 and 16 above.

17. The financial statements of 1 subsidiary (i.e. Aditya Birla Sun Life Insurance Company
Limited), whose financial statements reflect total assets (before consolidation adjustments)
of Rs. 1,07,132.07 Crore as at March 31, 2025, total revenues (before consolidation
adjustments) of Rs. 22,044.15 Crore, total net profit after tax (before consolidation
adjustments) of Rs. 99.33 Crore and other comprehensive income (before consolidation
adjustments) of Rs. 30.88 Crore and net cash outflow of Rs. 109.74 Crore for the year ended
March 31, 2025, as considered in the Statement, has been audited by us jointly with another
auditor, who have expressed an unmodified opinion and have reported in the Other Matters
section that:

Determination of the following is the responsibility of the Company's Appointed Actuary
(the "Appointed Actuary"):

i. The actuarial valuation of liabilities for life policies in force and for policies in respect of
which premium has been discontinued but liability exists as at March 31, 2025. The
actuarial valuation of these liabilities has been duly certified by the Appointed Actuary
and in his opinion, the assumptions for such valuation are in accordance with the
guidelines and norms issued by the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of
India ("IRDATI") and the Institute of Actuaries of India in concurrence with the IRDAI;

ii. Other adjustments as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025 for the purpose of
Reporting Pack confirmed by the Appointed Actuary in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard 104 - Insurance Contracts:

a) Assessment of contractual liabilities based on classification of contracts into insurance
contracts and investment coptracts;

b) Valuation and Classification of Deferred Acquisition Cost and Deferred Origination
Fees on investment Contracts;

c) Grossing up and Classification of the Reinsurance Assets and;

d) Liability Adequacy test as at the reporting dates.

We have relied upon Appointed Actuary's certificate in this regard for forming our
conclusion on the aforesaid mentioned items.

18. The Consolidated Financial Statements includes the Group share of profit after tax (net) of

Rs. 2.93 crores and other comprehensive income of Rs. 25.29 crores for the year ended March

31, 2025, of Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited (“ABHIL”). The joint statutory

auditors of ABHIL have expressed an unmodified opinion and have reported in the Other

Matters section that:

i. The actuarial valuation of liabilitics in respect of Incurred but Not Reported (IBNR) and
Incutred but Not Enough Reported (IBNER), Premium Deficiency and Free Look Reserve
as at March 31, 2025, are the responsibility of the Company's Appointed Actuary and have
been duly certified by the Appginted Actuary of the Company. The Appointed Actuary
has also certified that the assumptions considered for such valuation are in accordance

14
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with the guidelines and norms prescribed by the IRDAI and the Institute of Actuaries of
India in concurrence with the IRDAI;

ii. Other adjustments for the purpose of the Financial Information confirmed by the
Appointed Actuary in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 104 on Insurance
Contracts:

a) Grossing up and Classification of the Reinsurance Assets; and
b) Liability adequacy: test as at the reporting dates.

We have relied upon the Appointed Actuary’s certificate and representation made in this
regard for forming our opinion on the aforesaid mentioned items.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters stated in paragraphs 17 and 18.

19. These Consolidated Financial Statements include the figures for the year ended March 31,
2024 which were audited by predecessor auditors who expressed an unmodified opinion as
relevant on those Consolidated Financial Statements vide their audit report dated May 13,
2024. Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements is not modified in respect of this
matter. ¥

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

20. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors on the separate /consolidated financial statements of the
subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures referred to in the ‘Other Matters section’ above we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
~ our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements;

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the report of the other auditor, except for the matters
stated in paragraph 20(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) (“the Rules”);

(c) The Consolidated Financial Statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the IND
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representation received from the directors of the Parent, and
taken on records by the Board of Directors of the Parent and the reports of the statutory

15
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auditors of its subsidiary companies and associate company and joint ventures
incorporated in India, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from
being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

() The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith, is as stated in paragraph 20(b) above.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Parent and,its subsidiary companies, associate company and joint
venture companies incorporated in India, and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure I wherein we have expressed an
unmodified opinion;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the holding
company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. Further, based
on auditor’s report of respective subsidiary companies, associate company and joint

* ventures incorporated in India, we report that:
3 subsidiaries have paid/ provided remuneration during the current year to its directors
in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.
10 subsidiaries, 3 joint ventures and 1 associate have not paid/provided remuneration
during the current year to its directors. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 are
not applicable.

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of report of the other auditors on the separate
/consolidated financial statements of the subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures as
noted in other matter paragraph:

i. The Consolidated Financial Statements discloses the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group, its associate and joint ventures, as
detailed in Note 40 to the Consolidated Financial Statement;

' ii. The Group has made provision as on March 31, 2025 as required under the applicable
law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts as detailed in Note 5 to the Consolidated
Financial Statement in respect of such items as it relates to the Group, its associate
and joint ventures;

fii. Thete are 1o amounts which are required to be transferred to the investor Education
and Protection Fund by thg Holding Company, 11 subsidiaries, 3 joint ventures and
one associate.
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There has been no delay in transferring amounts to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by 2 subsidiary companies incorporated in India during the year
ended March 31, 2025.

iv. (a) The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiaries, associate
and joint ventures which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us and to the other
auditors of such subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures respectively that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the
accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such
subsidiaries and joint ventures to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in :
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest ‘
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of i
the Company or any of such subsidiaries, and joint ventures (“Ultimate I
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ‘
Ultimate Beneficiaries as disclosed in Note 63(6) to the Consolidated Financial |
Statement; '

(b) The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiaries, associate
and joint ventures which are companies incorporated in India, whose Financial
Statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us and to the other
auditors of such subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures respectively that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to accounts
no funds(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company or any of such subsidiaries and joint ventures from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any
of such subsidiaries, and joint ventures shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ukimate Beneficiaries as disclosed in Note 63(6) to the
Consolidated Financial Statement; ;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and those performed by the
auditors of the subsldiaries, associate and joint ventures which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representation
under sub clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) of The Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 214, as provided under (a) and (b) above, contains any material
misstatement.
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v. The Parent has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Further, basis
the report of statutory auditors, whose report we have relied on, 13 subsidiaries and
3 joint ventures have neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Further,
basis the report of statutory auditor, whose report we have relied, 1 associate have
paid dividend during the year and is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act..

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Parent has used various
accounting software for mhintaining its books of account which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility, which have operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except in respect of a) in one
accounting software where the audit trail feature at database level was not enabled
for part of the year; b) no audit trail feature for recording earlier values of the
modified data was enabled at the database level throughout the year in respect of
four accounting software(s) to log any direct data changes; and c) in respect of three
accounting software(s), which are hosted at a third-party service provider location, ;
where the activities have been outsourced by the Parent, independent service |
auditors report has been made available to us for the part of the year, however it does
not contain any reporting reference in regard to audit trail feature at the database
level, we are unable to comment whether audit trail feature in the aforesaid software
at the database level was enabled and operated throughout the year or not. Based on
our procedures performed, we did not notice any instance of the audit trail feature
being tampered with. In respect of the aforesaid masters and databases, in the absence
of audit trail for the said period, the question of our commenting on whether the audit
trail was tampered with, does not arise. Additionally, the audit trail has been
preserved by the Parent as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

Based on the examination which included test checks performed by the respective
auditors of subsidiary companies, its associate and joint ventures companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
the Subsidiary companies, its associate and joint ventures have used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the accounting software, except for the below mentioned
exceptions by Four of the subsidiary companies, one associate and one joint venture
auditor.

Based on the examination, which included test checks, three Subsidiaries, one joint
venture and one associate have used accounting software for maintaining its books
of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility, and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except audit trail feature was
not enabled at the databade level for accounting software to log any direct data

changes.

Based on the examination, which included test checks, one subsidiary audited by us
along with other joint auditors has used various accounting software for maintaining

18
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its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which have the
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software systems
except: ;

a) in respect of a customer masters in one premium receipting accounting software
wherein earlier value is not retained;

b) the subsidiary has used an accounting software operated by a third party software
service provider, for maintaining its books of account and in absence of an
independent auditor’s report covering the audit trail requirement, we are unable to
comment whether audit trail feature of the said software was enabled at the database
level to log any direct data changes;

¢) in respect of the accounting software related to policy administration systems,
investments and derivatives, commission, and premium receipting, audit trail feature
was not enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes.

: |

Further, during the course of their audit, they did not come across any instance of audit |
trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the i
Subsidiary as per the statutory requirements for record retention. |
|

2]1. With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the i
Companies Auditor’s Report Order, 2020 (“CARO”/ “the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, according to the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us and the auditors of
respective companies included in the Consolidated Financial Statements to which reporting
under CARO is applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the Parent, we report I
that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO
reports of the said companies included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, except for
the following:

Name of the Entities Parent Company /| Clause number of the
Subsidiary / Joint | CARO report which is
: venture / Associate | unfavourable or
4 qualified or adverse
Aditya Birla Capital Limited Parent Clause iii(c), iii(d), vii (a),
vii(b), xi(a) and xi(c)
Aditya Birla Housing Finance Limited | Subsidiary Clause iii(c), iii(d), vii(b),
xi(a) and xi(c),
Aditya Birla Money Limited Subsidiary Clause iii(c), iii(f), vii(a)
; and vii(b)
Aditya Birla Capital Digital Limited | Subsidiary Clause xi(c) and xvii
Aditya Birla ARC Limited Subsidiary Clause iii(c) and iii(e)
Aditya Birla Sun Life Pension | Subsidiary Clause xvii
Management Limited
Aditya Birla Financial Shared Services | Subsidiary Clause vii(b)
Limited (ABFSSI)
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Aditya Birla Money Mart Limited Subsidiary Clause iii(f) and vii(b)
(ABMML)

(Merged with ABFSSL w.e.f. 2nd July

2024)

Aditya Birla Money Insurance Subsidiary Clause vii(b)

Advisory Services Limited
(Merged with ABMML w.e.f. 1st ]ufy

2024) i
Aditya Birla Wellness Private Limited | Joint Venture Clause vii(b)
For M M Nissim & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
FirmyRegn. No. 107122W/W100672

4 /

. . FR
Sanjay Khemani iz 2201
Partner , W100672
A2 MumBA

Membership No.: 044577 s /
UDIN: 25044577BMOBES1054 AT
Mumbai

May 13, 2025
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Annexure “I”

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements pnder Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’)

referred to in paragraph 20 (g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the members of Aditya Birla Capital Limited of even date:

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Aditya Birla
Capital Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Parent”) as of and for the year ended March 31,
2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Parent and such companies incorporated in India under the Act
which are its subsidiary companies, and its associate company and joint venture companies, as
at that date.

Board of Director’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company’s Board of Directors of the Parent, its subsidiary companies, associate
company and joint venture companies which are companies incorporated in India are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements based on the criteria
established by the respective Company considering the essential component of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘ICAT’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors” Responsibility for the audit of the internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls of the Parent and
its subsidiary companies, associate company and joint venture companies which are companies
incorporated in India, with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, and Guidance Note
issued by the ICAL Those Slandards and the Guidanve Nole reyuire that we ¢omply with
ethical tequiteuienls and plat and purform the audit to obtaln reasonable assutance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial
Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained including the audit evidence for one
subsidiary audited by us jointly with another auditor and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors of the relevant subsidiary companies, associate company and joint venture
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to in
the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements is

a précess designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with

reference to Consolidated Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)

pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the ,
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 1
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated .
Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override

of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated

Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control

with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements may become inadequale because of

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.




M M NISSIM & COLLP Continuation Sheet........

inpiA CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our infor'mation and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, the Parent and its subsidiary companies, associate company and joint venture
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have maintained, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to these Consolidated
Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal financial controls
established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements in so far as it relates to twelve subsidiary companies, one associate company and
three joint venture companies, which are company incorporated in India, is based solely on the
corresponding report of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements in so far as it relates to one subsidiary company, incorporated in India, is audited
by us jointly with another auditor.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For M M Nissim & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 107122W/W100672

et S AOTIZON

W100872
Sanjay Khemani e
Partner
Membership No.: 044577
UDIN: 25044577BMOBES1054 ¢

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2025




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31° March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

SF Particulars Note No. ot As at
No. 31% March 2025 31° March 2024
I |ASSETS
(1) |Financial Assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 4,330.79 1,554.30
(b) Bank Balances other than (a) above 4 1,672.49 2,024.71
(c) Derivative Financial Instruments 5 534.55 360.15
(d) Receivables 6
(i) Trade Receivables 688.25 698.14
(i) Other Receivables 11.43 16.08
(e) Loans 7 1,52,643.80 1,23,117.76
(f) Investments
- Investments of Life Insurance Business
(i) Investments of Life Insurance Policyholders 8A 57,437.57 46,652.12
(i) Investments of Life Insurance Shareholders 8B 5,067.38 4,000.98
- Other Investments 9 7,828.81 8,486.97
(g) Assets Held to Cover Linked Liabilities 10 37,762.26 36,005.19
(h) Other Financial Assets 11 2,882.72 1,817.69
Sub Total - Financial Assets 2,70,860.05 2,24,734.09
(2) |Non-Financial Assets
(a) Current Tax Assets (Net) 152.93 119.63
(b) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 12 513.27 517.91
(c) Investment Property 13 13.50 13.94
(d) Property, Plant and Equipment 14 357.45 255.44
(e) Capital Work-in-Progress 43 22.08 9.65
(f) Right-of-Use Assets 42 614.59 565.50
(9) Intangible Assets Under Development 43 100.08 84.58
(h) Goodwill 15 554.83 554.83
(i) Other Intangible Assets 16 388.73 262.62
(j) Investments in Associate and Joint Venture Companies 4,857.17 4,393.65
(k) Other Non-Financial Assets 17 626.70 585.55
(I) Assets Held for Sale - 4.44
Sub Total - Non-Financial Assets 8,201.33 7,367.74
Total Assets 2,79,061.38 2,32,101.83
Il |LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) [Financial Liabilities
(a) Derivative Financial Instruments 5 157.42 97.49
(b) Payables 18
- Trade Payables
(i) Total Outstanc?mg Dues of Micro Enterprises and 69.30 30.89
Small Enterprises
(ii) To'tal Outstanqmg Dues of Creditors gther than 1.248.94 1,382.19
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
- Other Payables
(i) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and
Small Enterprises i )
(ii) Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises ) )
(c) Debt Securities 19 49,751.42 36,895.55
(d) Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 20 83,731.22 68,834.42
(e) Subordinated Liabilities 21 5,864.75 3,810.13
(f) Lease Liabilities 42 661.75 599.24
(g) Policyholders' Liabilities 22 98,350.55 85,388.46
(h) Other Financial Liabilities 23 5,587.84 5,026.42
Sub Total - Financial Liabilities 2,45,423.19 2,02,064.79
(2) |Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 234.49 315.56
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 12 418.08 478.54
(c) Provisions 24 360.13 319.02
(d) Other Non-Financial Liabilities 25 278.44 286.14
Sub Total - Non-Financial Liabilities 1,291.14 1,399.26




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31°' March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

Sn Particulars Note No. 4 As at o As at
No. 31> March 2025 31" March 2024
(3) |Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 26 2,607.01 2,600.02
(b) Other Equity 27 27,781.71 24,217.24
Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company 30,388.72 26,817.26
(c) Non-Controlling Interests 1,958.33 1,820.52
Total Equity 32,347.05 28,637.78
Total Liabilities and Equity 2,79,061.38 2,32,101.83

Note: The assets and liabilities disclosed above consist of amount relating to both shareholders’ and life insurance policyholders’ fund. The
Company identifies these assets and liabilities separately to comply with Section 10 of Insurance Act, 1938, and are disclosed under Note No. 53.

Material Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Aditya Birla Capital Limited

In terms of our report attached

For M M Nissim & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 107122W/W100672

\
N
o
-
>

Arun Kumar Adhikari
Chief Executive Officer Director
(DIN: 00591057)

Pinky Mehta Sa Haldankar
Chief Financial Officer Compaghy Secretary

1071220 /

W100672 &
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UMBA]JJJ ?-?

D
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Vijayalakshmi lyer
Director
(DIN: 05242960)

Sanjay Khemani
Partner
Membership No.: 044577

Mumbai, 13" May 2025 Mumbai, 13" May 2025




Adi

tya Birla Capital Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

Sr. Particulars Note No. Year ended Year ended
No. 31% March 2025 31* March 2024
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
1 |REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(a) Interest Income 28 17,027.69 14,288.64
(b) Dividend Income 29 0.55 272
(c) Fees and Commission Income 756.01 797.47
(d) Net Gain on Fair Value Changes 30 753.22 350.44
(e) Net Gain on De-recognition of Financial Instruments at Amortised Cost 31 176.41 58.98
(f) Gain on Sale of Investment 229.91 486.43
(g) Policyholders' Income from Life Insurance Operations 53 21,642.02 17,950.07
(h) Sale of Services 4.17 6.09
Total Revenue from Operations 40,589.98 33,940.84
2 |Other Income 32 133.77 52.99
3 |Total Income (1+2) 40,723.75 33,993.83
4 |EXPENSES
(a) Finance Costs 33 9,694.18 7,616.87
(b) Fees and Commission Expense 73.20 69.93
(c) Impairment on Financial Instruments 34 1,498.04 1,352.60
(d) Employee Benefits Expense 35 1,827.01 1,483.36
(e) Policyholders' Expenses of Life Insurance Operations 53 21,615.04 17,869.93
(g) Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 36 246.20 188.37
(h) Other Expenses 37 1,344.04 1,201.75
Total Expenses 36,297.71 29,782.81
5 |Profit Before Share of Associates and Joint Venture Companies and Tax (3-4) 4,426.04 4,211.02
6 [Share of Profit/(Loss) of Associate and Joint Venture Companies 416.80 303.91
7 |Profit Before Tax (5+6) 4,842.84 4,514.93
8 |Tax Expense
Relating to other than Revenue Account of Life Insurance Policyholders
(a) Current Tax 1,339.84 1,056.34
(b) Short/(Excess) Provision for Current Tax Related to Earlier Years (Net) 1.27 (31.23)
(c) Deferred Tax 51.20 35.90
Relating to Revenue Account of Life Insurance Policyholders
(d) Current Tax 68.64 65.64
Total Tax Expenses 1,460.95 1,126.65
Profit After Tax for the Year from Continuing Operations
9 |(including Non-Controlling Interests) (7-8) ;36189 3,388.28
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 52
10 |Profit Before Tax from Discontinued Operations 36.96 67.43
11 | Tax Expense of Discontinued Operations 8.96 16.82
Profit After Tax for the year from Discontinued Operations
1 (including Non-Controlling Interest) (10-11) 28:00 3051
Profit After Tax for the year from Total Operations
1 (including Non-Controlling Interest) (9+12) 40989 A AR
14 |Other Comprehensive Income 38
Continuing Operations
Relating to Revenue Account of Life Insurance Policyholders
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (10.64) (10.04)
(ii) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 393.16 523.22
Less: Transferred to Policyholders' Fund in the Balance Sheet (382.52) (513.18)
Related to Others
(i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (57.36) 55.56
Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 9.02 (20.67)
(i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 33.05 21.79
Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 4.38 (0.59)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year from Continuing Operations (10.91) 56.09
Discontinued Operations
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.11) 0.85
Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.03 (0.21)
Other Comprehensive Income from Discontinued Operations (0.08) 0.64
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year from Total Operations (10.99) 56.73
15 | Total Comprehensive Income (after tax) from Total Operations (13+14) 3,398.90 3,495.62




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31° March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

Sr. . Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note No.
No. 31% March 2025 31% March 2024
Profit for the year from Continuing Operations attributable to
- Owners of the Company 3,318.32 3,309.67
- Non-Controlling Interests 63.57 78.61
Profit for the year from Total Operations attributable to
- Owners of the Company 3,332.32 3,334.98
- Non-Controlling Interests 77.57 103.91
Other Comprehensive Income from Total Operations attributable to
- Owners of the Company (25.84) 20.94
- Non-Controlling Interests 14.85 35.79
Total Comprehensive Income from Total Operations attributable to
- Owners of the Company 3,306.48 3,355.92
- Non-Controlling Interests 92.42 139.70
Earnings per Equity Share having Face Value ¥ 10 each
Continuing Operations:
Basic Earnings Per Share - %) 12.74 12.95
Diluted Earnings Per Share - }) 12.62 12.85
Discontinued Operations:
Basic Earnings Per Share - (%) 0.05 0.10
Diluted Earnings Per Share - ) 39 0.05 0.10
Total Operations:
Basic Earnings Per Share - (%) 12.80 13.05
Diluted Earnings Per Share - (%) 12.67 12.95

Material Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In terms of our report attached
For M M Nissim & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Firm's Registration No.: 107122W/W 100672

Arun Kumar Adhikari Vijayalaks/hmi lyer
Director Director
(DIN: 00591057) (DIN: 05242960)

Sanjay Khemani
Partner
Membership No.: 044577

hlef Executive Officer

Pinky Mehta Saptosh Haldankar
Chief Financial Officer ~ Co ny Secretary

Mumbai, 13" May 2025 Mumbai, 13" May 2025
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

Sr. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
No. 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
A |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Before Share of Associate and Joint Venture Companies and Tax from:
Continuing Operations 4,426.04 4,211.02
Discontinued Operations 36.96 67.43
Adjustments for-
Expense on Employee Stock Options Scheme 92.87 102.65
Impairment on Financial Instruments 1,502.52 1,353.20
Net gain on Fair Value Changes (1,336.39) (792.96)
Gain on Sale of Investment (229.91) (486.43)
Change in valuation of liabilities in respect of Insurance policies in force 9,119.27 7,861.66
Depreciation and Amortisation 356.76 291.44
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.59 0.36
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 13,968.71 12,608.37
Adjustments for-
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (31.80) (306.45)
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans (31,023.40) (31,066.25)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets (1,246.02) (153.60)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 6.88 6.51
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 39.65 63.27
Change in Net Assets of Life Insurance and Health Insurance Policyholders (8,940.25) (7,229.70)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 850.20 2,864.59
Cash Used in Operations (26,376.03) (23,213.26)
Income Taxes Paid (1,558.60) (887.24)
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (27,934.63) (24,100.50)
B |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Addition to Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets (457.65) (402.41)
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 9.88 4.24
Investment in Associate and Joint Venture Companies (190.69) -
Proceeds from sale of Investment in a Subsidiary and Associate Company 283.69 639.00
Purchase of Long-Term Investments (480.58) (114.10)
Proceeds from sale of Long-Term Investments 1,509.22 369.03
Purchase of Insurance Shareholders Investments (Net) (1,050.74) (628.30)
(Purchase)/Sale of Current Investments (Net) 791.12 (3,137:11)
Movement in Bank Deposits with original maturity greater than three months (Net) 345.32 (1,396.26)
Dividend Received 175.02 75.62
Net Cash From (Used in) Investing Activities 934.59 (4,590.29)
C |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Exercise of Employee Stock Options including subsidiaries 72.84 70.47
Proceeds from Shares issued by Aditya Birla Capital Limited(Net of Share Issue Expenses) - 2,962.63
Proceeds from Shares issued by Subsidiary Companies to Non-Controlling Interest 152.39 171.50
Proceeds from Long-Term Borrowings 51,045.97 32,860.11
Repayment of Long-Term Borrowings (19,541.29) (16,578.01)
Short-Term Borrowings (Net) (1,718.71) 9,131.02
Payment of Lease Liabilities (including interest thereon) (166.75) (107.82)
Dividend paid to Non-Controlling Interest (61.56) -
Proceeds Received as Share application money pending for allotment (Net) (4.50) 4.40
Net Cash From Financing Activities 29,778.39 28,514.30
D [NetIncrease/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 2,778.34 (176.49)
E |Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,554.30 1,730.79
F |Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents of Discontinued Operations (1.86)
G |Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents (D+E+F) 4,330.79 1,554.30
Additional Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 7:
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Opening Balance 1,09,540.10 84,320.77
Cash Flows 29,785.97 25,413.12
Others* 21.32 (193.79)
1,39,347.40 1,09,540.10

Closing Balance

* Includes fair value adjustment, foreign exchange fluctuation, interest accrued but not due, etc.

*
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Cash Flow used in Operations includes:

Particulars Year ended

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Interest Received 20,415.89 16,998.83
Interest Paid (9,129.32) (7,237.37)
Dividend Received 288.14 271.98
In terms of our report attached
For M M Nissim & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Firm's Registration No.: 107122W/W100672

M 1
-\ A Lo Mo
g -
Sanjay Khemani akha Mulye Arun Kumar Adhikari  Vijayalakshmi lyer
Partner Chief Executive Officer  Director Director
Membership No.: 044577 (DIN: 00591057) (DIN: 05242960)

Ppnonz

Pinky Mehta
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai, 13™ May 2025 Mumbai, 13" May 2025




ADITYA BIRLA CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

Aditya Birla Capital Limited (“ABCL” and “the Company”) (CIN: L64920GJ2007PLC058890) is
a public company domiciled in India, having its registered office at Indian Rayon Compound,
Veraval — 362 266, Gujarat. The Company is a subsidiary of Grasim Industries Limited.

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 11th March 2024, had approved
a Scheme of Amalgamation of Aditya Birla Finance Limited (“ABFL”, “Amalgamating Company”)
(a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) with the Company under Sections 230 to 232 read
with other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules framed

thereunder.

Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal (NCLT) under Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013, erstwhile Aditya Birla
Finance Limited (‘the ABFL”), a then wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, was
amalgamated with the Company (“ABCL”) with effect from the Appointed Date, i.e., April 01,
2024. The Scheme became effective upon filing of the certified order of the NCLT with the
Registrar of Companies on April 01, 2025. The ABCL was holding CoR no. B.01.00555 dated
July 06, 2017 as NBFC-CIC. Further, erstwhile ABFL was also holding CoR no. N.01.00500
dated August 09, 2011 as NBFC-ICC. Further, in accordance with the no objection letter issued
by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), while approving the Scheme, the Certificates of
Registration held by the erstwhile ABFL as NBFC-ICC and by the Company as NBFC-CIC have
been surrendered and a fresh application for registration of the Company as an NBFC-ICC has
been made. Pending the receipt of Registration as NBFC-ICC, the RBI has permitted the
Company to operate as an NBFC-ICC.

The Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of financial services comprising of lending
both as a non-banking financial institution and as a housing finance institution, life and health
insurance, stock broking, asset management and others.

Information on the Group’s structure is provided in Annexure A to Note 1.

The Group has prepared consolidated financial statements in compliance with Indian
Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented on the going concern basis, in
accordance with relevant provisions of the Act and the guidelines and directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI), Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDAI),
to the extent applicable.

The financial statements are authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at
its meeting held on 13th May 2025.
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ADITYA BIRLA CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March 2025

1.

1.1.

1.2

1.3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Presentation of Financial Statements

The Group presents its financial statements to comply with Division Il of Schedule 11l of the
Companies Act, 2013, which provides general instructions for the preparation of financial
statements of a non-banking financial company (NBFC to comply with Ind AS), and the
requirements of Ind AS. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after
the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non-current)
is presented in Note No. 58.

Financial assets and liabilities are generally reported gross in the Balance Sheet. They are
only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties
also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

- The normal course of business, and

- The event of default.

Functional and Presentation Currency

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the
Company’s functional currency, in crore rounded off to two decimal places as permitted by
Division Il of Schedule Il of the Act, except when otherwise indicated.

Principles of Consolidation
Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company
and its Subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an investee if, and only if, the Group has: '

a. Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee),

b. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
c. The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

The Group re-assesses whether it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of, during the year, are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control, until the date the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support
this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights




ADITYA BIRLA CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March 2025

of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

- The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee,

- Rights arising from other contractual arrangements,

- The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights, and

- The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relating to the size and
dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders.

The Group combines the financial statements of the Parent and its subsidiaries line by line
adding together the like items. Intra-Group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between the Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred
assets. The Group offsets (eliminates) the carrying amount of the Parent’s investment in
each subsidiary and the Parent’s portion of equity in each subsidiary.

Profit and Loss, and each component of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) are attributed
to the equity holders of the Parent of the Group and to the Non-Controlling interests, even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to align their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted
for as an equity transaction. When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss
on disposal is calculated as the difference between

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest; and

(i) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
and any non-controlling interests.

Amounts previously recognised in OCI, in relation to the subsidiary, are accounted for (i.e.,
reclassified to profit or loss, or transferred directly to retained earnings) in the same manner,
as would be required, if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of. The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary, at the date when control is lost, is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial
Instruments, or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture.

On account of the regulatory restrictions on transfer of surplus/funds from the life insurance
fund to shareholders, no proportion of the surplus relating to life insurance fund (including
in respect of contracts without discretionary participating features), arising out of the
adjustments due to application of Ind AS principles can be attributed to shareholders. Under
the previous GAAP, fair valuation changes relating to the life insurance fund assets are
accumulated within the liability Group “Policyholders’ Funds” in a line item labelled
“Credit/(Debit) Fair Value Change Account”, separately from “Policy Liabilities”, “Insurance
Reserves” and “Provision for Linked Liabilities”. Therefore, the differences arising from the
application of the Ind AS principles to the assets and liabilities of the life insurance fund be
retained within the “Life Insurance Policyholders’ Fund” liability Group as “Fair Valuation
Differences of Policyholders’ Investments” and “Policyholders’ Fund — Other Adjustments”.
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Further, all income and expenses, pertaining to the life insurance fund, have been grouped
under “Income from Life Insurance Fund” and “Expense of the Life Insurance Fund’,
respectively. Assets and Liabilities of Life Insurance Fund have been clubbed with
respective Assets and Liabilities. Disclosure of the same is provided in Note No. 53.

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Associates:

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

Joint Ventures:

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of
the arrangement, have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in its associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method.

Under the equity method, the investments in the equity of an associate or a joint venture is
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition profits/losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share in other
comprehensive income of the investee. Dividend received from associates and joint
ventures is recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investments.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated, unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to
recognise an impairment loss on its investment in associate or joint venture. At each
reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the
investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share
of profit/loss of an associate and a joint venture’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture, upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the ownership interest in a
joint venture or an associate is reduced, but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to
the Statement of Profit and Loss, where appropriate. Changes in investors’ interest in other
components of equity, in such cases, are being directly recognised in equity.
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1.4.

Business Combination and Goodwill

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations.
The acquisition date is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer. In assessing
control, potential voting rights are considered only if the rights are substantive.

The Group measures goodwill as of the applicable acquisition date at the fair value of the
consideration transferred, including the recognised amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree, less the net recognised amount of the identifiable assets acquired, and
liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of
the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed, and reviews the procedures used to
measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the re-assessment still
results in an excess of the fair value of the net assets acquired over the aggregate
consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
(OCl) and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence
of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve,
without routing the same through OCI. Consideration transferred includes the fair values of
the assets transferred, liabilities incurred by the Group to the previous owners of the
acquiree, and equity interests issued by the Group. Consideration transferred also includes
the fair value of any contingent consideration. Consideration transferred does not include
amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Any goodwill that arises on
account of such a business combination is tested annually for impairment.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an
obligation to pay contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument
is classified as equity, then it is not re-measured, and the settlement is accounted for within
equity. Otherwise, other contingent consideration is re-measured at fair value at each
reporting date, and subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
are recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

A contingent liability of the acquiree is assumed in a business combination only if such a
liability represents a present obligation and arises from a past event, and its fair value can
be measured reliably. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's
proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. Transaction costs that the
Group incurs in connection with a business combination, such as stamp duty for title transfer
in the name of the Group, finder's fees, legal fees, due diligence, fees and other professional
and consulting fees, are expensed as incurred.

A cash-generating unit, to which goodwill has been allocated, is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently, when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than it's carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to other assets of the unit pro-rata, based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal.
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1.5.

Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the
disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting
period, in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the
items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The
measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity, and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Classification of financial instruments

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and
the Company’s business model for managing financial assets. The Company determines
its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets
to achieve its business objective.

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost
2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account"

Financial Assets
Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. Further, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs, that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset, are added to the fair value. However, trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at
transaction price. Purchases or sales of financial assets, that require delivery of assets
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way
trades), are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset.
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Subsequent Measurement

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, financial instruments are classified in four
categories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost,

- Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI),

- Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments, mutual funds at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), and

- Equity instruments.

Evaluation of Business Model and Test

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and
the business model test. The Group determines the business model at a level that reflects
how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business
objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including
how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks
that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed, and how the
managers of the assets are compensated.

Debt Instruments at Amortised Cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost, if both the following conditions are
met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Debt Instruments at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified at FVTOCI, if both of the following criteria are met:

a. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and

b. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and
Interest (SPPI).

Debt instruments, included within the FVTOCI category, are measured initially, as well as
at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other
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comprehensive income (OCI), except for changes with respect to Policyholders’
investments under the life insurance business (except for assets held to cover linked
liabilities) relating to Revenue Account of Life Insurance Policyholders, wherein the fair
value movements are included under “Policyholders’ Liabilities (Life Insurance Contract
Liabilities and Restricted Surplus)” in the Balance Sheet. The Group recognises interest
income, impairment losses and reversals, and foreign exchange gain or loss in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income
using the EIR method.

Debt Instruments at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified at
FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except for changes with respect
to Policyholders’ investments under the life insurance business (except for assets held to
cover linked liabilities) relating to Revenue Account of Life Insurance Policyholders, wherein
the fair value movements are included under “Policyholders’ Liabilities (Life Insurance
Contract Liabilities and Restricted Surplus)” in the Balance Sheet.

Equity Investments

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures are accounted using the equity method, as
explained in item 1.3 above.

All other equity investments are measured at fair value. Equity instruments, which are held
for trading, are classified as at FVTPL. For equity instruments, other than held for trading,
the Group has irrevocable option to present in OCI, subsequent changes in the fair value.
The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

Where the Group classifies equity instruments at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes in the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the
amounts from OCI to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment.

Equity instruments, included within the FVTPL category, are measured at fair value with all
changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except for changes with respect
to Policyholders’ investments under the life insurance business (except for assets held to
cover linked liabilities) relating to Revenue Account of Life Insurance Policyholders, wherein
the fair value movements are included under “Policyholders’ Liabilities (Life Insurance
Contract Liabilities and Restricted Surplus)” in the Balance Sheet.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on the following financial instruments that
are not measured at FVTPL:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments are measured at amortised cost e.g.,
loans, debt securities, deposits, and other balances

b) Financial assets that are measured as at FVTOCI

¢) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

d) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group
determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL
is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there
is no longer a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment at the end of each reporting
period of whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instrument.

To calculate ECL, the Group estimates the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument during its expected life. ECLs are estimated based on the present value of all
cash shortfalls over the remaining expected life of the financial asset i.e., the difference
between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Group under the contract, and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive are discounted at the effective interest rate of
the loan.

The Group groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, based on the applied
impairment methodology, as described below:

Stage 1: 12-months ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL
associated with the probability of default events occurring within the next 12 months is
recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired

For exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting the remaining lifetime
of the financial asset) is recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - credit impaired

Exposures are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred. For
exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest
revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of
provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.
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ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head
‘Impairment on financial instruments’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On the other side,
for financial assets measured as at amortised cost, ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e.,
as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does
not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

In terms of the requirement as per the RBI notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR
(NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March, 2020 on Implementation of
Indian Accounting Standards, Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) are required to
create an impairment reserve for any shortfall in impairment allowances under Ind AS 109
and Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms (including
provision on standard assets). The impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 made by the
company exceeds the total provision required under IRACP (including standard asset
provisioning), as at 31 March_2025 and accordingly, no amount is required to be transferred
to impairment reserve.

Modification and Derecognition of Financial Assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms, governing the cash
flows of a financial asset, are renegotiated, or otherwise modified between initial
recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or
timing of the contractual cash flows, either immediately or at a future date. In addition, the
introduction or adjustment of existing covenants of an existing loan may constitute a
modification even if these new or adjusted covenants do not yet affect the cash flows
immediately but may affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant is or is not
met (e.g., a change to the increase in the interest rate that arises when covenants are
breached).

The Group renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximise collection and
minimise the risk of default. A loan forbearance is granted in cases where, although, the
borrower made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there is
a high risk of default, or default has already happened, and the borrower is expected to be
able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms, in most of the cases, include an
extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan
(principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due (principal
and interest forgiveness) and amendments to covenants.

When a financial asset is modified, the Group assesses whether this modification results
in derecognition. In accordance with the Group’s policy, a modification results in
derecognition when it gives rise to substantially different terms. To determine if the
modified terms are substantially different from the original contractual terms, the Group
considers the following:

* qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification, are no longer
SPPI,

« change in currency or change of counterparty,

+ the extent of change in interest rates, maturity, covenants and
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If these do not clearly indicate a substantial modification, then

A. In the case where the financial asset is derecognised, the loss allowance for ECL is
remeasured at the date of derecognition to determine the net carrying amount of the
asset at that date. The difference between this revised carrying amount and the fair
value of the new financial asset with the new terms will lead to a gain or loss on
derecognition. The new financial asset will have a loss allowance measured based on
12-month ECL, except in the rare occasions where the new loan is considered to be
originated credit-impaired. This applies only in the case where the fair value of the new
loan is recognised at a significant discount to its revised par amount, because there
remains a high risk of default, which has not been reduced by the modification. The
Group monitors credit risk of modified financial assets by evaluating qualitative and
quantitative information, such as if the borrower is in the past due status under the new
terms.

B. When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does
not result in derecognition, the Group determines if the financial asset’s credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing:

+ the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on the data at initial recognition and the
original contractual terms; with

+ the remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms.

For financial assets modified, where modification did not result in derecognition, the
estimate of PD reflects the Group’s ability to collect the modified cash flows taking into
account the Group’s previous experience of similar forbearance action, as well as various
behavioural indicators, including the borrower’s payment performance against the modified
contractual terms. If the credit risk remains significantly higher than what was expected at
initial recognition, the loss allowance will continue to be measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL. The loss allowance on forborne loans will generally only be measured based
on 12-month ECL, when there is evidence of the borrower's improved repayment
behaviour following modification leading to a reversal of the previous significant increase
in credit risk.

Where a modification does not lead to derecognition, the Group calculates the modification
gain/loss comparing the gross carrying amount before and after the modification (excluding
the ECL allowance). Then the Group measures ECL for the modified asset, where the
expected cash flows, arising from the modified financial asset, are included in calculating
the expected cash shortfalls from the original asset.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset’s
cash flows expire (including expiry arising from a modification with substantially different
terms), or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset are transferred to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial
asset, and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable, and the
cumulative gain/loss that had been recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, with the exception of equity investment
designated as measured at FVTOCI, where the cumulative gain/loss previously

—
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recognised in OCl is not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g., when the Group retains
an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous
carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part, that is no longer recognised, and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised, and any cumulative gain/loss allocated to fit,
that had been recognised in OCI, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. A
cumulative gain/loss that had been recognised in OCI is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts. This does not apply for equity investments designated
as measured at FVTOCI, as the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is not
subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Write Off

Loans and debt securities are written off, when the Group has no reasonable expectations
of recovering the financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case
when the Group determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts, subject to the write-off. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Group may apply enforcement activities to
financial assets written off. Recoveries resulting from the Group’s enforcement activities
will result in impairment gain.

Presentation of Allowance for ECL in the Balance Sheet
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the Balance Sheet as follows:

 For financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross
carrying amount of the assets and;

* Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and
the Group cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately
from those on the drawn component, the Group presents a combined loss allowance
for both components. The combined amount is presented as a deduction from the
gross carrying amount of the drawn component.

Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments
Classification as Debt or Equity

Debt and equity instruments, issued by the Group, are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the

Group, after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition:

- At fair value through profit or loss,

- Loans and borrowings,

- Payables, or

- As derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and
borrowings, and payables are recognised net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings,
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial
instruments.

Subsequent Measurements

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilites at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading, if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading, unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities, designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL, are designated as such at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

Loans and Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised, as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs, because the specified
debtor fails to make a payment when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
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Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes and not as a speculative
investment. However, where derivatives do not meet the hedge accounting criteria, they
are classified as 'held for trading' for accounting purposes and are accounted for at FVTPL.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and, if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

The Group designates certain derivatives as either:

a. Hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair
value changes),

b. Hedges of a particular risk associated with the cash flows of recognised assets and
liabilities and highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges), or

c. Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedges).

At inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the economic relationship
between hedging instruments and hedged items, including whether the changes in the cash
flows of the hedging instrument, are expected to offset changes in cash flows of hedged
items. The Group documents its risk management objective before undertaking hedge
transactions.

Hedge effectiveness is the degree to which changes in cash flow of the hedged item, that
are attributable to a hedged risk, are offset by changes in the cash flows of the hedging
instrument. Hedge effectiveness is ascertained at the time of inception of the hedge and
periodically thereafter.

The effective portion of change in the fair value of the designated hedging instrument is
recognised in the other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading cash
flow hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit and loss, within Other Income.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the
hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. The gain
or loss, relating to the effective portion of the interest rate swaps hedging variable rate
borrowings, is recognised in profit and loss within 'finance cost', at the same time, as the
interest expense on the hedged borrowings.

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer
meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or loss, and deferred
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ADITYA BIRLA CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March 2025

costs of hedging in equity at that time remains in equity until the forecast transaction occurs,
resulting in the recognition of a non-financial asset.

- When the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss
and deferred costs of hedging, that were reported in equity, are immediately reclassified to
profit or loss within other gains/ (losses).

Embedded Derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also
includes a non-derivative host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the
combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded
derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the
contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index,
or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not
specific to a party to the contract. Re-assessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109,
the Group does not separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification
requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded
in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair
value, if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts, and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though
profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the
Balance Sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

1.6. Fair Value Measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as investments (other than equity
investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates) and derivatives at fair values
at each Balance Sheet date.

=6 1071220/
| W100672

o )]
7L MUMBAIYES),
I




ADITYA BIRLA CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

a. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b. Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities (for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements) are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input, that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input, that is significant to
the fair value measurement, is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input, that is significant to

the fair value measurement, is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement, as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurements, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at
fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for disposal in
discontinued operations.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets
and liabilities, which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in
the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts
and other relevant documents.
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1.7.

1.8.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, including fixed
deposit with original maturity period of three months or less and short-term highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition or construction cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Cost comprises the purchase price and any
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its location and working condition for its intended
use, including relevant borrowing costs and any expected costs of decommissioning.

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for
as separate items (major components) of PPE.

The cost of an item of PPE is recognised as an asset, if, and only if, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group in future periods, and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred after the PPE have been
put into operations, such as repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss, during the period in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised. The date of
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control
of that item in accordance with the requirements for determining when a performance
obligation is satisfied in Ind AS 115.

Depreciation on PPE is provided on Straight-Line Method using the rates arrived at based
on the useful lives as specified in the Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, or estimated
by the Management. The Group has used the following useful life to provide depreciation
on its PPE.

A. Assets where useful life differs from Schedule II:

Useful Life as
Assets Prescribed by E§timated Useful
Schedule Il of the Life
Companies Act, 2013
Buildings 30 Years 60 Years
Office Electronic Equipment 5 Years 4 Years
Office Computers (end-user devices, 5\ eins % Vearsito & Yeais
desktop, laptops)
Servers 6 Years 3 Years to 5 Years
Vehicles 8-10 Years 4 Years to 5 Years
Fur_mture and Fixtures, and Other 10 Years 2 Vesrs to $ Viears
Office Equipment
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1.9.

Useful life of assets different from the corresponding life specified in Schedule 1l has been
estimated by the Management supported by technical assessments.

The estimated useful lives and residual values of the PPE are reviewed at the end of each
financial year.

B. Leasehold Assets:

Assets Estimated Useful Life

Leasehold Improvements Period of Lease

Property, plant and equipment, individually costing less than Rupees five thousand, are fully
depreciated in the year of purchase.

Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment added/disposed of/discarded during the
year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of
addition/disposal/discarded.

Depreciation on the tangible fixed assets added/disposed of/discarded during the year is
provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition/disposal/discarding.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains or
losses arising from the retirement or disposal of tangible fixed assets are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investment Property

Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
property under construction for such purposes). Investment property is measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The Group, based on technical assessment made by the Management, depreciates the
building on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of 60 years. The Management
believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect a fair approximation of the
period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Useful Life as

Prescribed by Estimated Useful
Assets Schedule Il of the Life

Companies Act, 2013
Investment Property 60 Years 60 Years

Though the Group measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair
value of investment property is disclosed in Note No. 14.
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1.10. Intangible Assets and Amortisation

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that
are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost
of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The Group recognises internally generated intangible assets when it is certain that the
future economic benefit attributable to the use of such intangible assets are probable to flow
to the company and the expenditure incurred for development of such intangible assets can
be measured reliably. The cost of an internally generated intangible asset comprises of all
directly attributable costs necessary to create, produce, and prepare the asset to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by the Management. Research costs on internally
generated assets are expensed as incurred.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of intangible asset is added to its carrying value
based on materiality, resultant increase in the future benefits from the existing asset beyond
its previously assessed standard of performance and/ or savings in future cost. All other
expenses on maintenance of existing intangible assets and cost of replacing the intangible
assets are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such
expenses are incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment, whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. Intangible assets are amortised
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains or losses, arising from the
retirement or disposal of an intangible asset, are determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and recognised as income or
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

1.11.

Intangible Assets and their useful lives are as under:

Assets Estimate Useful Life
Software (including Digital and Payment | 2 to 7 Years
Application & allied systems)

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of non-financial
assets (other than deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units, for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use
are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication then the
asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset, for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement
of Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but,
so that, the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase.

. Product Classification of Insurance Business

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted
significant insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate
the policyholders, if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects
the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Group determines whether it has significant
insurance risk, if the benefits payable on death is higher by at least 5% of the fund value at
any time during the term of the contract for unit-linked products or the benefits payable on
death is higher by at least 5% of the premium at any time during the term of the contract for
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other than unit-linked products. Investment contracts are those contracts which are not
Insurance Contracts.

. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains,
a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets,
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognises Right-of-Use (‘ROU")*
Asset and a corresponding Lease Liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases.
For these short-term and low value leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as
an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

Right-of-Use Assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement
date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-Use Assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right-of-Use
Assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment
testing, the recoverable amount (i.e., the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the
value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis, unless the asset generates cash
flows that are largely dependent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash-Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of
domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to
the related Right-of-Use Asset, if the Group changes its assessment on exercise of an
extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet, and
lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

As a Lessor

Leases, for which the Group is a lessor, are classified as a finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March 2025

1.14.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and
the sub-lease separately. The sub-lease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the Right-of-Use Asset arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

Employee Benefits
Short-Term Employee Benefits

Liabilities for salaries and wages, including non-monetary benefits and accumulating leave
balance in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period, are
recognised as liabilities (and expensed), and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled.

The Group also recognises a liability and records an expense for bonuses (including
performance-linked bonuses) where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice
that has created a constructive obligation.

The obligations are presented as a part of “Other Financial Liabilities” or “Provisions” in the
Balance Sheet.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Group makes defined contributions to employee provident fund and employee pension
schemes administered by government organizations, set up under the applicable statute,
and those administered by a trust set up by Grasim Industries Limited (‘the Holding
Company”) and superannuation schemes administered by a trust set up by the Holding
Company. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid, except to contribute additionally any shortfall in the annual yield on the plan assets as
compared to the annual return prescribed by the Central Government (there were no such
additional contributions due from the Group as of 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022).
The contributions are recognised as a part of “Employee Benefits Expenses” in the period
in which the employee renders services, against which such contributions are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available. The liabilities are presented within “Other Financial
Liabilities” or, as the case may be, within “Provisions” in the Balance Sheet.

Defined Benefit Plans (Gratuity Obligation)

The obligation in respect of defined benefit plans, which covers Gratuity, which is provided
for on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the end of each financial year. Gratuity is funded
with an approved trust.

In respect of Gratuity being post-retirement benefits, re-measurements, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the
return on plan assets (excluding net interest) is reflected immediately in the Balance Sheet
with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur.
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Re measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
retained earnings, and will not be reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss, except
with respect to life insurance business which relates to restricted life insurance fund relating
to Revenue Account of Life Insurance Policyholders, the same has been transferred under
“Policyholders’ Liabilities (Life Insurance Contract Liabilities and Restricted Surplus)” in the
Balance Sheet, and the same will not be reclassified to revenue account of insurance
business.

Past service costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the earlier of:
- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
- The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs.

The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefits obligation under
employee benefits expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

- Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and
losses on curtailments and settlements); and
- Net interest expense or income.

The Group presents the above components of defined benefit costs in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the line item “Employee Benefit Expenses”.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate,
which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds.

The retirement benefit obligation, recognised in the Balance Sheet, represents the actual
deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined benefits plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plans or reductions in the future contribution to the plans.

Other Long-Term Benefits

The expected costs of other long-term employee benefits, such as long-term service
incentive plan benefits (not being share-based payments) are accrued over the period of
employment using the same accounting methodology, as used for defined benefits plans.

Re measurement gains and losses, arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions, are charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which they arise. The obligations are presented as a part of “Provisions” in the
Balance Sheet.

. Employee Share-Based Payments

Equity-Settled Transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured by reference to the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date using Black-Scholes Model.

The fair value, determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments, is
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on the straight-line basis over the vesting period
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1.16.

1.17.

of the respective options, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity.

In case of forfeiture/lapse stock option, which is not vested, amortised portion is reversed
by credit to employee compensation expense. In situation where the stock option expires
unexercised, the related balance standing to the credit of the Employee Stock Options
Outstanding Account is transferred within equity.

Foreign Currency Transactions

In preparing the financial statements of the Group, transactions in foreign currencies, other
than the Group’s functional currency, are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not re-translated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the period in which these arise, except for:

- Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to qualifying assets
under construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency borrowings;

- Exchange differences relating to qualifying effective cash flow hedges; and

- Exchange difference, arising on re statement of long-term monetary items that in
substance forms part of the Group’s net investment in foreign operations, is
accumulated in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (component of OCI), until the
disposal of the investment, at which time, such exchange difference is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign Operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated into Indian Rupee, the functional currency of the
Group, at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign
operations are translated into Indian Rupee at the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions or an average rate, if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date
of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity
(as exchange differences on translating the financial statements of a foreign operation),
except to the extent that the exchange differences are allocated to non-controlling interest.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control,
significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount of exchange differences
related to that foreign operation recognised in OCI is re classified to the Statement of Profit
and Loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. If the Group disposes of part of its interest
in a subsidiary, but retains control, then the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount of
foreign exchange differences is re-allocated to NCI. When the Group disposes of only a
part of its interest in an associate or a joint venture, while retaining significant influence or
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joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount of foreign exchange
differences is re classified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured and there exists reasonable
certainty of its recovery.

Interest Income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the EIR. EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and
similar options), but does not consider the expected credit losses.

The Group calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets other than credit-impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3,
the Group calculates interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the net
amortised cost of the financial asset. If the financial asset cures and is no longer credit-
impaired, the Group reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, the Group calculates
interest income by calculating the credit-adjusted EIR and applying that rate to the
amortised cost of the asset. The credit adjusted EIR is the interest rate that, at original
recognition, discounts the estimated future cash flows (including credit losses) to the
amortised cost of the POCH! assets.

Interest income on all trading assets and financial assets, mandatorily required to be
measured at FVTPL, is recognised using the contractual interest rate in net gain on fair
value changes.

Dividend Income

Dividend income (including from FVOCI investments) is recognised when the Group’s right
to receive the payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the entity, and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably. This is generally when the shareholders approve the dividend.
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Insurance Companies
A. Life Insurance Business
Premium Income of Insurance Business

Premium income on Insurance contracts and Investment contracts with Discretionary
Participation Feature (DPF) is recognised as income when due from policyholders. For unit-
linked business, premium income is recognised when the associated units are created.
Premium on lapsed policies is recognised as income when such policies are reinstated. In
case of linked business, top-up premium paid by policyholders is considered as single
premium and is utilized as prescribed by the Insurance Regulatory and Development
Authority of India Financial Statements Regulations. This premium is recognised when the
associated units are created.

Fees and Commission Income of Insurance Business

Insurance and investment contract policyholders are charged for policy administration
services, investment management services, surrenders and other contract fees. These fees
are recognised as revenue over the period in which the related services are performed. If
the fees are for services provided in future periods, then they are deferred and recognised
over those future periods.

Reinsurance Premium

Reinsurance premium ceded is accounted for at the time of recognition of the premium
income, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the relevant treaties with the
reinsurers. Impact on account of subsequent revisions to or cancellations of premium is
recognised in the year in which they occur.

B. Health Insurance Business
Gross Premium

Premium (net of service tax) in respect of insurance contracts is recognised as income over
the contract period or the period of risk, whichever is appropriate, after adjusting for reserve
for unexpired risk. Any subsequent revisions to or cancellations of premiums are recognised
in the year in which they occur.

Reinsurance Premium

Premium (net of service tax) in respect of insurance contracts is recognised as income over
the contract period or the period of risk, whichever is appropriate, after adjusting for reserve
for unexpired risk. Any subsequent revisions to or cancellations of premiums are recognised
in the year in which they occur.

Income from items other than to which Ind AS - 109 Financial Instruments and Ind AS - 104
Insurance Contracts are applicable.

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments are
applicable) is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS
115 - Revenue from contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive model of
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes current
revenue recognition guidance found within Ind AS.




ADITYA BIRLA CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March 2025

1.19.

The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model
as set out in Ind AS 115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement
between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and
sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a goods or services to the

customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For
a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group allocates
the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts
the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation.

Brokerage Fee Income

Revenue recognition for brokerage fees can be divided into the following two categories:

Brokerage Fees — Over Time

Fees earned for the provision of services are recognised over time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits, as the services are rendered. These
include brokerage fees, which is fixed at inception irrespective of number of transactions
executed. The revenue for such contracts is recognised over the term of the contract.

Brokerage Fees — Point in Time

Revenue from contract with customer is recognised point in time when performance
obligation is satisfied (when the trade is executed). These include brokerage fees which are
charged per transaction executed.

Benefits Paid (Including Claims) Pertaining to Insurance Business
Claims and Benefits Paid for Life Insurance Business

Gross benefits and claims for life insurance contracts and for investment contracts with
Discretionary Participation Features (DPF) include the cost of all claims arising during the
year, including internal and external claims handling costs that are directly related to the
processing and settlement of claims and policyholder bonuses declared on DPF contracts,
as well as changes in the gross valuation of insurance and investment contract liabilities
with DPF.
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ADITYA BIRLA CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March 2025

1.20.

1.21.

Death and other claims are accounted for, when notified. Survival and maturity benefits are
accounted when due. Surrenders/Withdrawals under linked policies are accounted in the
respective schemes when the associated units are cancelled. Repudiated claims disputed
before judicial authorities are provided for based on the Management prudence considering
the facts and evidence available in respect of such claims.

Gross Claims Incurred for Health Insurance Business

Claims incurred comprise of claims paid, change in estimated liability for outstanding claims
made following a loss occurrence reported, change in estimated liability for claims incurred
but not reported (IBNR), and claims incurred but not enough reported (IBNER), and specific
settlement costs comprising legal and investigation fees, and other directly attributable
expenses.

The provision is made for estimated value of outstanding claims at the Balance Sheet date
on the basis of the ultimate amounts that are likely to be paid on each claim, established by
the Management in the light of past experience, and progressively modified for changes, as
appropriate, on availability of further information and include claim settlement costs likely to
be incurred to settle outstanding claims.

Claims are recognised on the date of intimation based on estimates from surveyors/insured
in the respective revenue accounts.

The estimated liability for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and claims incurred but
not enough reported (IBNER) has been estimated by the Appointed Actuary generally
accepted actuarial methods for each product category as considered appropriate
depending upon the availability of past data, as well as appropriateness of the different
methods to the different lines of businesses.

Reinsurance Claims

Reinsurance claims are recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised,
according to the terms of the relevant contract.

Acquisition Costs

Acquisition costs are costs that vary with and are primarily related to acquisition of insurance
contracts. Acquisition costs mainly consist of commission, medical costs, policy printing
expenses, stamp duty and other related expenses. These costs are expensed in the year
in which they are incurred. Clawback of the first-year commission paid, if any, in future is
accounted in the year in which it is recovered.

Policy Liabilities
Insurance Contracts

The policy liabilities are calculated in accordance with the accepted actuarial practice,
requirements of the Insurance Act, 1938, as amended by the Insurance Laws (Amendment)
Act, 2015, the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Preparation of Financial
Statements and Auditor’'s Report of Insurance Companies) Regulations, 2002 (the “IRDA
Financial Statements Regulations”), notified by the Insurance Regulatory and Development
Authority of India and Practice Standards prescribed by the Institute of Actuaries of India.




ADITYA BIRLA CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31° March 2025

1.22.

1.23.

1.24.

1.25.

Investment Contracts

Liability, in respect on Investment Contracts, is recognised in accordance with Ind AS,
taking into account accepted actuarial practices.

Deferred Acquisition Costs (DAC)/Deferment Origination Fees (DOF)

The Group has identified Commission, Rewards and Recognition paid to its agents
pertaining to 1% year as acquisition costs. Such acquisition costs are amortised over the
period of the policy contract.

The origination fees for Investment Contracts, being premium allocation charges pertaining
to the 1%t 2M and 3" year, have been deferred over the period of the policy contract, and
since the adjustment relates to restricted life insurance fund relating to Revenue Account
of Life Insurance Policyholders, the same has been transferred under “Policyholders’
Liabilities (Life Insurance Contract Liabilities and Restricted Surplus)” in the Balance Sheet.

Acquisition costs and origination fees are deferred only for Investment Contracts.

Reinsurance Assets

Reinsurance Asset, being net contractual rights receivable under reinsurance contract, has
been recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Finance Costs

Finance costs represent interest expense recognised by applying the EIR to the gross
carrying amount of financial liabilities other than financial liabilities classified as FVTPL.

Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying
value of the financial liability and amortised over the expected life using the effective interest
method. These include fees and commissions payable to advisers and other expenses,
such as external legal costs, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related
to the issue of a financial liability.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Provision for Current and Deferred Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date in the
Indian Income-tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
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ADITYA BIRLA CAPITAL LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 315 March 2025

1.26.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities, and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets aré
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the

same taxation authority.

Where the Group controls the dividend policies of subsidiaries, and the Management is
satisfied that they are expecting to distribute profit in the foreseeable future from the
subsidiaries, the Group accounts the deferred tax liability based on the dividend policy/past
trends, etc. Where the Group does not control the dividend policies of joint
venture/associate and the Management is satisfied that they are expecting to receive
dividend in the foreseeable future, the Group accounts the deferred tax liability on the
undistributed profits.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle ora reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when
there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events,
not wholly within the control of the Group.

Claims against the Group, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is
remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

o~

i+ ¢ 107122V
\lat  wiooe72

By, MY MBA
Ny ees/
NP
—




ADITYA BIRLA CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income
is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset, and is recognised.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date.

1.27. Segment Reporting
Identification of Segments

Operating Segments are identified based on monitoring of operating results by the chief
operating decision maker (CODM) separately for the purpose of making decision about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss of the Group.

Operating Segment is identified based on the nature of products and services, the different
risks and returns, and the internal business reporting system.

Segment Policies

The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies
adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Group as a whole.

Further, inter-segment revenue has been accounted for based on the transaction price
agreed to between segments, which is primarily market based.

Unallocated Corporate Items include general corporate income and expenses, which are
not attributable to segments.

1.28. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to
equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the
weighted-average number of equity shares outstanding, during the period. The weighted-
average number of equity shares outstanding, during the period and for all periods
presented, is adjusted for events, such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to
the existing shareholders, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in
resources.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the
period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

1.29. Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows is reported using the indirect method, whereby the net profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals, or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The Statement of Cash Flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.




ADITYA BIRLA CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March 2025

1.30. Recent pronouncements

1.31.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to
time. For the year ended 31% March 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or
amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Group.

Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with the Ind AS, requires judgements,
estimates and assumptions to be made, that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities on the date of the financial statements, the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as
of the date of the financial statements. Although these estimates are based on the
Management’'s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes different from the estimates. The
difference between actual results and estimates is recognised in the period in which the
results are known or materialised. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the
current and future periods.

Judgements

The following companies are being accounted as per equity method of accounting where
Aditya Birla Capital Limited holds either directly or through its subsidiary, more than half of
the equity shareholding.

a. Aditya Birla Sun Life Trustee Company Private Limited
b. Aditya Birla Wellness Private Limited

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions, concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.
The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that
are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for
determining the economic life of an asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are
reviewed by the Management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In the case of a
revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life of
the assets.
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ADITYA BIRLA CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Measurement of Defined Benefits Obligations

The cost of the defined benefits gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. Al assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets and Provision for Current Tax

Deferred Tax Assets are recognised based on availability of future taxable profit against
which the tax losses carried forward can be used.

The Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and established
provisions, where appropriate.

Recognition and Measurement of Provisions and Contingencies
Key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.
Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair values are
measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable market, where possible, but where
this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgement
includes consideration of input such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by several factors, changes in which can
result in different levels of allowances.

The Group’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their inter-dependencies. Elements
of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

a. The Group’s internal credit grading model, which assigns PDs to the individual
grades.

b. The Group’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit
risk, and if so, allowances for financial assets, should be measured on a lifetime
ECL basis and the qualitative assessment.
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ADITYA BIRLA CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31° March 2025

c. The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective
basis.

d. Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of

inputs.
e. Determination of associations between macro-economic scenarios and economic
inputs, such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs,

EADs and LGDs.

f. Selection of forward-looking macro-economic scenarios and their probability
weightings, to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models.

It has been the Group’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss
experience and adjust when necessary.




ADITYA BIRLA CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Annexure ‘A’ to Note: 1 “General Information and Basis of Preparation”

Principal . .
Place zf Proportion of Proportion of
. - Principal Business Ownership Ownership
Particulars Business/ ..
E— Activity Interest as on Interest as on
Incorp:raﬁon 31% March 2025 | 31% March 2024
SUBSIDIARIES
Aditya Birla Finance Limited
(ABFL) (A.malg.arﬁated with Aditya India NBFC./Fund-Based . 100.00%
Birla Capital Limited w.e.f. Lending
Appointed Date of 1%t April 2024)
Aditya Birla Housing Finance ) . . A .
Limited (ABHFL) India Housing Finance 100.00% 100.00%
Aditya Birla Sun Life Insurance . .
d Lif .00% 51.009
Company Limited (ABSLI) India ife Insurance 51.00% %
Aditya Birla Sun Life Pension Persion Bl
WenagementLimited (ABSPI) India Management and 51.00% 51.00%
(100% Subsidiary of Birla Sun Life )
. Point of Presence
Insurance Company Limited)
Aditya Birla Insurance Brokers insuranice Brakingand
Limited (ABIBL) (Ceased to be . . . ; o
subsidiary w.e:f. 30% August 2024} India Risk Advisory Services 50.002%
Stock Broking,
Aditya Birla Money Limited . Depository Services, o 0
(ABML) India Portfolio 73.53% 73.53%
Management Services
Aditya Birla Financial Shared . Other Business - .
Services Limited (ABFSSL) Indis Support Services 100.00% 100:08%
Aditya Birla Money Mart Limited .
I
(ABMML) (Meged with ABFSSL India avsdufné:siideiims - 100%
w.e.f. 20 July 2024) ?
Aditya Birla Money Insurance
Advisory Services Limited India
(ABMIASL) (100% Subsidiary of Insurance Corporate ) 100%
ABMML) (Meged with ABMML Agent .
w.e.f. 1st July 2024)
Aditya Birla Capital Technology
Services Limited (ABCTSL) . Financial and IT- 5
(Meged with ABFSSL w.e.f. 2" July Ihéia enabled Services 100.00%
2024)
: . o . Asset Reconstruction
Aditya Birla ARC Limited (ABARC) India P 100.00% 100.00%
Aditya Birla Stressed Asset AMC . G o
Private Limited (ABSAANIC) India Fund Management 100.00% 100.00%
ABARC-AST-008-Trust India ‘ézsnf;::yw”“r”c“"” 100.00% 100.00%
ABARC-AST-010-Trust India /é:snf;:rfso"s””d'o” 100.00% 100.00%
Aditya Birla Special Situation Fund . Alternate Investment o .
1 (ABSSF) India Fund 100.00% 100.00%
. . . - - Digital Services
?:B;tC\/SLBlrIa Capital Digital Limited India 100.00% 100.00%




ADITYA BIRLA CAPITAL LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March 2025

Principal . .
cip Proportion of Proportion of
Place of o . . ;
. . Principal Business Ownership Ownership
Particulars Business/ s
Eounisrot Activity Interest as on Interest as on
w 31% March 2025 | 31% March 2024
Incorporation
Private Equity
Aditya Birla PE Advisors Private . Investment, Advisory o
i 100.00¢
Limited (ABPEAPL) tlin and Management 10000% 90.00%
Services
Aditya Birla Trustee Company . Trustee of Private o
i 100.009
Private Limited (ABTCPL) India Equity Fund 10200 00.00%
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES
Aditya Birla Sun Life Trustee ; Trustee of Aditya Birla 0 -
Private Limited (ABSTPL) India Sun Life Mutual Fund >0.85% >0.85%
Providing and
Aditya Birla Wellness Private . Servicing Incentivised i o
Limited (ABWPL) Iridia Wellness and Related >1.00% aL00%
Programme
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. ) o o
Limited (ABHICL) India Health Insurance 45.89% 45.89%
Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC . Asset Management
44,949 45.14%
Company Limited (ABSLAMC) Ioels and Advisory % =l
Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC
(Mauritius) Ltd. (100% Subsidiary Mauritius Asset Management 44.94% 45.14%
of ABSLAMC)
A : .
Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Ltd., mr\:::tgr:egn?::f d'”
Dubai (100% Subsidiary of Dubai e - . 44.94% 45.14%
Advising on Financial
ABSLAMC)
Product
Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Pte.
Ltd., Singapore (100% Subsidiary Singapore Asset Management 44.94% 45.14%
of ABSLAMC)




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31! March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 3
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars

Cash on Hand
Balances with Banks in

Current Accounts

Fixed Deposit Accounts (with original maturity period of 3 months or less)
Cheques, Drafts on Hand

NOTE: 4 .
BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars

Fixed Deposit Accounts (with original maturity period of more than 3 months) *

Money Due for Refund on Fractional Shares
Earmarked Balances with Banks

* Fixed Deposits include:

As at As at
31" March 2025 31 March 2024
6.12 4.26
2,764.41 729.33
1,412.11 668.61
148.15 152.10
4,330.79 1,554.30
As at As at
31% March 2025  31% March 2024
1,672.49 2,023.45
= 0.26
- 1.00
1,672.49 2,024.71

a) Margins with Exchange (under lien) of ¥ 704.21 crore (Previous Year: ¥ 679.61 crore) and towards issue of Bank Guarantees (under

lien) of ¥ 128.87 crore (Previous Year: ¥ 149.03 crore) of Stock and Securities Broking Business.

b) Lien marked in favour of Insurance Pension Fund Regulatory Development Authority of India (PFRDA) and Insurance Regulatory

Development Authority of India (IRDA) of ¥ 0.20 crore (Previous Year: ¥ 0.79 crore)

¢) Lien marked of ¥ 43.81 crore and ¥ 176.20 crore (Previous Year: ¥ 30.95 crore and ¥ Nil) for Bank Overdraft and the Debenture

Trustee of the Escrow Account respectively.

NOTE: 5 :
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - ASSETS AND LIABLITIES

Particulars

Derivative Financial Instruments - Assets

- Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

- Mandatorily at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

- Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

Derivative Financial Instruments - Liabilities

- Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

- Mandatorily at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

- Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

As at As at

31" March 2025 31 March 2024
0.02 0.08

503.52 349.74

31.01 10.33

534.55 360.15

0.02 3.62

29.04 10.76

128.36 83.11

157.42 97.49
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

(B) DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS OF ADITYA BIRLA SUN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Nature and Term of Outstanding Derivative Contracts

a) Forward Rate Agreements

Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2025 2024
i) Total notional principal amount of forward rate agreement undertaken during the
vear (Instrument-wise)
7.06% GOI 2046 (MD 10/10/2046) 434.74 -
7.09% GOI 2054 (MD 05/08/2054) 1.456.00 -
7.09% GOI 2074 (MD 25/11/2074) 233.07 -
7.18% GOI 2037 (MD 24/07/2037) 82.27 117.56
7.25% GOI 2063 (MD 12/06/2063) 479.12 3.461.68
7.30% GOI 2053 (MD 19/06/2053) 255.41 1.966.97
7.34% GOI 2064 (MD 22/04/2064) 3.489.43 -
7.46% GOI 2073 (MD 06/11/2073) 417.21 -
8.17% GOI 2044 (MD 01/12/2044) 705.14 606.94
6.64% GOI 2035 (MD 16/06/2035) & -
6.67% GOI 2050 (MD 17/12/2050) - -
6.83% GOI 2039 (MD 19/01/2039) - 169.17
7.26% GOI 2033 (MD 06/02/2033) - 70.46
7.36% GOI 2052 (MD 12/09/2052) - 1.985.47
7.40% GOI 2062 (MD 19/09/2062) - 1.505.60
7.41% GOI 2036 (MD 19/12/2036) - 208.04
7.54% GOI 2036 (MD 23/05/2036) - 962.16
7.72% GOI 2049 (MD 15/06/2049) - 135.12
7.72% GOI 2055 (MD 26/10/2055) - =
8.13% GOI 2045 (MD 22/06/2045) 54.15 -
8.30% GOI 2040 (MD 02/07/2040) - 158.50
8.30% GOI 2042 (MD 31/12/2042) 43.28 247.85
8.33% GOI 2036 (MD 07/06/2036) - 77.25
8.83% GOI 2041 (MD 12/12/2041) - 44.84
9.23% GOI 2043 (MD 23/12/2043) 26.00 79.79
7.16% GOI 2050 (MD 20/09/2050) 35.00 -
ii) Total notional principal amount of forward rate agreement outstanding as on end of
the vear (Instrument-wise)
6.64% GOI 2035 (MD 16/06/2035) 116.22 209.48
6.67% GOI 2035 (MD 15/12/2035) 13.40 13.40
6.67% GOI 2050 (MD 17/12/2050) 107.67 136.40
6.83% GOI 2039 (MD 19/01/2039) 58.29 169.17
6.95% GOI 2061 (MD 16/12/2061) 17.40 17.40
6.99% GOI 2051 (MD 15/12/2051) 68.34 83.34
7.06% GOI 2046 (MD 10/10/2046) 476.73 214.43
7.09% GOI 2054 (MD 05/08/2054) 1.456.00 -
7.09% GOI 2074 (MD 25/11/2074) 233.07 -
7.18% GOI 2037 (MD 24/07/2037) 55.92 117.56
7.25% GOI 2063 (MD 12/06/2063) 3.782.79 3.461.68
7.26% GOI 2033 (MD 06/02/2033) 9.66 70.46
7.30% GOI 2053 (MD 19/06/2053) 1.354.82 1,965.46
7.34% GOI 2064 (MD 22/04/2064) 3.489.43 -
7.36% GOI 2052 (MD 12/09/2052) 1.072.09 1.710.03
7.40% GOI 2035 (MD 09/09/2035) 20.66 36.17
7.40% GOI 2062 (MD 19/09/2062) 1.905.66 1.905.66
7.41% GOI 2036 (MD 19/12/2036) 21215 422.52
7.46% GOI 2073 (MD 06/11/2073) 392.72 -
7.54% GOI 2036 (MD 23/05/2036) 756.48 1.127.25
7.62% GOI 2039 (MD 15/09/2039) 84.31 170.15
7.63% GOI 2059 (MD 17/06/2059) 29.40 29.40
7.72% GOI 2049 (MD 15/06/2049) 121.57 135.12
7.72% GOI 2055 (MD 26/10/2055) 59.28 93.15
7.73% GOI 2034 (MD 19/12/2034) 18.97 111.87
7.95% GOI 2032 (MD 28/08/2032) 61.94 126.83
8.13% GOI 2045 (MD 22/06/2045) 275.30 253.21
8.17% GOI 2044 (MD 01/12/2044) 1.565.67 917.20
8.24% GOI 2033 (MD 10/11/2033) 2.96 28.07
8.28% GOI 2032 (MD 15/02/2032) 40.82 50.21
8.30% GOI 2040 (MD 02/07/2040) 273.31 411.85
8.30% GOI 2042 (MD 31/12/2042) 551.80 836.71
8.32% GOI 2032 (MD 02/08/2032) 95.15 95.15
8.33% GOI 2036 (MD 07/06/2036) 286.97 370.59
8.83% GOI 2041 (MD 12/12/2041) 145.57 298.77
9.23% GOI 2043 (MD 23/12/2043) 381.34 397.38
9.20% GOI 2030 (MD 30/09/2030) - 54.73
7.16% GOI 2050 (MD 20/09/2050) 35.00 -

iii) Notional principal amount of forward rate agreement outstanding and not ‘highly
effective’ as at Balance Sheet Date

iv) Mark-to-market value of forward rate agreement outstanding and not ‘highly
effective’ as at Balance Sheet Date

V) Loss which would be incurred if counterparty failed to fulfil their obligation under
aareements




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

b) The fair value mark-to-market (MTM) gains or losses in respect of Forward Rate

. As at 31st March As at 31st March

Hedging Instrument 2025 2024

6.64% GOI 2035 (MD 16/06/2035) 4.62 1.66

6.64% GOI 2035 (MD 16/06/2035) 0.51 0.22

6.67% GOI 2035 (MD 15/12/2035) 5.47 3.64

6.67% GOI 2050 (MD 17/12/2050) 2.25 1.31

6.83% GOI 2039 (MD 19/01/2039) 1.03 0.94

6.95% GOI 2061 (MD 16/12/2061) 4.38 3.54

6.99% GOI 2051 (MD 15/12/2051) -0.56 6.36

7.06% GOI 2046 (MD 10/10/2046) 11.20 0.00

7.09% GOI 2054 (MD 05/08/2054) 1.16 0.00

7.09% GOI 2074 (MD 25/11/2074) 1.30 1.26

7.18% GOI 2037 (MD 24/07/2037) 94.66 61.88

7.25% GOI 2063 (MD 12/06/2063) 0.41 1.31

7.26% GOI 2033 (MD 06/02/2033) 58.40 47.68

7.30% GOI 2053 (MD 19/06/2053) -7.05 0.00

7.34% GOI 2064 (MD 22/04/2064) 28.36 28.16

7.36% GOI 2052 (MD 12/09/2052) 1.26 1.14

7.40% GOI 2035 (MD 09/09/2035) 52.79 30.45

7.40% GOI 2062 (MD 19/09/2062) 1145 8.49

7.41% GOI 2036 (MD 19/12/2036) -0.94 0.00

7.46% GOI 2073 (MD 06/11/2073) 30.28 17.42

7.54% GOI 2036 (MD 23/05/2036) 4.09 1.39

7.62% GOI 2039 (MD 15/09/2039) 1.51 0.89

7.63% GOI 2059 (MD 17/06/2059) 3.90 1.72

7.72% GOI 2049 (MD 15/06/2049) 3.81 4.60

7.72% GOI 2055 (MD 26/10/2055) 1.06 1.32

7.73% GOI 2034 (MD 19/12/2034) 5.49 6.45

7.95% GOI 2032 (MD 28/08/2032) 11.38 8.12

8.13% GOI 2045 (MD 22/06/2045) 41.47 20.41

8.17% GOI 2044 (MD 01/12/2044) 0.13 1.16

8.24% GOI 2033 (MD 10/11/2033) 4.44 3.90

8.28% GOI 2032 (MD 15/02/2032) 15.27 10.76

8.30% GOI 2040 (MD 02/07/2040) 27.39 20.24

8.30% GOI 2042 (MD 31/12/2042) 9.92 7.83

8.32% GOI 2032 (MD 02/08/2032) 13.75 8.25

8.33% GOI 2036 (MD 07/06/2036) 6.34 11.15

8.83% GOI 2041 (MD 12/12/2041) 23.49 14.07

9.23% GOI 2043 (MD 23/12/2043) 0.00 1.20

9.20% GOI 2030 (MD 30/09/2030) 0.05 0.00

c) Movement in Hedge Reserve
As at 31st March 2025

Hadge Rasarve-Recaut Realised Unrealised Total

i) Balance at the beginning of the year (87.34) (485.03) (572.37)

i) Add: Changes in the Fair Value during the year (161.30) (164.84) (326.14)

iii) Less: Amounts Reclassified to Revenue / Profit and Loss Account (11.99) - (11.99)

iv) Balance at the end of the year (236.65) (649.87) (886.52)
As at 31st March 2024

Hedge Reserve Account Realised Unrealised Total

i) Balance at the beginning of the year (56.81) (81.25) (138.06)

ii) Add: Changes in the Fair Value during the year (37.59) (403.78) (441.37)

i) Less: Amounts reclassified to Revenue / Profit and Loss Account (7.06) - (7.06)

iv) Balance at the end of the year (87.34) (485.03) (572.37)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

i) Name of the Counterparty

i) Hedge Designation
iii) Likely impact of one percentage change in
interest rate (100*PV01)

HSBC Bank, J.P.Morgan, Citi Bank, Credit
Suisse, HDFC Bank, Deutsche Bank;

Standard Chartered

Bank, ICICI Bank, Axis Bank, Nomura
Securities and Bank of America

Cash Flow Hedge

Sovereign Bonds

Bank, DBS , Kotak

HSBC Bank, J.P. Morgan,
Citi Bank, Credit Suisse,
HDFC Bank, Deutsche Bank;
Standard Chartered Bank,
DBS, Kotak Bank, ICICI
Bank and Axis Bank

Cash Flow Hedge

Sovereign Bonds

a) Underlying being hedged (Rs. 19.56) (Rs. 14.64)

b) Derivati Forward Rate Agreement Forward Rate Agreement
)Berivative (Rs. 19.69) (Rs. 14.55)
iv) Credit Exposure* Rs. 1360.18 Rs. 951.72

*Note: The exposure limit has been calculated on the basis of Current Equivalent Amount using CEM (Current Exposure Method). Credit Equivalent Amount is the sum of

current credit exposure and potential future credit exposure.
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 3f' March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 7
LOANS
Particulars As at As at
31° March 2025 31% March 2024
(A) Carried at Amortised Cost
Loans and Advances of Financing Activities 1,563,309.14 1,23,567.87
Loans against Insurance Policies 712.09 517.52
Others 609.45 1,012.24
Total - Gross (A) 1,54,630.68 1,25,097.63
Less: Impairment Loss Allowances (1,986.88) (1,979.87)
Total - Net (A) 1,52,643.80 1,23,117.76
(B) Secured and Unsecured
(i) Secured
Secured by Tangible Assets 1,09,655.28 83,334.06
Secured by Intangible Assets 1,069.94 509.53
Covered by Bank / Government Guarantees 4,416.96 4,960.39
Secured by Book Debts, Inventories, Fixed Deposits and Other Working Capital Items 6,448.37 5,614.69
Secured by Insurance Policies 712.09 517.52
(ii) Unsecured 32,328.04 30,161.44
Total - Gross (B) 1,54,630.68 1,25,097.63
Less: Impairment Loss Allowances (1,986.88) (1,979.87)
Total - Net (B) 1,52,643.80 1,23,117.76
(C)i. Loans In India
Public Sector 1,304.85 353.04
Others 1,563,325.83 1,24,744.59
Total - Gross (C) (i) 1,54,630.68 1,25,097.63
Less: Impairment Loss Allowances (1,986.88) (1,979.87)
Total - Net (C) (i) 1,52,643.80 1,23,117.76
ii. Loans outside India - -
Less: Impairment Loss Allowances - -
Total - Net (C) (ii) - -
Total - Net (C) (i) and (ii) 1,52,643.80 1,23,117.76
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 8A
INVESTMENTS OF LIFE INSURANCE POLICYHOLDERS

Particulars

A. Carried at Amortised Cost

Quoted
Investments in Government or Trust Securities
Investments in Debentures
Less: Impairment Loss Allowances
Investments - Others

B. Carried at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Quoted

Investments in Government or Trust Securities

Investments in Debentures

Less: Impairment Loss Allowances

Investments - Others
Less: Impairment Loss Allowances

Unquoted
Investments - Others

C. Carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Quoted
Investments in Equity Instruments
Investments in Mutual Funds
Unquoted
Investments in Equity Instruments

Investments in India
Investments outside India

NOTE: 8B
INVESTMENTS OF LIFE INSURANCE SHAREHOLDERS

Particulars

A. Carried at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Quoted

Investments in Government or Trust Securities

Investments in Debentures

Less: Impairment Loss Allowances

Investments in Equity Instruments
Investments - Others
Unquoted
Investments in Equity Instruments
Investments - Others
Less: Impairment Loss Allowances
B. Carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Quoted
Investments in Government Securities
Investments in Debentures/Bonds
Investments in Equity Instruments
Investments in Mutual Funds
Unquoted
Investments in Mutual Funds

Investments in India
Investments outside India

As at
31° March 2025

31,892.62

8,103.75
(5.90) 8,097.85
542.50
5,317.87

6,408.86

462.91
(0.74) 462.17
287.05
4,021.32
115.75
296.35

57,437.57

57,437.57

As at
31° March 2025

1,447.03
3,255.31
(3.47) 3,251.84

66.21
29.92

7.51
31.68
(0.17) 31.51

8.00
37.45
157.03
10.01

20.87

5,067.38

5,067.38

7,938.91
(5.09)

5,016.88

263.91

2,519.25
(3.36)

10.67

As at
31° March 2024

24,111.37

7,933.82
260.68

5,098.71

(4.77) 6,404.09 (3.65) 5,013.23

263.91

67.77

3,578.49
27.73

296.41

46,652.12

46,652.12

As at
31 March 2024

1,291.62

2,515.89

29.89
15.86

0.88
10.67
7.80

44.22
74.55

9.60

4,000.98

4,000.98




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 9
OTHER INVESTMENTS

Particulars

A. Carried at Amortised Cost
Debentures/Bonds
Investments in Pass Through Certificate

B. Carried at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Equity Instruments

C. Carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Equity Instruments
Government Securities
Debentures/Bonds
Mutual Funds
Investments in Security Receipts

Investments in India
Investments outside India

NOTE: 10

ASSETS HELD TO COVER LINKED LIABILITIES OF LIFE INSURANCE BUSINESS

Particulars

Carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Quoted
Mutual Funds
Equity Instruments
Government or Trust Securities
Debentures
Other Investments
Other Assets
Unquoted
Other Investments

Investments in India
Investments outside India

NOTE: 11
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars

Security Deposits (Unsecured)

Reinsurance Assets

Unclaimed Fund of Policyholders'

Collateralized Borrowing and Lending Obligation

Other Receivables (Including Excess Interest Spread on Direct Assignment)
Less: Impairment Loss Allowances

As at
31° March 2025

As at
31° March 2024

361.74 3.85
468 -
29.97 3.97
0.79 0.68
4,486.08 5,291.31
2,353.63 1,246.49
452.32 1,367.00
139.60 573.67
7,828.81 8,486.97
7,828.81 8,486.97
As at As at
31°'March 2025 31% March 2024
412.89 562.74
18,465.25 17,602.36
11,478.15 10,016.32
6,340.50 6,814.14
774.02 864.16
230.13 66.55
61.32 78.92
37,762.26 36,005.19
37,762.26 36,005.19
As at As at
31°'March 2025 31% March 2024
148.25 135.62
1,641.76 1,363.92
70.40 152.61
300.23 -
722.81 165.59
(0.73) (0.05)
2,882.72 1,817.69
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 13
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Particulars Amount

Gross Carrying Value

As at 1% April 2023 16.87
As at 31% March 2024 16.87
As at 31° March 2025 16.87

Accumulated Depreciation

As at 1% April 2023 2.50
For the Year 0.43
As at 31* March 2024 2.93
For the Year 0.44
As at 31° March 2025 3.37
Net Carrying Value as at 31% March 2024 13.94
Net Carrying Value as at 31° March 2025 13.50

The Group has carried out the valuation activity through a Registered Valuer in terms of Companies Act, 2013 to assess fair
value of its Investment Property. As per report provided by the valuer, the fair value is ¥ 20.45 Crore as on 31st March 2025

(Previous Year X 19.02 Crore).

The fair value of Investment Property has been derived using the Direct Comparison Method based on recent market prices,
without any significant adjustments being made in observable data. Accordingly, fair value estimates for Investment Property is

classified as Level 3.

The Group has no restrictions on the realisability of its Investment Property, and has no contractual obligations to purchase,

construct or develop Investment Property.

Information regarding Income and Expenditure of Investment Property.

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31°" March 2025 31° March 2024

Rental Income derived from Investment Property 0.58 0.53

D!rect Operating Expenses (including Repairs and Maintenance) associated (0.06) (0.06)

with Rental Income

Profit arising from Investment Property before Depreciation and Indirect 0.52 0.47

Expenses

Depreciation for the Year 0.44 0.43

Profit/(Loss) arising from Investment Property before Indirect Expenses 0.08 0.04
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31! March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 15
GOODWILL

Particulars Amount

As at 1% April 2023 554.83
Impairment of Goodwill -
As at 31°' March 2024 554.83
Impairment of Goodwill »
As at 31° March 2025 554.83

Note:

a) Carrying Value of Goodwill pertaining to Life Insurance Business CGU as on 31% March 2025 is ¥ 306.68 Crore {(31*
March 2024 is ¥ 306.68 Crore). Recoverable amount for units is based on fair value less cost of disposal calculated
based on comparable company multiple.

An analysis of the sensitivity of the computation to a change in key parameters (market multiples), based on reasonably
probable assumptions, did not identify any probable scenario in which the recoverable amount of the CGU would
decrease below its carrying amount.

b) Carrying Value of Goodwill pertaining to Stock and Securities CGU (Aditya Birla Money Limited) as on 31% March
2025 is ¥ 183.64 Crore (31% March 2024 is ¥ 183.64 Crore). Recoverable amount for the CGU is based on market price
of the company.

c) Carrying Value of Goodwill pertaining to Lending Business (Excluding Housing Finance) CGU as on 31% March 2025
is ¥ 64.46 Crore (31% March 2024 is ¥ 64.46 Crore). Recoverable amount for units is based on fair value less cost of
disposal calculated based on comparable company multiple.

An analysis of the sensitivity of the computation to a change in key parameters (market multiples), based on reasonably
probable assumptions, did not identify any probable scenario in which the recoverable amount of the CGU would

decrease below its carrying amount.
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 16
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Exclusive

Computer

Particulars Images Sofiumrs Total
Gross Carrying Value

As at 1% April 2023 4.94 547.96 552.90
Additions - 184.77 184.77
Disposal - 3.24 3.24
As at 31% March 2024 4.94 729.49 734.43
Additions - 229.84 229.84
Disposal - 40.62 40.62
De-recognised on account of Sale of Aditya Birla Insurance Brokers Limited - 20.92 20.92
As at 31% March 2025 4.94 897.79 902.73
Accumulated Amortisation

As at 1% April 2023 4.94 379.62 384.56
For the Year - 90.23 90.23
Disposal - 2.98 2.98
As at 31%' March 2024 4.94 466.87 471.81
For the Year - 98.88 98.88
Disposal ‘ - 38.00 38.00
De-recognised on account of Sale of Aditya Birla Insurance Brokers Limited - 18.69 18.69
As at 31% March 2025 : 4.94 509.06 514.00
Net Carrying Value as at 31" March 2024 = 262.62 262.62
Net Carrying Value as at 31% March 2025 . 388.73 388.73
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31_St March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 17

OTHER NON FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particul * As at As at
ATUBIATE 31% March 2025 31% March 2024

Capital Advances 10.69 36.54

Balances with Government Authorities 118.88 107.45

Advance for Expenses 76.37 22.89

Prepaid Expenses 138.76 127.54

Gratuity Assets Receivables 181.24 165.29

Others 100.76 125.84

626.70 585.55
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 19
DEBT SECURITIES

Particulars

As at
31° March 2025

As at
31° March 2024

Secured
(At Amortised Cost)

Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures 38,893.13 23,844.39

(Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss)

Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures 182.74 497.87
39,075.87 24,342.26

Unsecured

(At Amortised Cost)

Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures 263.77 212.45

Commercial Papers 10,411.78 12,340.84
10,675.55 12,553.29
49,751.42 36,895.55

In India 49,751.42 36,895.55

Outside India - -

NOTE: 20

BORROWINGS (OTHER THAN DEBT SECURITIES)

Particulars " Asat st Asat

31% March 2025  31° March 2024
Secured

(At Amortised Cost)
Term Loans from

Banks 66,092.24 54,783.11
Others 30.56 -
External Commercial Borrowings from Foreign Banks 6,692.56 3,402.05
Loans Repayable on Demand from Banks 9,110.74 7,800.59

Repo Borrowings 200.13 -
Collateralised Borrowings and Lending Obligations (CBLO) against ) 300.22
Government Securities '
82,126.23 66,285.97
Unsecured
(At Amortised Cost)
Loans Repayable on Demand from
Banks 10.99 0.89
Others (Inter Corporate Borrowings) 1,562.27 2,505.57
Term Loans from Others 31.73 41.99
1,604.99 2,548.45
83,731.22 68,834.42
In India 77,038.66 65,432.37
Outside India 6,692.56 3,402.05
NOTE: 21
SUBORDINATED LIABLITIES
As at As at

Particulars

31° March 2025

31° March 2024

(At Amortised Cost)
Subordinated Debt

Perpetual Debt Instruments to the extent they do not qualify as Equity
Instruments

Preference Shares

In India
Outside India

5,287.32 3,687.73
566.43 211.40
11.00 11.00
5,864.75 3,810.13
5,165.14 3,660.24
699.61 149.89




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 3" March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

Repayment Terms and Interest Rate of Borrowings are as under:

Particulars

As at
31% March 2025

As at
31° March 2024

A Debt Securities
Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures are secured by way of mortgage on the immovable property and first pari-
passu charge on certain financial assets of the Group:

The repayment terms and rate of interest of debentures are as under:

Repayment Terms: Maturing within 1 year, Rate of Interest 6.25% to 9.25% per annum
(Previous Year: Rate of Interest 5.75% to 9.25% per annum)

Repayment Terms: Maturing between 1 and 3 years, Rate of Interest 6.00% to 8.50% per annum
(Previous Year: Rate of Interest 5.12% to 9.25% per annum)

Repayment Terms: Maturing after 3 years, Rate of Interest 6.00% to 9.15% per annum

(Previous Year: Rate of Interest 6.70% to 9.15% per annum)
Repayment linked to the receipt of distribution amount from redemption of Security Receipts (SR), against which the
debentures are issued. Rate of Interest 11.50% per annum (Previous Year: Rate of Interest 11.50% per annum)

Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures
Repayment Terms: Maturing after 3 years, Rate of Interest 7.57% per annum
(Previous Year: Rate of Interest 8.70% per annum)

Unsecured Commercial Papers
Commercial Papers - Rate of Interest 7.65% to 8.27% per annum (Previous Year: Rate of Interest 7.27% to 9.10% per

B Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

Secured Rupee Term Loans from Banks

The term loans from banks are secured by way of first pari-passu charge on the receivables of the
company and subsidiaries.

The repayment terms and rate of interest of term loans are as under:

Repayment Terms: Maturing upto 5 years, Rate of Interest 2.50% to 10.00% per annum

(Previous Year: Rate of Interest 2.94% to 10.00% per annum)
Repayment Terms: Maturing after 5 years, Rate of Interest 5.00% to 9.00% per annum

(Previous Year: Rate of Interest 3.90% to 9.00% per annum)

Secured External Commercial Borrowings from Foreign Banks

The term loans from banks are secured by way of first pari passu charge on the receivables of the
company.

The repayment terms and rate of interest of term loans are as under:

Repayment Terms: Maturing upto 5 years, Rate of Interest 7.01% to 9.00% per annum
" (Previous Year: Rate of Interest 7.01% to 9.00% per annum)

Repayment Terms: Maturing after 5 years, Rate of Interest 8.01% to 9.00% per annum

(Previous Year: Rate of Interest 8.01% to 9.00% per annum)

Secured Loans Repayable on Demand
Working Capital Demand Loans secured by way of charge on receivables of the company and subsidiaries - Rate of
Interest 7.00% to 8.50% per annum (Previous Year: Rate of Interest 7.01% to 9.00% per annum)

Secured Term Loans from Others
Repayment Terms: Between 1 - 20 Quarterly Instalments from * April 2025 till 31 January 2030 with interest rate

9.41% per annum
Collateralised Borrowing and Lending Obligation (CBLO) against Government Securities

Repo Borrowings (Rate of Interest 7.50% per annum)

Unsecured Rupee Term Loans from Others

Repayment Terms: Quarterly Instalments from April 2025 till February 2029 with interest ranging from 7.75% to 9.41%
per annum (Previous Year: Rate of Interest 7.00% to 9.41% per annum)

Unsecured Loans Repayable on Demand from Banks

Unsecured Loans Repayable on Demand from Others (Inter Corporate Borrowings)

Repayment Terms: Maturing upto 3 years, Rate of Interest 7.00% to 9.00% per annum

(Previous Year: Rate of Interest 7.00% to 9.00% per annum)

Repayment Terms: Maturing after 3 years, Rate of Interest 7.00% to 9.00% per annum

(Previous Year: Rate of Interest 7.00% to 9.00% per annum)

C Subordinated Liabilities (Unsecured)

The Repayment Terms and Rate of Interest of Sub-Debts are as under:

Subordinated Debts - Debentures 7.00% to 9.76% per annum (Redeemable from June 2025 to August 2034)
(Previous Year: Rate of Interest 6.00% to 9.76% per annum)

Perpetual Debt Instruments with Rate of Interest ranging from 8.70% to 8.73% per annum

(Previous Year: Rate of Interest 8.70% per annum)

0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares

5,627.24
10,230.11
22,990.84

227.68

263.77

10,411.78

60,951.20

5,141.04

5,663.30

1,029.26

9,110.74

30.56

200.13

31.73
10.99
1,476.88

85.39

5,287.32

566.43
11.00

2,622.20
8,128.37
13,381.04

210.65

212.45

12,340.84

49,282.65

5,500.46

2,373.51

1,028.54

7,800.59

300.22

41.99
0.89
2,426.20

79.37

3,587.73

211.40
11.00
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31° March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 22

POLICYHOLDERS' LIABILITIES (LIFE INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND RESTRICTED SURPLUS)

Particulars

As at

As at

31° March 2025 31° March 2024

Insurance Contract Liabilities 83,480.46 60,787.67
Investment Contract Liabilities 13,510.34 23,494.84
Fair Value Changes of Policyholders' Investments
Fair Value through Profit and Loss 284.26 447.61
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income 1,012.08 618.92
Policyholders' Fund Other Changes
Fair Value through Profit and Loss 33.91 21.73
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (9.58) (9.17)
Amortised Cost (Others) 39.08 26.86
98,350.55 85,388.46
NOTE: 23
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Particulars st psat " As at
31% March 2025 31° March 2024
Deposits 5.20 6.07
Dues to Life Insurance Policyholders' 1,533.11 1,156.63
Payable Related to Employees 528.81 446.54
Payable for Capex Creditors 19.05 25.93
Others payables (including MTM - FRA payable and other payables etc.) 3,501.67 3,391.25
5,587.84 5,026.42
NOTE: 24
PROVISIONS
Particulars st As at t Amiak
31% March 2025 31° March 2024
Provisions for Employee Benefits
Provision for Leave encashment 73.64 61.38
Provision for Gratuity 203.74 172.64
Provision for Others 70.94 61.46
Others
Provision on Corporate Guarantees given on behalf of a Subsidiary Company 0.37 0.48
[Refer Note 40(b)(i)]
Other Provisions 11.44 23.06
360.13 319.02
Movement of Provision on Corporate Guarantees given on behalf of a
Subsidiary Company
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.48 0.62
Add: Provision created/ (reversed) during the year (0.11) (0.14)
Balance at the end of the year 0.37 0.48
Movement of Other Provisions
Balance at the beginning of the year 23.06 21.19
Add/Less: Provision created/ (reversed) during the year (7.33) 1.87
De-recognised on account of on Sale of Aditya Birla Insurance Brokers Limited (4.29) -
Balance at the end of the year 11.44 23.06

Nature of Provision:

The provision is for anticipated liability, which is made on the basis of the Management expectation as expected timing of

any resulting outflow of economic benefits is uncertain.

NOTE: 25
OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars

Income Received in Advance
Statutory Dues
Others

As at As at

31* March 2025 31 March 2024
60.11 80.83

214.03 200.28

4.30 5.03

278.44 286.14
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated) '

NOTE: 27
OTHER EQUITY

As at As at

Particulars ¢ 0
31°*'March 2025  31* March 2024

1) Special Reserve

Special Reserve u/s 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 2,236.85 1,649.82
Opening Balance
Addition:
Transfer from Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss 591.44 587.03
2,828.29 2,236.85
Special Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987
Opening Balance 33.12 12.08
Addition:
Transfer from Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss 19.84 21.04
52.96 33.12
Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
Opening Balance 183.83 146.74
Addition:
Transfer from Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss 44.85 37.09
228.68 183.83
3,109.93 2,453.80

2) Capital Reserve

Opening Balance 48.40 48.40
Deduction :
De-recognised on account of on Sale of Aditya Birla Insurance Brokers Limited (9.43) -
38.97 48.40
3) Securities Premium Reserve
Opening Balance . 9,004.34 6,109.91
Addition:
Issue of Equity Shares on account of Qualified Institution Placement and Preferential - 2,824.29
Issuance
Exercise of ESOP 65.86 66.37
Transferred from Share Options Outstanding on Exercise of ESOPs 64.93 41.14
Deduction:
Share Issue Expenses - (37.37)
9,135.13 9,004.34
4) Capital Fund 0.01 0.01
5) Debenture Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance 38.25 25.50
Addition:
Transfer from Surplus in Profit and Loss account 28.05 12.75
66.30 38.25
6) Share Options Outstanding Account
Opening Balance 301.65 233.00
Addition:
Charge for the Year 102.19 110.58
Deduction:
Transfer to Generat Reserve on account of Lapse of Vested Options (2.19) (0.79)
Transfer to Securities Premium on Exercise of Options (64.93) (41.14)
336.72 301.65
7) Surplus in Profit and Loss Account
Opening Balance 12,264.19 9,580.12
Addition:
Profit for the Year 3,332.32 3,334.98
Other Comprehensive Income/(Losses) for the Year arising from Re-measurement (10.46) 6.49
Gains/(Losses) on Defined Benefit Plans
Share of Associates/Joint Ventures in Other Comprehensive Income (1.14) (0.63)
Reclassification of Other Comprehensive Income to Profit and Loss account on 0.02 0.85
account of partial stake sale in Associate Companv.
Reversal of Deferred tax liability created earlier on account of Business Combination 98.82 -
Others including Subvention Money Received (4.38) 0.29
Deduction:
Transfer to Special Reserve (656.13) (645.16)
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve (28.05) (12.75)
De-recognised on account of on Sale of Aditya Birla Insurance Brokers Limited 28.87 -
15,024.06 12,264.19
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 27
OTHER EQUITY

As at As at

Particulars i o
31" March 2025 31*' March 2024

8) General Reserve

Opening Balance 58.40 57.61
Addition:
Transfer from Share Options Outstanding Account on account of Lapse of Vested 219 0.79
Options
Deduction:
De-recognised on account of on Sale of Aditya Birla Insurance Brokers Limited (19.44) -
41.15 58.40
9) Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance 24.78 9.80
Addition: '
- Fair Value Gain/(Loss) on Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other (15.41) 14.98
Comprehensive Income and Cash Flow Hedaes
9.37 24.78
10) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Opening Balance 7.84 8.59
Addition:
Arising during the Year 1.17 0.10
Deduction:
Reclassification of Other Comprehensive Income to Profit and Loss account on (0.02) (0.85)
account of partial stake sale in Associate Companv.
8.99 7.84
11) Capital Redemption Reserve 10.00 10.00
12) Share Application Money Pending Allotment
Opening Balance 5.58 1.18
Movement during the Year (4.50) 4.40
1.08 5.58
Total Other Equity 27,781.71 24,217.24

(a) Special Reserve

Special Reserve represents the reserve created pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (the “RBI Act”). In terms of
Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, a Non-Banking Finance Company is required to transfer an amount not less than 20 per cent of its
net profit to a Reserve Fund before declaring any dividend. Appropriation from this Reserve Fund is permitted only for the
purposes specified by RBI.

As per Section 29C(i) of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Housing Finance subsidiary of the Company is required to
transfer at least 20 per cent of its net profit every year to a reserve before any dividend is declared. For this purpose, any special
reserve created by the Company under Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, is considered to be an eligible transfer.

(b) Securities Premium Reserve
Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the

provisions of the Act.

(c) General Reserve

General Reserve is created by appropriation from profits of the current year and/or undistributed profits of previous years. As the
general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another, and is not an item of other comprehensive
income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

(d) Capital Reserve
Reserve is created on account of business combination transactions.

(e) Share Options Outstanding
The reserve is used to recognise the fair value of the options issued to employees of the Company, Subsidiaries, Associates and
Joint Ventures under Company's employee stock option scheme.

(f) Surplus in Profit and Loss Account
Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulated earnings of the Company

(g) Debenture redemption reserve

Debenture Redemption Reserve is created as per requirement of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Amendment Rules,
2019

(h) Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve created on redemption of preference shares from retained earnings.
(i) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign operations are recognised in other comprehensive income as described
in accounting policy and accumulated in a separate reserve within equity.

(j) Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income - Reserve

This reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity and debt instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the
relevant equity instruments are derecognised/sold. In case of debt instruments, the same is reclassified to profit and loss when
the relevant debt instruments are derecognised/sold.




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 28
INTEREST INCOME
. Year ended Year ended
Fartiulars 31° March 2025  31% March 2024
Interest on Loans
On Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost 16,181.69 13,529.59
Interest Income from Investments
On Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through OCI 319.87 276.61
On Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost 20.14 30.29
On Financial Assets Classified at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 338.05 245.43
Interest on Deposits with Banks
On Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through OCI 1.37 0.77
On Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost 93.00 127.28
Other Interest Income
On Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost 73.57 78.67
17,027.69 14,288.64
NOTE: 29
DIVIDEND INCOME
. Year ended Year ended
Pamizalars 31 March 2025  31% March 2024
On Financial Assets Classified at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 0.55 2.72
0.55 2.72
NOTE: 30
NET GAIN ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31* March 2025  31% March 2024
Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Instruments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 753.11 350.01
Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Instruments designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 0.09 0.18
Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Instruments at Fair Value through OCI 0.02 0.25
753.22 350.44
Fair Value Changes:
Realised 817.25 260.12
Unrealised (64.03) 90.32
753.22 350.44
NOTE: 31
NET GAIN ON DE-RECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST
. Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31% March 2025  31° March 2024
Income on assigned loans 176.41 51.56
Reversal of Expected Credit Loss on derecognition of financial instrument (net of bad ) 742
debts written off) related to Housing Finance Business )
176.41 58.98
NOTE: 32
OTHER INCOME
. Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31* March 2025  31* March 2024
Interest Income - Others 42.25 17.41
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.09 -
Miscellaneous Income 91.43 35.58
133.77 52.99

Wi =
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 3f* March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 33
FINANCE COSTS

Particulars

Year ended
31° March 2025

Year ended
31% March 2024

Interest on Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost

Debt Securities 3,330.72 2,434.61
Borrowings other than Debt Securities 5,965.93 4,826.61
Subordinated Liabilities 345.64 270.26
Other Interest Expense 11.40 7.79
Finance Costs - Lease Liabilities (Refer Note No. 42) 29.89 26.59
Interest on Financial Liabilities Measured at FVTPL
Debt Securities 10.60 51.01
9,694.18 7,616.87
Other Interest Income
IMPAIRMENT ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Particilars Year ended Year ended
31* March 2025 31 March 2024
On Loans Held at Amortised Cost 1,497.13 1,352.37
On Trade Receivables and Others 0.91 0.23
1,498.04 1,352.60
NOTE: 35
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31% March 2025 31 March 2024
Salaries and Wages 1,647.11 1,323.56
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds (Refer Note No. 46) 66.70 50.64
Contribution to Gratuity Funds (Refer Note No. 46) 12.50 11.86
Expenses on Employee Stock Options Scheme (Refer Note No. 47) 55.92 56.90
Staff Welfare Expenses 44.78 40.40
1,827.01 1,483.36
NOTE: 36
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31* March 2025 31% March 2024
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 88.83 58.60
Depreciation on Investment Property 0.44 0.43
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 68.78 58.63
Amortisation of Lease Assets (Refer Note No. 42) 88.15 70.71
246.20 188.37
NOTE: 37
OTHER EXPENSES
" Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars a o
31" March 2025 31™ March 2024
Rent 20.80 15.53
Repairs and Maintenance 32.60 53.46
Insurance 131.54 97.71
Information Technology Expenses 206.00 122.05
Rates and Taxes 11.98 8.83
Advertisement and Sales Promotion Expenses 158.82 112.07
Legal and Professional Expenses (including Collection Cost) 236.05 388.10
Travelling and Conveyance 68.37 51.34
Printing and Stationery 6.94 9.80
Communication Expenses 13.32 14.43
Electricity Charges 17.77 11.53
Director Sitting Fees 3.53 2.17
Miscellaneous Expenses 436.32 314.73
1,344.04 1,201.75




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31°% March 2025

(R in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 38
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
. Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars ot "
31~ March 2025 31> March 2024
Continuing Operations .
(A) Relating to Revenue Account of Life Insurance Policyholders'
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Re-measurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations (10.64) (10.04)
Transferred to Policyholders' Fund in the Balance Sheet 10.64 10.04
(i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Changes in Fair Values of FVTOCI Debt Instruments 228.32 119.44
Cash Flow Hedges 164.84 403.78
393.16 523.22
Transferred to Policyholders' Fund in the Balance Sheet (393.16) (523.22)
(B) Relating to Others
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Re-measurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations (13.79) 7.44
Changes in Fair Value of FVTOCI Equity Instruments (41.66) 48.75
Share of Other Comprehensive Income of Associate and Joint Venture Companies accounted
for using Equity Method of Accounting (1.91) (0.63)
(57.36) 55.56
Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Income Tax Relating to Re-measurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations 3.13 (1.80)
Income Tax Relating to Changes in Fair Values of FVTOCI Equity Instruments 5.89 (18.87)
9.02 (20.67)
(ii) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Changes in Fair Values of FVTOCI Debt Instruments 68.85 41.22
Cash Flow Hedges (63.04) (26.81)
Share of Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (FCTR) and FVTOCI Debt Instruments of
Associate and Joint Venture Companies accounted for using Equity Method of Accounting 27.24 7.38
33.05 21.79
Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Income Tax Effect - Net Movement on FVTOCI Debt Instruments (11.49) (7.33)
Income Tax Effect - Net Movement on Cash Flow Hedges 15.87 6.74
4.38 (0.59)
Other Comprehensive Income from Continuing Operations (10.91) 56.09
Discontinued Operations
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Re-measurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations (0.11) 0.85
Income Tax Relating to Re-measurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations 0.03 (0.21)
Other Comprehensive Income from Discontinued Operations (0.08) 0.64
Total Other Comprehensive Income from Total Operations (10.99) 56.73
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 39
DISCLOSURE AS REQUIRED BY INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD (Ind AS) 33 - EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025  31% March 2024
Weighted-Average Number of Equity Shares for calculation of Basic EPS 2,60,41,85,255 2,55,53,68,985
Add: Dilutive Impact of Employee Stock Options 2,29,12,543 1,96,30,531
Weighted-Average Number of Equity Shares for calculation of Diluted EPS 2,62,70,97,798 2,57,49,99,516
Nominal Value of Shares () 10.00 10.00
Continuing Operations
Profit for the year for calculation of Basic EPS 3,318.32 3,309.67
Profit for the year for calculation of Diluted EPS (Net of Impact of Employee
Stock Options of subsidiaries. Joint Venture and Associates) 3,314.77 3,309.67
Basic EPS () 12.74 12.95
Diluted EPS (%) 12.62 12.85
Discontinued Operations
Profit for the year for calculation of Basic and Diluted EPS 14.00 25.30
Basic EPS (%) 0.05 0.10
Diluted EPS (%) 0.05 0.10
Total Operations
Profit for the year for calculation of Basic EPS 3,318.32 3,309.67
Profit for the year for calculation of Diluted EPS 3,314.77 3,309.67
Basic EPS (%) 12.80 13.05

Diluted EPS (3) 12.67 12.95




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31°' March 2025
(R in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 40
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR

A)

B)

i)

i)

i)

Claims against the Group not Acknowledged as Debts

Nature of the Statute Brief Description of Contingent Liabilities o Asat st Asar
31> March 2025 31° March 2024
Goods and Services Tax |Various cases pertaining to indirect taxes like disallowance of CENVAT, 141.23 154.55
Act, 2017/Service Tax credit of Service Tax and show cause-cum-demand notices relating to
Service Tax
Income-tax Act, 1961 Various cases pertaining to demand in tax assessment for various years 74.54 43.40
Other Statutes Claims pending in Consumer Redressal Forums, Lok Adalat, National 71.51 108.57
Commission, Motor accidental claims tribunal, Arbitrator, in other,
Courts/authorities, other legal matter and claims against the Company not
acknowledged as debts
Grand Total 287.28 306.53

Guarantees given by the Group

Includes Corporate Guarantees given to the National Housing Bank on behalf of its subsidiary Aditya Birla Housing Finance Limited (ABHFL) of ¥
3,500 crore up to 31st March 2025, (Previous Year as at 31st March 2024 is ¥ 3,500 crore), against which the amount outstanding in the books of
ABHFL as at 31st March 2025, is ¥ 1,234.45 crore (Previous Year as at 31st March 2024, ¥ 1,607.52 crore). As per the terms of the Guarantee, the

Company’s liability is capped at the outstanding amount on invocation.

Includes Guarantees given by the Group or on behalf of its clients of 3 315.68 crore as at 31st March 2025. (Previous Year as at 31st March 2024

is X 76.17 crore).

Includes Performance Guarantees issued to Pension Fund Regulatory Development authority (PFRDA) of ¥ 0.20 crore as at 31st March 2025.

(Previous Year as at 31st March 2024 is ¥ 0.20 crore).




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 41
CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
- As at As at
articutars B1st March 2025| 31st March 2024
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital 93.03 97.80
Account and not provided for (Net of Advances) '
- Towards Intangible Assets 58.00 58.71
- Towards Property, Plant and Equipment and Others 35.03 39.09
b) Uncalled Liabilities on Shares and other Investments partly paid 263.88 149.81

c) Undisbursed commitments where NBFC does not have an unconditional right to cancel the undrawn /
unavailed / unused portion of the loan at any time during the subsistence of the loan- % Nil.

d) The sanctioned but partially undisbursed amount of Aditya Birla Housing Finance Limited stands at ¥
5,989.90 crore (31st March 2024: ¥ 2,892.38 crore); whereas sanctioned but fully undisbursed amount
stands at X 3,711.26 crore (31st March 2024: ¥ 1,824.55 crore)




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31°%' March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 42

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD (Ind AS) 116 - LEASES

Following are the changes in the carrying value of Right-of-Use Assets for the year ended 31 March 2025:

Particulars Right-of-Use
Assets
Gross Carrying Value
Balance as at 1 April 2023 709.69
Additions 364.21
Disposals 96.96
Balance as at 31° March 2024 976.94
Additions 220.86
Disposals 31.99
De-recognised on account of Sale of Aditya Birla 17.78
Insurance Brokers Limited
Balance as at 31° March 2025 1,148.03
Accumulated Amortisation
As at 1% April 2023 316.11
Additions 127.04
Disposals 31.71
Balance as at 31°' March 2024 411.44
Additions 14542
Disposals 12.06
De-recognised on account of Sale of Aditya Birla 11.36
Insurance Brokers Limited
Balance as at 31° March 2025 533.44
Net Carrying Value as at 31st March 2024 565.50
Net Carrying Value as at 31st March 2025 614.59

Amounts Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31% March 2025| 31 March 2024
Amortisation Expenses on Right-of-Use Assets 145.42 127.04
Interest Expenses on Lease Liabilities 48.29 41.65
Expenses Relating to Short-Term Leases 33.22 7.79
Expenses Relating to Leases of Low Value Assets 34.31 27.85
Income from Sub-Leasing Right-of-Use Assets 19.88 10.44
Gains/(Losses) Arising from Changes in Lease 2.04 419
Agreements
Others - 9.71

The following is the break-up of Current and Non-Current Lease Liabilities as at 31%t March 2025

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31% March 2025 31 March 2024
Current Lease Liabilities 146.24 145.62
Non-Current Lease Liabilities 515.51 453.62
Total 661.75 599.24




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 42
The following is the Movement in Lease Liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2025
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31% March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening Balance 599.24 416.73
Additions 217.27 354.47
Disposal (29.42) (80.30)
Finance Cost Accrued 48.29 41.65
Payment of Lease Liabilities (166.75) (133.31)
De-recognised on account of Sale of Aditya Birla (6.88) -
Insurance Brokers Limited
Closing Balance 661.75 599.24

The table below provides details regarding the Contractual Maturities of Lease Liabilities as at 31
March 2025 on an undiscounted basis: '

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31% March 2025| 31° March 2024
Less than one year 167.64 150.64
One to five years 491.71 437.51
More than five years 148.84 146.25
Total 808.19 734.40

The Group does not face any significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities, as the current assets
are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

/;;; .
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 43

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS (CWIP)/INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT (IAUD)

(a) Capital Work in Progress

Ageing Schedule of Capital Work-in-Progress as on 31% March 2025:

Amount in CWIP for a Period of

Particulars Total
Less than 1 Year| 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years

Projects in Progress 21.80 0.28 - - 22.08

Projects Temporarily Suspended - - - - -

Ageing Schedule of Capital Work-in-Progress as on 31 March 2024:

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a Period of Total
Less than 1 Year| 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years

Projects in Progress 9.65 - - - 9.65

Projects Temporarily Suspended - - - - -

(b) Intangible Assets Under Development

Ageing Schedule of Intangible Assets Under Development as on 31% March 2025:

Particulars Amount in IAUD for a Period of Total
Less than 1 Year| 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years

Projects in Progress 98.20 0.85 1.03 - 100.08

Projects Temporarily Suspended - - - < =

Ageing Schedule of Intangible Assets Under Development as on 31% March 2024:

Particulars Amount in IAUD for a Period of Total
Less than 1 Year| 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years

Projects in Progress 80.55 3.68 0.30 0.05 84.58

Projects Temporarily Suspended - - - - -
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(X in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 44
CURRENT INCOME TAX

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31% March 2025 31° March 2024
Current Tax and Short/(Excess) Provision for Current Tax Related to Earlier Years (Net)
Continuing Operations 1,409.75 1,090.75
Discontinued Operations 9.23 16.65
Deferred Tax:
Continuing Operations 51.20 35.90
Discontinued Operations (0.27) 0.17
Total Tax Expenses 1,469.91 1,143.47
The tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to accounting profit as follows :
Profit before tax from Continuing Operations 4,842.84 4,514.93
Profit before tax from Discontinued Operations 36.96 67.43
Profit before tax from Total Operations 4,879.80 4,582.36
Applicable tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Income tax expenses 1,228.15 1,153.29
Tax effect of :
Short/(Excess) Provision for Current Tax Related to Earlier Years (Net) 1.27 (31.09)
Deduction under Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income tax Act, 196 (9.69) (7.16)
Allocation of Bonus to Policyholders 50.53 47.29
Incomfs Taxed at Diffe.refnt Rates (including tax on gain on sale of investment in an (35.63) (100.75)
Associate and a Subsidiary company)
Tax Effect of Share of Associate and Joint Venture Companies (104.90) (76.60)
Deferred Tax on undistributed earnings of Associate and Joint Venture Companies 60.34 58.71
Deferred Tax not created on loss making Companies * 85.01 46.08
Income not Considered for Tax Purpose (0.84) (8.07)
Others 195.67 61.77
1,469.91 1,143.47

At the effective Income Tax Rate of 30.12% (31 March 2024: 24.95%)

* In line with accounting policy of the Group, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unabsorbed depreciation and unused tax
losses can be utilised. Accordingly, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of carry forward of unabsorbed
depreciation and unused tax losses of ¥ 43.29 crore and ¥ 521.87 crore as of 31st March 2025, as it is not probable that taxable

profits will be available in future.

The unrecognised tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation expiring within five years and above five years are as follows -

Particulars As at As at
31° March 2025 31° March 2024

Expiry Date
Within five years 10.76 28.63
Above five years 511.11 198.24
Unlimited 43.29 21.05
565.16 247.92
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 45

List of Related Parties with whom the Group has transactions during the year
Holding Company

Grasim Industries Limited

Associate and Joint Ventures

Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Limited

Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited
Aditya Birla Sun Life Trustee Private Limited
Aditya Birla Wellness Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries
UltraTech Cement Limited

ABREL (MP) Renewables Limited

ABREL EPC Limited

ABREL Green Energy Limited

ABREL Solar Power Limited

ABREL SPV 2 Limited

Aditya Birla Renewables Energy Limited
Aditya Birla Renewables Green Power Private Limited (formerly known as Waacox Energy
Private Limited)

Aditya Birla Renewables Limited

Aditya Birla Renewables Solar Limited
Aditya Birla Renewables SPV 1 Limited
Aditya Birla Renewables Subsidiary Limited
Aditya Birla Renewables Utkal Limited
Grasim Business Services Private Limited

Joint Ventures / Associates of Holding company and its Subsidiaries
Aditya Birla Science & Technology Company Private Limited
Bhubaneswari Coal Mining Limited

Birla Advanced Knits Private Limited

02 Renewable Energy XXI| Private Limited

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and its Holding Company

Mr. Kumar Mangalam Birla (Chairman and Non-Executive Director)

Dr. Santrupt Misra (Non-Executive Director) (Ceased to be a Director w.e.f. 18th August 2023)
Mr. Sushil Agarwal (Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Romesh Sobti (Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Arun Kumar Adhikari (Independent Director)

Mr. P. H. Ravikumar (Independent Director)

Mr. S. C. Bhargava (Independent Director) (Ceased to be a Director w.e.f. 31st August 2024)
Ms. Vijayalakshmi Rajaram lyer (Independent Director)

Ms. Vishakha Mulye (Chief Executive Officer - Aditya Birla Capital Limited)

Mr. Rakesh Singh (Chief Executive Officer - Lending Business)

Mr. Tushar Shah (Chief Executive Officer- Project & Structured Finance - Lending Business)

Mr. Harikrishna Agarwal (Managing Director of Grasim Industries Limited) (Ceased to be a

Director w.e.f. 31st March 2025)
Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta (Independent Director - Grasim Industries Limited)
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
(R in crore except otherwise stated)

Other Related Parties in which Key Managerial Personnel or their close members are interested
Aditya Birla Management Corporation Private Limited

Birla Management Centre Services Private Limited (Ceased to be related party w.e.f. 1st August 2024)
Birla Group Holdings Private Limited

Chaitanya India Fin Credit Private Limited

Svatantra Microfin Private Limited

Svatantra Online Services Private Limited

Applause Entertainment Private Limited

Azure Jouel Private Limited

Olive Bar & Kitchen Private Limited

Close members of Key Managerial Personnel
Ms. Neerja Birla

Ms. Advaitesha Birla

Ms. Vibha Singh

Ms. Anahita Singh

Ms. Anushka Singh

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Gupta

Post- Employment Benefit Plans

Century Rayon Employees' Provident Fund Trust No.1
Century Rayon Employees' Provident Fund Trust No.2
Grasim Industries Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund
UltraTech Provident Fund
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)

During the year ended 31st March, 2025 the following tran

sactions were carried out with the related parties:

Joint Ventures / | Key Managerial
Holdin Associate Fellow Associates of | Personnel of the Other
Particulars 9| and Joint . Holding company | Company and its| related Grand Total
Company Subsidiaries : . .
Ventures and its Holding parties
subsidiaries Company
Interest Income/Fair value gain
: o 0.58 - - - - 0.58
Grasim Industries Limited (2.31) ; _ R R - (2.31)
— - - 2.60 - - - 2.60
UltraTech Cement Limited R R (1.51) . - _ (1.51)
Aditya Birla Renewables Green Power Private Limited ) i L i i . 2
- - (5.22) - - - (5.22)
s - - 12.54 - - - 12.54
ABREL EPC Limited B _ (24.35) _ R - (24.35)
. o T s - - - - - 3.94 3.94
Chaitanya India Fin Credit Private Limited ) R _ _ R (3.60) (3.60)
02 Renewable Energy XXII Private Limited ) ) ) 5_'74 ) i 5_'74
Birla Advanced Knits Private Limited . : : 1_24 : : 1_'24
. . o - - - - - 13.54 13.54
Applause Entertainment Private Limited B _ ~ B _ (25.26) (25.26)
. L - - - - - 3.80 3.80
Azure Jouel Private Limited R _ _ . - (10.13) (10.13)
- - - - - 0.19 - 0.19
Ms. Vishakha Mulye ; R _ R (0.20) = (0.20)
TOTAL 0.58 - 20.26 6.98 0.19 21.28 49.29
(2.31) - (31.08) - (0.20) (38.99) (72.58)
Dividend Income
. . . i - 175.02 - - - - 175.02
Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Limited _ (75.62) _ ~ - 3 (75.62)
- 175.02 - - - - 175.02
TOTAL . (75.62) - - - - (75.62)
Brokerage/Commission Income
Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Limited - i ) ) ] : ol
- (2.66) - - - - (2.66)
) . a - 80.86 - - - - 80.86
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited R (54.22) _ . _ N (54.22)
. o 0.43 - - - - - 0.43
Grasim Industries Limited (0.26) _ _ . - _ (0.26)
— - z 052 . - - 0.52
UltraTech Cement Limited _ z (0.20) - - 2 (0.20)
Aditya Birla Renewables Green Power Private Limited ) ) 001 : ) ) o
- (0.01) - - - (0.01)
. . L - - - - - 0.25 0.25
Svatantra Microfin Private Limited R _ _ R - (0.18) (0.18)
Aditya Birla Science & Technology Company Private Limited ) ) ) 0.15 i i o
ya Bir gy Company . . 5 (0.08) - - (0.08)
— - - 0.03 - - - 0.03
ABREL SPV 2 Limited _ _ (0.01) - - - (0.01)
: S - - - 0.03 - - 0.03
Bhubaneswari Coal Mining Limited R _ _ (0.07) . - (0.01)
Aditya Birla Renewables Limited : : 0_59 _ : : 0..59
ABREL Green Energy Limited - : 0_'01 _ : : 0.'01
. : i - - 0.01 - - - 0.01
Aditya Birla Renewables Energy Limited ) R (0.01) _ _ _ (0.01)
Aditya Birla Renewables Solar Limited : : 0_'01 : _ : 0_.01
Aditya Birla Renewables SPV 1 Limited - i B . i : t
) ) . . - z 3 B N - R
Aditya Birla Renewables Subsidiary Limited R R (0.01) _ R - (0.01)
ABREL Solar Power Limited - . . _ : : r ¢
Aditya Birla Renewables Utkal Limited - ' _ . _ : _ 2 ’
ABREL (MP) Renewables Limited ) : ® : . ) Ut
Svatantra Online Services Private Limited _ _ _ _ _ - b & ¢
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)

During the vear ended 31st March, 2025 the following tran

sactions were carried out with the related parties:

Joint Ventures / | Key Managerial
. Associate Associates of Personnel of the Other
. Holding 7 Fellow - R
Particulars and Joint I Holding company | Company and its | related Grand Total
Company Subsidiaries i . .
Ventures and its Holding parties
subsidiaries Company
Olive Bar & Kitchen Private Limited ) . : ) ) : 7
- - - - - (0.01) (0.01)
_ = : - - 0.12 - 0.12
Mr. Rakesh Singh ) _ - s (0.08) - (0.08)
Ms. Vibha Singh ) i : : : 001 o0t
Ms. Neerja Birla : _ : - : 0_.01 0-.01
Ms. Anushka Singh : _ _ : . " ¢ 5 #
Ms. Anahita Singh . : : . ) M P
Ms. Advaitesha Birla : - : A - - t . :
Mr. Harikrishna Agarwal _ : : _ - § . - ’
Mr. Adesh Kumar Gupta - : : - _ ¢ : . .
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Gupta - ¢ - ’
TOTAL 0.43 82.43 1.18 0.18 0.12 0.27 84.61
(0.26) (56.88) (0.24) (0.09) (0.08) (0.19) (57.74)
Insurance Income
. T 1.58 - - - - - 1.58
Grasim Industries Limited (3.58) _ _ R - . (3.58)
- N B 1.66 “ - - 1.66
UltraTech Cement Limited B _ (3.74) _ _ . (3.74)
. . L - - 0.03 - - - 0.03
Aditya Birla Renewables Limited R _ (0.07) _ _ N (0.07)
. . ) . o - - 0.09 - - - 0.09
Grasim Business Services Private Limited R _ (0.02) _ _ _ (0.02)
. - o - - - 0.03 - - 0.03
Bhubaneswari Coal Mining Limited R _ B (0.07) _ " (0.07)
Aditya Birla Science & Technology Company Private Limited ) ) ) Gdid i i 903
- - - (0.05) - - (0.05)
1.58 - 1.78 0.06 - - 3.42
TOTAL (3.58) . (3.83) (0.12) - - (7.53)
Rent Income
Aditya Birla Wellness Private Limited ~ (0.41) _ R . . (0.41)
: 2 . L - 9.33 - - - - 9.33
Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Limited R (7.65) _ _ R = (7.65)
: ; o - 10.66 - - - - 10.66
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited R (8.91) _ _ _ a (8.91)
- 19.99 - - - - 19.99
TOTAL _ (16.97) . o . - (16.97)
Sale of Services
) . . L - 0.87 - - - - 0.87
Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Limited - (2.35) : 2 - - (2.35)
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited R (3.02) _ _ _ - (3.02)
= 0.87 - - - - 0.87
TOTAL . (5.37) . & - - (5.37)
Interest Expenses
. o 7.04 - - . § - £eld
Grasim Industries Limited (0.24) _ R - - - (0.24)
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited : 1_86 _ : _ 1_'86
- R = - - - 0.73 0.73
UltraTech Provident Fund R _ _ _ - (0.73) (0.73)
) - N - - = - 0.38 0.38
Century Rayon Employees' Provident Fund Trust No.2 } : ; R R (0.38) (0.38)
; ) - - - - - 0.08 0.08
Century Rayon Employees' Provident Fund Trust No.1 } B B B _ (0.08) (0.08)
7.04 1.86 - - - 1.19 10.09
TOTAL (0.24) - - - . (1.19) (1.43)




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

During the year ended 31st March, 2025 the following tran

sactions were carried out with the related parties:

Joint Ventures / | Key Managerial
Holdin Associate Fellow Associates of | Personnel of the Other
Particulars 9 and Joint . Holding company | Company and its| related Grand Total
Company Subsidiaries - . .
Ventures and its Holding parties
subsidiaries Company
Dividend Paid
Birla Group Holdings Private Limited : : _ - : 61_'56 61_'56
TOTAL 61-.56 61-.56
Payment of Other Services
; oo b 0.16 - - - - - 0.16
Grasim Industries Limited (0.53) B _ B R < (0.53)
; ; ; Py - 4.99 - - - - 4.99
Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Limited R (2.62) _ _ _ R (2.62)
. 3 : i - 0.42 - - - - 0.42
Aditya Birla Wellness Private Limited R (0.34) _ _ _ - (0.34)
4 . : ; s - - - - - 0.96 0.96
Aditya Birla Management Corporation Private Limited } B B _ _ (0.40) (0.40)
. - - 0.01 - - - 0.01
UltraTech Cement Limited B ~ (0.19) _ _ - (0.19)
. . - - 1.23 - - - - 1.23
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited } (3.80) ; R R R (3.80)
: ) : . - - - - - 6.17 6.17
Birla Management Centre Services Private Limited ; ; _ _ - (6.49) (6.49)
Birla Group Holdings Private Limited : : : - : 0_02 0_'02
0.16 6.64 0.01 - - 715 13.96
TOTAL (0.53) (6.76) (0.19) - 5 (6.89) (14.37)
Receipts against Reimbursement of Expenses
Grasim Industries Limited 1_31 : _ _ 1.-31
. . . . - 0.16 - - - - 0.16
Aditya Birla Wellness Private Limited R (0.31) B R B . (0.31)
Aditya Birla Management Corporation Private Limited : A _ _ 0_07 0:07
; ; . o - 61.06 - - - - 61.06
Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Limited _ (58.89) ~ _ - . (58.89)
: - o - 32.32 - - - - 32.32
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited B (34.64) R R R . (34.64)
Birla Management Centre Services Private Limited : : : _ : 0_03 0_'03
1.31 93.54 - - - 0.10 94.95
TOTAL - (93.84) - - - - (93.84)
Other Expenses
; . ) ; - - - - - - 79.13 79.13
Aditya Birla Management Corporation Private Limited ~ B B s - (52.35) (52.35)
. : . L - 0.83 - - - - 0.83
Aditya Birla Wellness Private Limited ) (0.52) _ . _ R (0.52)
: : : L - 1.38 - - - - 1.38
Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Limited ; (0.99) _ _ _ . (0.99)
s ; L - 0.52 - - - - 0.52
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited } (0.12) _ _ R o (0.12)
: i 0.87 - - - - - 0.87
Grasim Industries Limited (0.01) _ _ R _ - (0.01)
— = - - - - 0.27 0.27
Ms. Anahita Singh B . B R ; (0.25) (0.25)
0.87 2.73 - - - 79.40 83.00
FOTAL (0.01) (1.63) : - - (52.60) (54.24)
Contribution/(Receipt) to PF/Gratuity Fund Trust
i . i ) N - = - - 2.50 2.50
Grasim Industries Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund ] ; ~ _ _ (1.08) (1.08)
R - - - - 2.50 2.50
TOTAL . . . - : (1.08) (1.08)




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)

During the year ended 31st March, 2025 the following tran

sactions were carried out with the related parties:

Joint Ventures / | Key Managerial
Holdin Associate Fellow Associates of Personnel of the Other
Particulars 91 and Joint . Holding company | Company and its| related Grand Total
Company Subsidiaries ; ! .
Ventures and its Holding parties
subsidiaries Company
Loans and advances given
L - - 16.00 - - - 16.00
ABREL EPC Limited ) } (315.66) ) ) ] (318.66)
02 Renewable Energy XXII Private Limited i ) ; 115_-00 - - 115_.00
Birla Advanced Knits Private Limited : : : st : ; 1900
. ) L - - - - - 375.00 375.00
Applause Entertainment Private Limited } ) ) } i} (300.00) (300.00)
; L - - - - - 120.00 120.00
Azure Jouel Private Limited ] ] ] ) ] (330.00) (330.00)
- - 16.00 130.00 - 495.00 641.00
TOTAL - - (318.66) - - (630.00) (948.66)
Repayment of Loans and Advances
. . : L - - 2.1 - - - 211
Aditya Birla Renewables Green Power Private Limited ] ] (2.46) ] ] } (2.46)
iy - - 220.00 - - - 220.00
ABREL EPC Limited } ] (286.00) ) } } (286.00)
Birla Advanced Knits Private Limited i i ) 0_01 ) i 0.'01
: . L - - - - - 500.00 500.00
Applause Entertainment Private Limited } } ) } R (175.00) (175.00)
: o - - - - - 210.00 210.00
Azure Jouel Private Limited ] B ] } ] (240.00) (240.00)
: - - - - 0.40 - 0.40
Ms. Vishakha Mulye } ) B } (0.39) ) (0.39)
- - 222.11 0.01 0.40 710.00 932.52
TOTAL - - (288.46) - (0.39) (415.00) (703.85)
Investments made during the year
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited : 183_'55 : : : : 183-.55
Aditya Birla Wellness Private Limited ) 7_14 ) ) ) ) 7_'14
. s s L - - - - - 33.36 33.36
Chaitanya India Fin Credit Private Limited ] ] ) } ] (25.11) (25.11)
- 190.69 - - - 33.36 224.05
10TAk ] . : . . (25.11) (25.11)
Payment Received on redemption of Investment in NCDs
Grasim Industries Limited 10_'00 ) ) i ) ) 10_'00
; 5 o L - - - - - 33.72 33.72
Chaitanya India Fin Credit Private Limited ] } } ) } (42.62) (42.62)
10.00 - - - - 33.72 43.72
TRTAL ; s : - . (42.62) (42.62)
Assignment of Receivables
L - - 159.82 - - - 159.82
UltraTech Cement Limited ] ] (9.03) ) ] } (9.03)
Grasim Industries Limited 648.27 : - - - : 648.27
648.27 - 159.82 - - - 808.09
TOTAL s : (9.03) ] : . (9.03)
Inter Corporate Borrowings Received
. i 25.00 - - - - - 25.00
Grasim Industries Limited (50.00) ] ] ; ) } (50.00)
25.00 - - - - - 25.00
i (50.00) - - y - - (50.00)
Inter Corporate Borrowings repaid
Grasim Industries Limited 75_'00 ) i ) i ) 75_'00
TOTAL 75..00 75:00




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)

During the year ended 31st March, 2025 the following tran

sactions were carried out with the related parties:

Joint Ventures / | Key Managerial
Holdin Associate Associates of | Personnel of the
Particulars 9 and Joint Holding company | Company and its Grand Total
Company y
Ventures and its Holding
subsidiaries Company
Payment to Key Management Personnel(s)
Director Sitting Fees
Mr. Kumar Mangalam Birla _ : (8'32) (3'32)
Dr. Santrupt Misra _ : _ {0-08) (0-08)
Mr. Sushil Agarwal : - : (g‘;;) (3.;;)
Mr. Romesh Sobti _ : (8'82) (3'32)
Mr. Arun Kumar Adhikari _ _ (ggg) (8'32)
Mr. P. H. Ravikumar _ : (g';g) (g.;;
Mr. S. C. Bhargava : : (8'23) (g-;g)
Ms. Vijayalakshmi Rajaram lyer : : _ (8‘;;) (gl;;)
Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel(s)
. = - 31.41 31.41
Short-term Employee Benefits B _ _ (25.81) (25.81)
Other Long Term Benefits : : _ (5;3) (5';:)
Post Employment Benefits : _ : (8'2;) (g'g;)
R - - 36.00 36.00
TOTAL . s - (30.37) (30.37)
Deposit Given/Paid Back
Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Limited i 0.12 : i o2
s (0.06) - - (0.06)
- 0.12 - - 0.12
TOTAL : (0.06) - - (0.06)
Deposit Taken/ Received Back
. . . - - 0.98 - - 0.98
Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Limited R (0.22) _ - (0.22)
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited ) g i i 3
Y : - (0.54) - - (0.54)
- 2.29 - - 2.29
TOTAL . (0.76) 4 - (0.76)
Payment Received for Non-Convertible Debentures
Grasim Industries Limited 210j00 210.'00
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited ' 254'00 : : 25_'00
TOTAL 210-.00 25..00 235-.00
Purchase of Asset
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited _ 0_14 : : 0:14
TOTAL : Gl . . o1
Transfer of Asset
Aditya Birla Sun life AMC Limited i 0.09 : : 0.09
TOTAL 0-.09 0-.09
—




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)

During the year ended 31st March, 2025 the following tran

sactions were carried out with the related parties:

Joint Ventures /

Key Managerial

Holdin Associate Fellow Associates of Personnel of the Other
Particulars 91 and Joint . Holding company | Company and its| related Grand Total
Company Subsidiaries ; 2 ;
Ventures and its Holding parties
subsidiaries Company
Equity Accounted Investments
" ; . L - 1,674.96 - - - - 1,674.96
Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Limited ] (1,430.44) A . } } (1,430.44)
: ’ L - 3,169.62 - - - - 3,169.62
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited } (2,957.65) ) } } R (2,957.65)
: ; ; . - - 1.06 - - - - 1.06
Aditya Birla Sun Life Trustee Private Limited ] (0.86) ] ) ; } (0.86)
. : : o - 11.53 - - - - 11.53
Aditya Birla Wellness Private Limited } (9.14) } } } ~ (9.14)
- 4,85717 - - - - 4,857.17
TOTAL - (4,398.09) - - - - (4,398.09)
Outstanding Balances
Loans and Advances
) . : o o - - 51.45 - - - 51.45
Aditya Birla Renewables Green Power Private Limited ] } (53.56) } ) R (53.56)
L - - 33.73 - - - 33.73
ABREL EPC Limited ] } (237.73) B B R (237.73)
02 Renewable Energy XXII Private Limited ) i i 115_'00 ) ) 115_'00
Birla Advanced Knits Private Limited ) ) i 14_'99 ) i 14_'99
Applause Entertainment Pvt Ltd ] ] } } : (125.00) (125.00)
Azure Jouel Pvt Ltd } } ; ; ; (90.00) (90.00)
; - - - - 5.20 - 5.20
Ms. Vishakha Mulye R R ; : (5.60) R (5.60)
- - 85.18 129.99 5.20 - 220.37
oL . ] (291.29) ) (5.60)|  (215.00) (511.89)
Borrowings including Inter Corporate Borrowings / Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs)
; : L - 35.00 - - - - 35.00
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited ] (9.99) ) } } R (9.99)
: S 210.00 - - - - - 210.00
Grasim Industries Limited (50.00) ] } ; ) R (50.00)
- p = - - - 8.00 8.00
UltraTech Provident Fund ] ; ) : ) (8.00) (8.00)
. - s - - - - 4.30 4.30
Century Rayon Employees' Provident Fund Trust No.2 } } } } ) (4.30) (4.30)
: ) - = = - - 0.90 0.90
Century Rayon Employees' Provident Fund Trust No.1 } } } A } (0.90) (0.90)
210.00 35.00 - - - 13.20 258.20
TOTAL (50.00) (9.99) ] . ] (13.20) (73.19)
Deposit receivable
Aditya Birla Sun life AMC Limited ) b1 ) ) ) ) ol
- (1.72) - - - - (1.72)
: : . - 0.06 - - - - 0.06
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited } (0.06) } } } ) (0.06)
Aditya Birla Management Corporation Private Limited ) ) ) ) ) 6.15 6.15
- - - - - (6.15) (6.15)
- 1.77 - - - 6.15 7.92
TOTH. . (1.78) . . : (6.15) (7.93)
Deposit payable
; . . L - 2.70 - - - - 2.70
Aditya Birla Sun life AMC Limited } (1.72) ) } } B (1.72)
: : L - 3.12 - - - - 3.12
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited ] (1.82) ) } } R (1.82)
- 5.82 - - - - 5.82
TOTAL . (3.54) . 5 : . (3.54)
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

During the year ended 31st March, 2025 the following tran

sactions were carried out with the related parties:

Joint Ventures / | Key Managerial
Holdin Associate Fellow Associates of Personnel of the Other
Particulars 91" and Joint R Holding company | Company and its| related Grand Total
Company Subsidiaries " . i
Ventures and its Holding parties
subsidiaries Company
Investments in NCD
: o 25.11 - - - - - 2511
Grasim Industries Limited (29.99) R - 3 - - (29.99)
. - - 65.23 - - - 65.23
UltraTech Cement Limited _ R (19.99) = - - (19.99)
; o s o . - - - - - 24.16 24.16
Chaitanya India Fin Credit Private Limited } } } ] ) (23.51) (23.51)
25.11 - 65.23 - - 24.16 114.50
TOTRL (29.99) - (19.99) - - (23.51) (73.49)
Others
. - 50.13 1.76 - - 15.80 67.69

Amount Receivables (11.74) (60.95) (0.53) B - (3.19) (76.41)
Amourit Pavablas 6.69 5.50 0.06 0.10 - 12.27 24.62

Y (0.39) (2.89) (0.07) (0.11) - (11.15) (14.61)

- Figures of ¥ 50,000 or less have been denoted by B.

- Figures in brackets represent corresponding amount of Previous Year.
- The related party relationships have been as identified by the management on the basis of the requirements of the Indian Accounting Standard Ind AS - 24 ‘Related Party

Disclosures’ and the same have been relied upon by the Auditors.
- Other related parties includes "Other Related Parties in which Key Managerial Personnel or their close members are interested", "Close members of Key Managerial Personnel"

and "Post- Employment Benefit Plans"

- Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel excludes provision for gratuity, pension and compensated absences, since it is provided on actuarial basis for the Group as a whole.

- The Non-Convertible Debentures' balance shown above includes purchase and sale from secondary market and are held by related party as on reporting dates.
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31°' March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 46

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Disclosure in respect of Employee Benefits pursuant to Ind AS 19

A. The details of the Group’s Defined Benefit Plans in respect of Gratuity (Funded by the Group):

General Description of the Plan and Nature of Benefits:
The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan (funded). The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, employee who
has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and last drawn

salary.

As at/ As at/
Particulars For the Year For the Year ended
ended

31* March 2025 31% March 2024

Amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of Gratuity

Present Value of the funded Defined Benefit Obligation 203.74 171.73
Rights from insurance policies that exactly match the amount and timing of some of the benefits payable under 181.24 165.29
the plan. Those benefits have a present value of ¥ 181.24 crore

Amounts recognised in Employee Benefits Expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of

Gratuity

Current Service Cost © 2243 19.66
Interest on Net Defined Benefit Liabilities/(Assets) 0.24 0.37
Less: Recovery from Associate and Joint Venture Companies (0.60) (0.33)
Net Gratuity Cost 22.07 19.70
Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for the Year

Actual Return on Reimbursement Rights excluding Interest Income 1.28 (4.30)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions (5.22) 6.90
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 13.31 (3.54)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience assumptions 15.38 4.09
Less: Amount Recovered from Associate and Joint Venture Companies (0.48) (0.46)
Closing Amount recognised in OCI 24.27 2.69

Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 171.73 144.99
Current Service Cost 22.43 19.66
Interest Cost 11.75 10.32
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 24.07 7.06
Benefits Paid (20.80) (12.18)
Impact of Liabilities Assumed or (Settled) (0.40) 1.88
De-recognised on account of sale of Aditya Birla Insurance Brokers Limited (5.95) -
Opening Liabilities transferred from Unfunded to Funded 0.91 -
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 203.74 171.73
Change in Fair Value of the Reimbursement Rights:

Opening Fair Value of the Reimbursement Rights 165.29 136.31
Interest Income on Reimbursement Rights 11.51 9.95
Actual Return on Reimbursement Rights less Interest on Reimbursement Rights (1.28) 4.30
Contributions by the Employer 14.30 21.64
De-recognised on account of sale of Aditya Birla Insurance Brokers Limited (8.01) -
Benefits Paid (0.57) (6.90)
Closing Fair Value of the Reimbursement Rights 181.24 165.29

Funding Arrangement and Policy
The money contributed by the Group to the fund to finance the liabilities of the plan has to be invested. The trustees of the plan are required to invest the
funds as per the prescribed pattern of investments laid out in the Income Tax Rules for such approved schemes.

107122W /
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31°' March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)
As at/ For the As at/ For the Year
Year ended ended

31% March 2025 31% March 2024

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 26.71 20.28
More than 1 and upto 5 years 92.22 75.46
Above 5 years 141.33 133.15
The weighted-average duration to the payment of these cash flows 3.5 Yearsto 11 Years 4 Years to 11 Years

Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as below:
Increase/Decrease in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation for the Year

i) 50 bps Increase in Discount Rate (3.48)% (3.51)%
ii) 50 bps Decrease in Discount Rate 2.89% 3.04%
iii) 50 bps Increase in the Rate of Salary Escalation 2.89% 3.18%
iv) 50 bps Decrease in the Rate of Salary Escalation (3.50)% (3.65)%

Sensitivity Analysis Method

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation, and assuming there are no other changes in the
market conditions at the accounting date. There have been no changes from the previous periods in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the
sensitivity analysis.

Disaggregation of the Reimbursement Rights

Non-Quoted Value

Government of India Securities 0.93% 1.33%
Corporate Bonds 0.24% 0.32%
Insurer Managed Funds 85.84% 83.81%
Others 12.99% 14.54%

100% 100%

Fair Value of the Reimbursement Rights include:
Group’s own Financial Instruments 155.57 138.53

Principal Actuarial Assumptions at the Balance Sheet Date

Discount Rate 6.50% - 6.70% 7.15% - 7.21%
Salary Escalation 7% - 10% 7% - 10%
Expected Return on reimbursement rights 6.50% - 6.70% 7.15% - 7.21%

B. The details of the Group’s Defined Benefit Plans in respect of Gratuity (Unfunded by the Group):

As at/ For the  As at/ For the Year
Particulars Year ended ended
31° March 2025 31% March 2024
Amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of Gratuity
Present Value of the Unfunded Defined Benefit Obligation - 0.91

Amounts recognised in Employee Benefits Expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of

Gratuity
Current Service Cost (Unfunded) - 0.15
Interest on Defined Benefit Obligation - 0.07
Net Gratuity Cost - 0.22
Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for the Year
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions - 0.01
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience assumptions - (0.03)
- (0.02)
Change in Present Value of the Obligation:
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 0.91 0.97
Past Service Cost - -
Current Service Cost - 0.15
Interest Cost - 0.07
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions - 0.01
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience assumptions - (0.03)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss - (0.02)
Opening Liabilities transferred from Unfunded to Funded (0.91) -
Benefits Paid - (0.26)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation - 0.91
Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) - 0.01
More than 1 and upto 5 years - 0.61
Above 5 years - 0.18

The weighted-average duration to the payment of these cash flows 5 Years




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March 2025

( in crore except otherwise stated)
As at/Forthe  As at/ For the year

vear ended ended
31% March 2025 31% March 2024

Quantitative Sensitivity Analysis for Significant Assumption is as below:
Increase/Decrease in Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the Year (in %)

i) 50 bps Increase in Discount Rate - (3.30)%
ii) 50 bps Decrease in Discount Rate - 3.29%
iii) 50 bps Increase in the Rate of Salary Escalation - 3.29%
iv) 50 bps Decrease in the Rate of Salary Escalation - (3.30)%
Principal Actuarial Assumptions at the Balance Sheet Date

- 7.15%

Discount Rate

Salary Escalation - 7.00% - 7.50%

Estimated amount of contribution expected to be paid to the Gratuity Fund during the annual period after the Balance Sheet date is T 27.17 Crore (31st
March 2024

C - Defined Contribution Plan
For the Year For the Year ended

Particulars ended
31% March 2025 31° March 2024
The company has recognised the following amounts as expense in statement of profit and loss for the

year ended-

Provident Fund 79.66 60.96
National Pension Scheme 9.91 5.84
Employee Pension Fund 33.03 27.09
Employee State Insurance And Others 5.12 4.19
Employees Deposit Linked Insurance 1.65 1.36
Superannuation Fund 0.40 0.39
Maharashtra Labour Welfare Fund 0.05 0.03

129.82 99.86

FRN:

107122W/
W100672
MUMBAI




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
(X in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 47
DISCLOSURE UNDER EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS SCHEME

(A) Stock Options Scheme 2017
At the Annual General Meeting held on 19th July, 2017, the shareholders of the Company approved the grant of not more than 3,22,86,062 Equity Shares by way of grant of

Stock Options (“ESOPs”) and Restricted Stock Units (“"RSUs"). The Scheme aliows the Grant of Stock Options to employees of the Company, and its group company(ies)
including its Holding Company, Subsidiary Company(ies) and Associate Company(ies) (whether working in India or outside India) that meet the eligibility criteria. Each Stock

Option confers a right upon the Grantee to apply for 1 (one) Equity Share.

Granted during the Financial Year - 2023-2024 are given hereunder:

Features LTIP 2 LTIP 1 LTIP 1
Instrument ESOP RSU PRSU
Plan Period 2023-2026 2023-2024 2023-2025
Quantum of Grant 20.07.180 1.14.962 6.45.669

Vesting Period

50% vesting in| 1
first year and

00% vesting in one
year from the Date

100% vesting in|
second year from

3 years from the|

50% in second of Grant| the
year, Date of Grant

from the Date of|

Grant|
Vesting Condition(s) 75% of annual Continued 60% of|
planning & budget Employment Cumulative
targets planning & budget|
targets
Exercise Period 5 years from the 5 years from the| 5 years from the|
Date of Vesting Date of Vesting Date of Vesting
Grant Date 02.08.2023 02.08.2023 02.08.2023
Grant/Exercise Price (3 Per Share) 124.15 10.00 10.00;

Granted during the Financial Year - 2022-2023 are given hereunder:

Features LTIP 2 LTIP 1 LTIP 1
Instrument ESOP RSU RSU
Plan Period 2022-2025 2022-2023 2022-2023
Quantum of Grant 11.73.306 13.94.915 1.65.434
Vesting Period Equal vesting over| 100% Vesting at the| ~ 100% vesting at

end of one year|

the end of third

Date of Grant| from the Date of] year from the

Grant| Date of Grant

Vesting Condition(s) Continued Continued Continued

employment| employment employment

Exercise Period 5 years from the 5 years from the| 5 years from the|

Date of Vesting Date of Vesting Date of Vesting

Grant Date 01.08.2022 01.08.2022 15.03.2023

Grant/Exercise Price (¥ Per Share) 106.35 10.00 10.00

Granted during the Financial Year - 2021-2022 are qiven hereunder:

Features LTIP 2 LTIP 2
Instrument ESOP ESOP
Plan Period 2021-2025 2021-2025
Quantum of Grant 2,69.352 1.40.352

Vesting Period

Equal vesting in 4
years from the

Equal vesting in 4

years from the Date

Date of Grant of Grant|
Vesting Condition(s) 75% of the Profit 75% of the Profit
Before Tax Before Tax|

achievement
against annual
performance

achievement]
against annual
performance target|

target immediately immediately

preceding the| preceding the Date|

Date of Vesting of Vesting

Exercise Period 5 years from the 5 years from the

Date of Vesting Date of Vesting

Grant Date 14.05.2021 30.09.2021
Grant/Exercise Price (I Per Share) 119.40 114.15




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 47

DISCLOSURE UNDER EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS SCHEME

Granted during the Financial Year - 2020-2021 are given hereunder:

Features LTIP 2 LTIP3
Instrument ESOP ESOP
Plan Period 2021-2022 2021-2022
Quantum of Grant 1.10.424 1.40.439

Vesting Period

One year from the
Date of Grant

One year from the
Date of Grant

Vesting Condition(s)

75% of the Profit
Before Tax
achievement
against annual
performance|
target|

75% of the Profit
Before Tax
achievement
against annual
performance target

Exercise Period

5 years from the
Date of Vestinag

5 years from the
Date of Vestina

Grant Date 05.02.2021 05.02.2021

Grant/Exercise Price (3 Per Share) 90.40 90.40

Granted during the Financial Year - 2019-2020 are given hereunder:

Features LTIP 2 LTIP 2 LTIP 3 LTIP 3 LTIP 2 LTIP3

Instrument ESOP ESOP ESOP RSU ESOP RSU

Plan Period 2019-2023 2019-2023 2019-2024 2019-2021 2020-2024 2020-2023

Quantum of Grant 5.60.376 3.07.020 4.41.704 7.686 7.98.768 5.23.810

Vesting Period 25% p.a. (4 years)| 25% p.a. (4 years)| 20% p.a. (5 vears) 100% (2 vears)| 25% p.a. (4 vears)| 100% (3 vears)

Vesting Condition(s) Employees of] Employees of]| Employees of| Continued Employees of] Continued
ABCL: 75% of the| ~ ABCL: 75% of the| ABCL: 75% of the employment| ABCL: 75% of the employment

consolidated PBT
achievement
against annual
planning & budget|
targets and
Employees of]
Subsidiaries: 75%
of the PBT
achievement of|
the respective|
business units
against annual
planning & budget

targets

consolidated PBT| consolidated PBT]|

achievement
against annual

achievement]
against annual

planning & budget| planning & budget,

targets and
Employees of]

Subsidiaries: 75% of| S

the PBT
achievement of the
respective business
units against annual
planning & budget

targets and.
Employees of]|
ubsidiaries: 75%
of the PBT
achievement of]
the respective
business units
against annual

targets| planning & budget

targets;

consolidated PBT]

achievement
against annual

planning & budget|

targets and
Employees of]

Subsidiaries: 75%

of the PBT]
achievement of|
the respective|
business units
against annual

planning & budget

targets'

Exercise Period

5 years from the

5 years from the

5 years from the

5 years from the

5 years from the,

5 years from

Date of Vesting Date of Vesting Date of Vesting| Date of Vesting Date of Vesting the Date of]|
Grant Date 02.08.2019 18.10.2019 18.10.2019 18.10.2019 25.02.2020 25.02.2020
Grant / Exercise Price (% Per Share) 82.40 76.40 76.40 10.00 87.05 10.00
Granted during the Financial Year - 2018-2019 are given hereunder:
Features LTIP 3 LTIP 3
Instrument ESOP RSU
Plan Period 2018-2023 2018-2020
Quantum of Grant 16.23.834 3.00.000
Vesting Period 20% (5 vears) 100% (2 vears)
Vesting Condition(s) 75% of the Profit| Continued

Before Tax| employment

achievement
against annual

performance
target
Exercise Period 5 years from the 5 years from the
Date of Vestina Date of Vesting
Grant Date 09.04.2018 09.04.2018
Grant / Exercise Price (% Per Share) 115.00 10.00




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
(X in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 47
DISCLOSURE UNDER EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS SCHEME

Granted during the Financial Year - 2017-2018 are given hereunder:

Features LTIP 1 LTIP 2 LTIP3
Instrument RSU ESOP RSU ESOP
Plan Period 2017-2019 2017-2021 2017-2019 2017-2022
Quantum of Grant 43.43.750 1.15,57.872 13.98.886 1.25.04.992
Vesting Period 100% (2 years)| 25% p.a. (4 vears) 100% (2 years)| 20% p.a. (5 years)
Vesting Condition(s) Continued Employees of] Continued Employees of
employment| ABCL: 75% of the| employment| ABCL: 75% of the
consolidated PBT consolidated PBT]
achievement achievement
against annual against annual
planning & budget planning & budget
targets and targets and
Employees of]| Employees of]
Subsidiaries: 75% of] Subsidiaries: 75%
the PBT of the PBT)
achievement of the achievement of|
respective business the respective
units against annual business units|
planning & budget against annual
targets| planning & budget
targets
Exercise Period 5 years from the 5 years from the| 5 years from the| 5 years from the
Date of Vesting Date of Vesting Date of Vesting Date of Vesting
Grant Date 11.08.2017 11.08.2017 11.08.2017 11.08.2017
Grant/Exercise Price (¥ Per Share) 10.00 115.00 10.00 115.00
Value of Equity Shares as on the Date of Grant of 139.00 139.00 139.00 139.00
Oriainal Ootion (% Per Share)
Details of Activities in the Plan as on 31st March 2025
Features LTIP 1 LTIP 2 LTIP 3
Instrument RSU ESOP RSU ESOP
Options/RSUs Outstanding at beginning of the year 19,17,944 67,62,112 9,16,403 1,14,70,812
Granted during the year = = - -
Exercised during the year (7,34,902) (24,36,218) - (29,66,431)
Lapsed/ Expired during the year (1,08.130) (42,054) - =
Options/RSUs Outstanding at the end of the year 10,74.912 42,83,840 9,16.403 85,04,381
Options/RSUs unvested at the end of the year - 14,59,708 6,45,669 -
Options/RSUs exercisable at the end of the year 10,74,912 28,24,132 270,734 85,04,381
Details of Activities in the Plan as at 31st March 2024
Features LTIP 1 LTIP 2 LTIP 3
Instrument RSU ESOP RSU ESOP
Options/RSUs Outstanding at beginning of the year 19,78,782 1,01,95,506 2,70,734 1,24,01,881
Granted during the year 1,14,962 - 6.,45,669 20,07,180
Exercised during the year (1,48,050) (32,41,794) - (29,26,310)
Lapsed/ Expired during the year (27,750) (1.91.600) - (11,939)
Options/RSUs Outstanding at the end of the year 19,17.944 67.62,112 9,16,403 1.14,70.812
Options/RSUs unvested at the end of the year 2,80,396 20,46,378 6.45,669 24,48,884
Options/RSUs exercisable at the end of the year 16,37,548 47,115,734 270,734 90,21,928

Fair Valuation
The Fair Value of the options used to compute proforma Net Profit and Earnings Per Share has been done by an Independent Valuer on the date of grant using Black-

Scholes-Merton Formula. The Key Assumptions and the Fair Value are as:

Features LTIP 1 LTIP 2 LTIP 3

Instrument RSU ESOP RSU ESOP
Risk-Free Interest Rate 6.5% to 7.4% 6.2% to 7.0% 6.5% to 7.2% 6.5% to 7.6%
Option Life (Years) 3.5t055 3.5t06.5 4.5 35t07.5
Expected Volatility 38.5% to 41.8% 36.2% t046.5% | 35.4%t0 41.6%| 37.0% to 46.5%
Expected Dividend Yield (%) - - - -
Weighted-Average Fair Value per Option (3) 98.5t0 188.4 41.5t0 1194 131.6 to 189.1 73.1t0 119.9




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 47
DISCLOSURE UNDER EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS SCHEME

B) STOCK OPTION AND PERFORMANCE STOCK UNIT SCHEME 2022

The shareholders of the Company, vide a special resolution passed through Postal Ballot on 16th October 2022, approved the Scheme titled “Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Employee Stock Options and Performance Stock Unit Scheme 2022” (“ABCL Scheme 2022”) for granting Employee Stock Options (“Options”) and Employee Performance
Stock Units ("PSUs") (collectively referred to as the, (“Stock Options”) exercisable into not more than 4,10,71,270 Equity Shares. ABCL Scheme 2022 allows the grant of
Stock Options to employees of the Company, and its group company(ies) including its Holding Company, Subsidiary Company(ies) and Associate Company(ies) (whether
working in India or outside India) that meet the eligibility criteria. Each Stock Option confers a right upon the Grantee to apply for 1 (one) Equity Share.

Granted during the Financial Year - 2024-2025 are qiven hereunder:

Features LTIP 2 LTIP 1 LTIP 2 LTIP 1
Instrument ESOP RSU ESOP RSU
Plan Period 2024-2027 2024-2027 2025-2028 2025-2028
Quantum of Grant 1.35.495 18.34.524 86.651 42,811

Vesting Period

50% vesting in
first year and

100% vesting in
third year from the

50% vesting in
first year and

100% vesting in

third year from the

50% in second Date of Grant 50% in second Date of Grant

year year

from the Date of] from the Date of|

Grant] Grant
Vesting Condition(s) 75% of annual| 60% of Cumulative 75% of annual 60% of]|
planning & budget| planning & budget| planning & budget Cumulative

targets targets: targets| planning & budget

Exercise Period 5 years from the 5 years from the| 5 years from the| 5 years from the|
Date of Vesting Date of Vesting Date of Vesting| Date of Vesting

Grant Date 30.10.2024 30.10.2024 03.02.2025 03.02.2025
Grant/Exercise Price (% Per Share) 204.50 10.00 176.60 10.00

Pursuant to the Scheme (Refer Note No. 63), the Nomination, Remuneration and Com
31st March 2025 has approved the following Grant of Stock Options to the eligible em

lieu of the Options granted by the Amalgamating Company.

pensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company at its Meeting held on
ployees of the Amalgamating Company (erstwhile ABFL) under ABCL Scheme 2022 in

Instrument Stock Options Stock Options Stock Options Stock Options Stock Options
Quantum of Grant 56.62.070 2.62.607 15.768 56.927 16.708
Grant/Exercise Price (% Per Share) 93.20 116.70 116.70 116.70 174.20
Date of Original Grant by Amalgamating Company 05.11.2022 30.09.2023 01.11.2023 30.01.2024 14.10.2024
Vesting Period 50% Vested on 50% Vested on 50% Vested on 50% Vested on 50% Vested on
05.11.2024 30.09.2025 01.11.2025 30.01.2026 14.10.2026
50% Vesting on 50% Vesting on|  50% Vesting on|  50% Vesting on|  50% Vesting on
05.11.2025 30.09.2026 01.11.2026 30.01.2027 14.10.2027
Exercise Period 5 years from the date of original grant by Amalgamating Company
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(X in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 47

DISCLOSURE UNDER EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS SCHEME
Granted during Financial Year - 2023-2024 are given hereunder:

Features LTIP 1 LTIP 2
Instrument RSU ESOP
Plan Period 2023-2027 2023-2027
1,35,481 3,37,331

1,59,291 3,26,435

Quantum and date of Grant 16,40.750 204428
10,35,219, 10,68,855

Vesting Period 100% vesting at| 50%:50% vesting at|
the end of third| the end of second

year from the| and third year from

Date of Grant|  the Date of Grant

Vesting Condition(s) Continued Employees of]|
Employment &  ABCL: 75% of the,

Rating of|  consolidated PBT

Delivered Full achievement]

Performance against annual

(DFP) & above in| planning & budget

the year of| targets and

vesting. 60% of] Employees of|

Cumulative| Subsidiaries: 75% of]

Aggregate PBT] the PBT]

for 3 years| achievement of the|

respective business
units against annual

planning & budget|

targets
Exercise Period 5 years from the 5 years from the
Date of Vesting Date of Vesting
11.05.2023 11.05.2023|
02.08.2023 02.08.2023
Gt Dete 03.11.2023 03.11.2023
01.02.2024 01.02.2024
Grant/Exercise Price (¥ Per Share) 10.00 170.90 - 196.10
Granted during the Financial Year - 2022-2023 are given hereunder:
Instrument PSU ESOP PSU ESOP
Plan Period 2022-2025 2022-2025 2022-2025 2022-2025
Quantum of Grant 59,53,984 1,27,75,439 8,51,231 3,28,321
3,01,081
1,05,649
Vesting Period 100% vesting at| 50%:50% vesting at| 50%:50% vesting| 50%:50% vesting
the end of third|  the end of second at the end of] at the end of

year from the
Date of Grant

and third year from
the Date of Grant

second and third
year from
the Date of Grant|

second and third
year from
the Date of Grant|

Vesting Condition(s)

Continued
Employment &|
Rating of DFP &
above in the year
of vesting. 60% of]
Cumulative
Aggregate PBT
for 3 years

Subsidiaries: 75% of]

respective business
units against annual

Employees of]|
ABCL: 75% of the|
consolidated PBT

achievement|

against annual
planning & budget
targets and

Employees of|

the PBT]
achievement of the

planning & budget|
targets

planning & budget|

planning & budget|

Employees of|
ABCL: 75% of the
consolidated PBT)

achievement

against annual

targets and
Employees of]
Subsidiaries: 75%|
of the PBT)
achievement of]
the respective
business units
against annual

targets|

Employees of]
ABCL: 75% of the
consolidated PBT]

achievement|

against Annual

planning & budget|

targets and
Employees of]
Subsidiaries: 75%
of the PBT
achievement of]
the respective
business units
against annual

planning & budget|

targets

Exercise Period

5 years from the

5 years from the|

5 years from the|

5 years from the|

Date of Vesting Date of Vesting| ~ Date of Vesting| ~ Date of Vesting

Grant Date 07.11.2022 07.11.2022 02.02.2023 15.03.2023
02.02.2023
15.03.2023

Grant/Exercise Price (¥ Per Share) 10.00 124.20 136.50 145.00
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NOTE: 47

DISCLOSURE UNDER EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS SCHEME

Details of Activities in the Plan as on 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
RSU ESOP RSU ESOP

Options/RSUs Outstanding at beginning of the year 88,13,708 1,47,92,938 63.60,714 1,39,54,991
Granted during the year 18,77,335 62,36,226 29,70,741 19.37,049
Exercised during the year (13,235) (8,38,152) - -
Lapsed/ Expired during the year (9.36.768) (12,12.175) (5.17.747) (10.99.102)
Options/RSUs Outstanding at the end of the year 97.,41,040 1,89,78,837 88,13,708 1.47,92,938
Options/RSUs unvested at the end of the year 97.41,040 1,08,76,760 88,13,708 1,47,92,938
Options/RSUs exercisable at the end of the year - 81.02.077 - -

Fair Valuation

The fair value of the options used to compute proforma net profit and earnings per share have been done by an independent valuer on the date of grant using Black-Scholes

Merton Formula. The key assumptions and the Fair Value are as:

Features LTIP 1 LTIP 2
Instrument RSU ESOP
Risk-Free Interest Rate (%) 7.3%-7.6% 7.3%-7.6%
Option Life (Years) 556 45t05.5
Expected Volatility 40.4% to 41.8% 37.4% to 42.7%
Expected Dividend Yield (%) = -

Weighted-Average Fair Value per Option (3) 117.60 to 197.70 57.20 to 100.00

107122W/
W100672
MUMBA
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March 2025

(Z in crore except otherwise stated)

C) Aditya Birla Sun Life Insurance Limited (ABSLI)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has approved the followin

Scheme. Details of grants are given as under:

Features LTIP 1
Instrument ESOP
Plan Period 2024-2026
Quantum of Grant 77.91,236
Method of Accounting Fair Value
Vesting Period 100% (2 Years)
Graded Vesting Period
1st Year 50%
2nd Year 50%
Continued
employment and
rating of DFP and

Vesting Condition(s) abiove niprevicus

year of vesting/|
payout|

= -
Vesting Condition - Business 75% of unit f;é?

Exercise Period 5 Years from Date|

of Grant|
Grant Date 1st February 2024
Grant/ Exercise Price (I Per Share) 63.00
Value of Equity Shares as on the Date of Grant of Original 87.88
Option (X Per Share) )
Details of Activities in the Plan as on 31st March 2025
Features LTIP 1
Instrument ESOP
Options Qutstanding at the beainning of the Year 75,43,826
Granted during the Year &
Exercised during the Year =
Lapsed during the Year 6,62,168
Options QOutstanding at the end of the Year 68,81,658

During the year, the Company has granted 3,51,499 Equity Shares by way of grant of Stock Options ("ESOPs") on 16th Oct 2024 identified as LTIP 2. The Scheme allows the Grant of Stock

g grants to employees of the Company that meet the eligibility criteria in accordance with the Stock Option

Options to employees of the Company that meet the eligibility criteria. Each option comprises one underlying Equity Share.

Features LTIP 2
Instrument ESOP
Plan Period 2025 -2027
Quantum of Grant 3,51,499
Fair Value

Method of Accounting
Vesting Period

Graded Vesting Period
1st Year

2nd Year

Vesting Condition(s)
Vesting Condition — Business

Exercise Period
Grant Date

100% (2 years)

50%
50%

Continued Employment & Rating of
DFP & above in the previous year of
vesting/payout
75% of unit P&B PBT
5 Years From Date of Grant
16th Oct 2024

Grant/Exercise Price (¥ Per Share) 78.57
Value of Equity Shares as on the Date of Grant of Original Option (% Per Share) 76.00
Details of Activities in the Plan as on 31st March 2025
Features LTIP 2
Instrument ESOP
Options Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,561,499
Granted during the year -
Exercised during the year -
Lapsed during the year -
3,51,499

Options Outstanding at the end of the year

Details of Activities in the Plan as on 31st March 2024

Features LTIP1
Instrument ESOP]
Options Qutstanding at the beqinning of the Year -

Granted during the Year 75,43,826

Exercised during the Year =
Lapsed during the Year -
Options Outstanding at the end of the Year 75,43,826




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
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(% in crore except otherwise stated)
D) Aditya Birla Housing Finance Limited (ABHFL)

Features of the ESOP's granted by ABHFL

Grant date 21-Oct-22 27-Jan-23 27-Apr-23 27-Jul-23 26-Oct-23 15-Oct-24 15-Jan-25
On exercise, 1 On exercise, 1 On exercise, 1 On exercise, 1 On exercise, 1 On exercise, 1 On exercise, 1

Conversis ESOP converts to| ESOP, converts to| ESOP, converts to| ESOP, converts to| ESOP, converts to ESOP, converts| ESOP, converts to,
1 equity share of| 1 equity share of| 1 equity share of| 1 equity share of| 1 equity share of| to 1 equity share| 1 equity share of]

ABHFL ABHFL ABHFL ABHFL ABHFL of ABHFL ABHFL

Vesting Period 3 Years 3 Years 3 Years 3 Years 3 Years 3 Years 3 Years

Vesting Conditions

On fulfillment of]
the ESOP plan,
50% at the end of]|
year 2 and 3|

50% at the end of]

On fulfillment of|
the ESOP plan,

year2and 3

50% at the end of]

On fulfillment of|
the ESOP plan,
50% at the end of|
year 2 and 3

On fulfillment of|
the ESOP plan,

year 2 and 3

On fulfillment of]
the ESOP plan,

50% at the end of]

year 2and 3

On fulfillment of]
the ESOP plan,
50% at the end of|
year 2 and 3

On fulfillment of]
the ESOP plan,
50% at the end of]
year 2 and 3

5 Years from the

5 Years from the

5 Years from the

5 Years from the|

5 Years from the

5 Years from the

5 Years from the

EXerelae Period Grant Date Grant Date| Grant Date| Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date| Grant Date

Exercise price (in ¥ per ESOP) 37.20 37.20 42.50 42.50 42.50 47.20 61.10

No. of Options granted 15,49,598 1,83,379 53,544 1,60,203 33,667 18,698 55,642

Weighted Average Fair value 34.60 36.50 42.50 44.60 47.20 61.10 66.70
Settlement in Settlement in Settlement in Settlement in Settlement in Settlement in Settlement in

Settlement equity shares of|  equity shares of|  equity shares of|  equity shares of|  equity shares of| equity shares off,  equity shares of|

ABHFL ABHFL ABHFL ABHFL, ABHFL ABHFL| ABHFL

Details of Activities in the Plan as on 31st March 2025

Instrument ESOP

Options Outstanding at the beginning of the Year 18,48,562

Granted during the Year 74,340

Exercised during the Year -

Cancelled/ Lapsed during the Year -

Options Outstanding at the end of the Year 19,22,902

Details of Activities in the Plan as on 31st March 2024

Instrument ESOP

Options/ RSUs Outstanding at the beginning of the Year 17,32,977

Granted during the Year 247,414

Exercised during the Year -

Cancelled/ Lapsed during the Year 1,31,829.00

Options/ RSUs Outstanding at the end of the Year 18,48,562

E) Aditya Birla Money Limited

Stock Options granted under ABML - Employee Stock Option Scheme - 2014

Summary of Stock Options granted under ABML ESOP Scheme - 2014 is as under As at 31st March 2024

Options Granted on 2nd December 2015 25,09,341

Options Outstanding as on 1st April 2023 53,845

No. of Options Granted during the Year Nil

Method of Accounting Intrinsic Value|

Vesting Plan 25% every year

Exercise Period

Within 5 years from the Date of
Vesting of respective options

Grant/Exercise Price (% per Share)

3 34.25

Market Price as on the Date of the Grant

X 34.25(previous day closing price on

the Recognised Stock Exchange)

Options reinstated during the year 59,892
Options Forfeited/Lapsed during the Year 57,418
Options Exercised during the Year 56,319

Nil

Options Outstanding as at 31st March 2024

The vesting period in respect of the options granted under ABML ESOP Scheme - 2014 is a

s follows:

Sr. No Vesting Date| % of Options that shall vest
1 12 months from the date of grant 25% of the grant
2 24 months from the date of grant 25% of the grant|
3 36 months from the date of grant 25% of the grant
4 48 months from the date of grant 25% of the grant

ABML has granted options to the eligible employees at an exercise price of ¥ 34.25 per share bein

g the latest market price as per SEBI ESOP Regulations. In view of this, there being no intrinsic

value (being the excess of the market price of share under ESOP over the exercise price of the option), on the date of grant, the ABML is not required to account the accounting value of option as

per SEBI ESOP Regulations.

The key assumptions are as under:

Risk-Free Interest Rate (%) 8.13%
Expected Life (No. of Years) 5 years
Expected Volatility (%) 54.26%
Dividend Yield -
Weighted-Average Fair Value per Option 334.25




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

(R in crore except otherwise stated)
F) ABCL INCENTIVE PLAN 2017

The Scheme titled as “ABCL Incentive Scheme for Stock Options and Restricted Stock Units — 2017 (ABCL Incentive Scheme)” was
approved by the shareholders through postal ballot on 10th April 2017. The Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation
Committee of the Company at its meeting held on 15th January 2018, granted 14,65,927 ESOPs and 2,52,310 Restricted Stock
Units (RSUs) (Collectively called as "Stock Options”) to the eligible grantees pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Arrangement
between erstwhile Aditya Birla Nuvo Limited (now merged with Grasim Industries Limited), Grasim Industries Limited and Aditya Birla
Capital Limited. The Stock Options allotted under the Scheme are convertible into equal number of Equity Shares.

The vesting conditions and the vesting dates under the ABCL Incentive Scheme shall follow the same vesting conditions, as
applicable to the Grantees under the corresponding Grasim Employee Benefit Schemes 2006 and 2013.

Particulars ABCL Incentive Scheme
Options | RSUs
Plan Period As per Grasim Employee Benefits Schemes 2006 and 2013.
Quantum of Grant 14,65,927 2,52,310
Method of Accounting Fair Value Fair Value
Vesting Period The Options and RSUs shall deemed to have been vested from the

original date of grant under the Grasim ESOP Schemes 2006 and
2013, and shall be subject to a minimum vesting period of one year
from the date of original grant and would vest not earlier than one year
and not later than five years from the date of grant of Options and
RSUs or such other period as may be determined by the Nomination,
Remuneration and Compensation Committee.

Vesting Condition(s) Achievement of threshold level of budgeted annual performance target
Exercise Period 5 years from the Date of Vesting | 5 years from the Date of Vesting
Grant Date 15th January 2018 15th January 2018

Grant / Exercise Price (3 Per Share) 10.00 10.00

Re-granted during the Financial Year - 2020-2021 are given hereunder:

Particulars Options
Plan Period 2021-2022
Quantum of Grant 25,585
Method of Accounting Fair Value
Vesting Period One year from the Date of Grant
Vesting Condition(s) Achievement of threshold level of]
budgeted annual performance target
Exercise Period 5 years from the Date of Vesting
Grant Date 05.03.2021
Grant/Exercise Price 10.00
(X Per Share)

Details of Activities in the Plan

ABCL Incentive Scheme

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Options RSUs Options RSUs
Options/RSUs Outstanding at the beginning of the year 15,324 3,418 15,324 3,418

Granted during the year = = s =
Exercised during the year - = s -
Lapsed/ Expired during the year - - -
Options/RSUs Outstanding at the end of the year 15,324 3,418 15,324 3,418




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 48
SEGMENT DISCLOSURES

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprises for which discrete financial information is available, and evaluated regularly by Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM), in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance.

The Group has considered business segment as reportable segment for disclosure. The products and services included in each of the reported business segments are

as follows:

SEGMENT ACTIVITIES

Lending (Excluding Housing Finance) Non-Banking Financial Services

Housing Finance Housing Finance

Life Insurance Life Insurance

Asset Management Asset Management

Health Insurance

Health Insurance and Ancillary Services

Stock and Securities Broking

Stock Broking, Depository Services, Portfolio Management Services

General Insurance Broking (Discontinued Operations) |Insurance Broking (Refer Note 52)

Other Financial Services

Asset Reconstruction, Direct to Customer (D2C) platform, etc.

Information about Business Segments

For the Year ended 31* March 2025

For the Year ended 31° March 2024

Segment Revenue from Operations

External Inter-Segment] Total External Inter-Segment Total
Lending (Excluding Housing Finance) 14,693.58 95.38 14,788.96 12,654.36 47.86 12,702.22
Housing Finance 2,563.81 91.37 2,655.18 1,794.25 40.35 1,834.60
Life Insurance 21,963.90 88.28 22,052.18 18,214.99 39.10 18,254.09
Asset Management 1,982.29 - 1,982.29 1,634.10 - 1,634.10
Stock and Securities Broking 450.31 2.83 453.14 392.89 1.48 394.37
Health Insurance 4,632.07 3.21 4,635.28 3,458.28 0.90 3,459.18
Other Financial Services 818.37 41.48 859.85 822.72 67.35 890.07
Sub Total 47,104.33 322.55 47,426.88 38,971.59 197.04 39,168.63
Less: Inter-Segment Revenue from Operations (322.55) (197.04)
Total Segment Revenue from Continuing Operations 47,104.33 38,971.59
Add: General Insurance Broking (Refer Note 52) 264.03 | 0.33 264.36 563.32 | 1.38 564.70
Total Seament Revenue 47,368.69 39,536.29
Less: Revenue of Associate and Joint Venture
Entities, profits of which are equity accounted under (6,622.14) (5,095.30)
the Ind AS framework
Add: Elimination of Intra-Group revenue from
transactions with Associate and Joint Venture Entities 107.79 64.55
Total Revenue from Continuing Operations 40,589.98 33,940.84

Segment Results (Profit Before Tax)

For the Year ended 31°' March 2025

For the Year ended 31 March 2024

Lending (Excluding Housing Finance) 3,359.61 2,987.07
Housing Finance 419.45 376.46
Life Insurance 158.40 197.61
Asset Management 1,244.54 1,008.15
Stock and Securities Broking 101.65 68.93
Health Insurance (3.07) (186.99)
Other Financial Services 387.42 581.33
Total Segmental Results from Continuing Operations 5,668.00 5,032.56
Add: General Insurance Broking (Refer Note 52) 36.96 67.43
Total Segmental Results 5,704.96 5,099.99
Less: Share of Associate and Joint Venture Partners (not included in Share of Profits of (825.16) (517.63)
the Group) in Associate and Joint Venture Companies ) i
Profit Before Tax 4,879.80 4,582.36

Other Information

Carrying Amount of Segment
Assets as at

Carrying Amount of Segment
Liabilities as at

31" March 2025| 31* March 2024| 31*' March 2025| 31% March 2024
Segments
Lending (Excluding Housing Finance) 1,31,745.13 1,10,778.95 1,13,857.33 95,711.67
Housing Finance 30,410.70 18,408.44 26,644.45 16,201.49
Life Insurance 1,07,403.79 92,571.05 1,03,160.60 88,766.98
Asset Management 4,096.75 3,484.16 304.38 268.14
Stock and Securities Broking 2,630.70 2,278.91 2,234.87 1,953.40
Health Insurance 5,212.59 3,888.84 3,694.00 2,836.54
Other Financial Services 2,320.06 3,622.15 1,134.76 782.32
Total Segment 2,83,819.72 2,35,032.50 2,51,030.39 2,06,520.54
Less: Inter-Segment Elimination (1,019.29) (973.89) (1,019.29) (973.89)
Add: Unallocated Corporate Liabilities 686.89 658.01 735.80 858.97
Add: General Insurance Broking (Refer Note 52) - 325.15 - 170.81
Total Segment Assets/Liabilities 2,83,487.32 2,35,041.77 2,50,746.90 2,06,576.43
Less: Assets/Liabilities of Associate and Joint Venture Entities, which are equity
accounted under the Ind AS framework (9.:332.36) (sl 308182 (216001
Add: Elimination of Intra-Group Assets/Liabilities from transactions with Associate and 49.25 57.43 4925 57.43
Joint Venture Entities
Add: Investments in Associate and Joint Venture Entities, which are equity accounted 4,857.17 4,398.09 ; B
under the Ind AS framework
Total Assets/Liabilities 2,79,061.38 2,32,101.83 2,46,714.33 2,03,464.05

FRN:
107122W /

W100672




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

Other Information

Depreciation and Amortisation for
the Year ended

Segments

31° March 2025| 31°' March 2024
Lending (Excluding Housing Finance) 131.55 120.36
Housing Finance 40.75 25.70
Life Insurance 109.03 97.73
Asset Management 39.81 34.60
Stock and Securities Broking 9.78 8.23
Health Insurance 69.28 58.72
Other Financial Services 63.81 33.97
Total Seament 464.01 379.31
Less: Depreciation of Associate and Joint Venture Entities 109.09 93.33
Less: Depreciation of Life Insurance Policyholders' Business 108.72 97.62
Total Depreciation and Amortisation of Continuing Operations 246.20 188.37
Add: Depreciation of General Insurance Broking (Refer Note 52) 1.83 5.46
Total Depreciation and Amortisation 248.03 193.83

Interest Income for the Year ended

Interest Expenses for the Year

Other Information ended

31* March 2025 31 March 2024| 31°' March 2025| 31°' March 2024
Segments
Lending (Excluding Housing Finance) 13,999.55 12,044.48 7,980.89 6,468.22
Housing Finance 2,436.31 1,717.99 1,530.70 1,014.23
Life Insurance 3,918.01 3,178.17 106.58 62.02
Asset Management 39.08 19.05 5.66 5.63
Stock and Securities Broking 218.94 165.08 125.96 92.22
Health Insurance 251.79 199.39 3.64 1.92
Other Financial Services 51.53 117.87 33.33 39.44
Sub-Total 20,915.21 17,442.03 9,786.76 7,683.68
Less: Inter-Segment Elimination (24.13) (44.59) (65.08) (44.58)
Interest Income/Expenses 20,891.08 17,397.44 9,721.68 7,639.10
Less: Interest Income/Expenses of Associate and Joint Venture Companies 290.88 218.44 9.30 7.55
Less: Interest Income/Expenses of Life Insurance Policyholders' Business 3,572.51 2,890.36 18.20 14.68
Total Interest Income/Expenses of Continuing Operations 17,027.69 14,288.64 9,694.18 7,616.87
Add: General Insurance Broking (Refer Note 52) 3.29 1.94 0.20 0.38
Total Interest Income/Expenses 17,030.98 14,290.58 9,694.38 7,617.25

Impairment on Financial Instruments including Loss on Derecognition of Financial
Assets at Amortised Cost (Expected Credit Loss)

For the Year ended 31°' March 2025

For the Year ended 31°' March 2024

Lending (Excluding Housing Finance) 1,444.12 1,352.43

Housing Finance 53.53 2.81

Life Insurance 4.35 0.91

Stock and Securities Broking 0.49 0.89

Other Financial Services (0.10) (3.53)
Total 1,502.39 1,353.51

Less: Impairment of Life Insurance Policyholders' Business 4.35 0.91

Total Impairment Expense of Continuing Operations 1,498.04 1,352.60

Add: General Insurance Broking (Refer Note 52) 0.13 (0.31)
Grand Total 1,498.17 1,352.29

Information about Geographical Segments

For the Year ended

Particulars

31* March 2025/ 31° March 2024

Segment Revenue by Geographical Market

In India 47,343.00 39,513.29
Outside India 25.69 23.00
Total 47,368.69 39,536.29
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 50
MATERIAL PARTLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

(1) Financial Information of Subsidiaries that have material Non-Controlling Interest is provided below
(A) Aditya Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited

P Proportion of Ownership interest
Name of the Entity Prmgpall Pl::e of . As at . As at
usine 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Aditya Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited
including Aditya Birla Sun Life Pension Management ;
Limited (100% subsidiary of Aditya Birla Sun Life tndla $1:00% 51.90%
Insurance Company Limited)

. As at| As at
PHEGHIARE 31st March 2025| 31st March 2024
Proportion of Interest Held by Non-Controlling Entity 49.00% 49.00%
Accumulated Balances of Non-Controlling Interest 1,895.82 1,680.62
Summarised Financial Information for Balance Sheet
Current Assets 8,581.61 7,760.60
Non-Current Assets 98,526.56 84,509.31
Current Liabilities 6,917.48 5,372.32
Non-Current Liabilities 96,321.37 83,467.75
Particilars Year ended Year ended

31st March 2025| 31st March 2024,
Profit/(Loss) Allocated to Non-Controlling Interest 43.92 64.59
Summarised Financial Information for the Statement of Profit and Loss
Revenue from Operations 22,047.30 18,249.44
Profit for the Year 89.66 131.81
Other Comprehensive Income 30.73 72.20
Total Comprehensive Income 120.39 204.01
Summarised Financial Information for Cash Flows
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 6,336.70 5,429.93
Cash Flows from Investing Activities (6,958.85) (5,987.00)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities 73359 540.11
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 111.44 (16.96)

(B) Aditya Birla Insurance Brokers Limited (Refer Note 52)

(C) Aditya Birla Money Limited

P Proportion of Ownership Interest
Name of the Entity Prmc:pa.l Placs of : As at| . As at
Business
31st March 2025| 31st March 2024
Aditya Birla Money Limited India 73.53% 73.53%
Particulars Asat As at
31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Proportion of Interest Held by Non-Controlling Entity 26.47% 26.47%
Accumulated Balances of Non-Controlling Interest 62.51 43.04
Summarised Financial Information for Balance Sheet
Current Assets 2,296.12 1,712.87
Non-Current Assets 174.88 403.24
Current Liabilities 2,077.02 1,789.58
Non-Current Liabilities 157.85 163.82
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2025| 31st March 2024
Profit/(Loss) Allocated to Non-Controlling Interest: 19.64 14.02
Dividend Paid to Non-Controlling Interest - -
Summarised Financial Information for the Statement of Profit and Loss
Revenue from Operations 447.61 390.19
Profit for the Year 74.19 5297
Other Comprehensive Income (0.77) 0.38
Total Comprehensive Income 73.43 53.35
Summarised Financial Information for Cash Flows
Cash Flows from Operating Activities (126.20) (443.78)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities (1.01) (4.10)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities 173.13 402.50
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 45.92 (45.38)




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31> March 2025
(3 in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 51
INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

(1) Below is the Associate Company of the Group which, in the opinion of the Management, is material to the Group and has been accounted as per
Equity Method of Accounting.

Quoted Fair Value

Proportion of Ownership Interest (% per share)

Principal Place of

Name of the Entity Busi
usiness As at As at As at As at
31% March 2025 31 March 2024 31% March 2025 31% March 2024
Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Limited India 44.94% 45.14% 636.70 455.00

Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Limited ("ABSLAMC”) was incorporated on 5th September 1994.

The Company is registered with Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) under the SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996, and the principal
activity is to act as an investment manager to Aditya Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund. The Company manages the investment portfolios of Aditya Birla Sun
Life Mutual Fund, India Advantage Fund Ltd., Mauritius, India Excel (Mauritius) Fund and Aditya Birla Real Estate Fund. The Company is also
registered under the SEBI (Portfolio Managers) Regulations, 1993, and provides portfolio management services and investment advisory services to
offshore funds and high net worth investors. Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Limited has set up two Alternate Investment Funds (AIF) one under Category
Il and the other under Category Il with Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) under the SEBI AIF Regulations, 2012. Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC
Limited has been appointed as an Investment Manager of the said AIF by the Trustee to the Fund.

(A) Summarised Financial Information of material Associate Company
i) Summarised Balance Sheet
Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Limited

Particul As at As at|
articuars 31 March 2025|  31% March 2024

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 43.68 39.10

Other Assets 2,790.22 2,061.56
Total Current Assets 2,833.90 2,100.66
Total Non-Current Assets 1,280.53 1,401.19
Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities (excluding Trade Payables) 110.55 86.03

Other Liabilities 147.50 125.22
Total Current Liabilities 258.05 211.25
Non-Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities (excluding Trade Payables) 47.50 59.76

Other Liabilities 82.01 61.96
Total Non-Current Liabilities 129.51 121.72
Net Assets 3,726.87 3,168.88
Group Share in % - Refer Note: 63(2) 44.94% 45.14%
Group Share in ¥ 1,674.96 1,430.44
Carrying Amount 1,674.96 1,430.44

ii) Summarised Statement of Profit and Loss

Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Limited

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31* March 2025 31% March 2024
Revenue from Operations 1,684.78 | - 1,353.19
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 39.81 34.60
Income Tax Expenses 313.94 227.79
Profit for the Year 930.60 780.36
Group Share 418.43 389.02
Other Comprehensive Income 0.07 (0.40)
Group Share 0.03 (0.19)
Total Comprehensive Income 930.67 779.96
Group Share 418.46 388.83
Dividend Received 175.02 75.62
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)
Commitments and Contingent Liabilities in respect of Associate Company

(B)

(2

(A)

Particulars . Asat . Asat
31° March 2025/ 31 March 2024

Group Share in Commitments in respect of Associate Companies not being included 50.66 6.70

in Note No. 41

Group Share in Contingent Liabilities in respect of Associate Companies not being 5.87 7.22

included in Note No. 40

Below is the Joint Venture Company of the Group which, in the opinion of the Management, is material to the Group which has been accounted as

per Equity Method of Accounting.

Name of the Entity

Principal Place of

Proportion of Ownership Interest

Quoted Fair Value (X per share)

Business

As at
31 March 2025

Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited

45.89%

31% March 2024

As at| As at As at
31* March 2025  31°' March 2024
45.89% # #

# Unlisted equity - No quoted price available

Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated on April 22, 2015 as a Company under the Companies Act, 2013. The
Company is registered with the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (“IRDAI”) for conducting health insurance business, under
section 3 of the Insurance Act, 1938 as amended by the Insurance Laws (Amendment) Act, 2015.

Summarised Financial Information of material Joint Venture Company

(i) Summarised Balance Sheet

Aditya Birla Health Insurance Limited (ABHI)

Particul As at As at]
articutars 31" March 2025 31% March 2024

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 24.46 145.49

Other Assets 1,361.70 646.71
Total Current Assets 1,386.16 792.20
Total Non-Current Assets 3,793.03 3,074.67
Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities (excluding Trade Payables) 361.94 306.90

Other Liabilities 3,271.81 2,499.81
Total Current Liabilities 3,633.75 2,806.71
Non-Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities (excluding Trade Payables) 30.18 12.92

Other Liabilities 16.13 10.07
Total Non-Current Liabilities 46.31 22.99
Net Assets 1,499.13 1,037.17
Group Share in % 45.89% 45.89%
Group Share in ABHI 3,169.62 2,957.64
Carrying Amount 3,169.62 2,957.64




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(X in crore except otherwise stated)

(B)

(©)]

(a)

(b)

(i) Summarised Statement of Profit and Loss

Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited

Parti Year Ended Year Ended
articulars

31* March 2025 31° March 2024
Interest Income 251.79 199.39
Revenue from Operations 4,621.91 3,450.43
Interest Expense 3.64 1.92
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 66.17 55.35
Income Tax Expenses - -
Profit/(Loss) for the Year 6.38 (181.85)
Group Share 2.93 (83.48)
Other Comprehensive Income 55.12 15.20
Group Share 25.29 6.97
Total Comprehensive Income 61.50 (166.65)
Group Share 28.22 (76.51)
Commitments and Contingent Liabilities in respect of Joint Venture Company
Particulars As at Asiat

31* March 2025 31% March 2024,
Group Share in Commitments in respect of Join Venture Company not being 10 12.20
included in Note No. 41 8 ’
Group Share in Contingent Liabilities in respect of Joint Venture Company not being 87.33 71.29
included in Note No. 40

Individually immaterial Joint Venture Companies

The Group also has interest in immaterial Joint Ventures that are accounted for using Equity Method of Accounting. Below is the combined financial

information with respect to those entities

: As at| As at
Particulars ot ot
31 March 2025 31% March 2024
Aggregate Carrying Amount of individually immaterial Joint Venture 12.59 10.01
Companies
Particul Year Ended Year Ended
Srcienians 31 March 2025 31% March 2024
Aggregate Amount of the Group Share of:
Profit for the Year (4.57) (2.48)
Other Comprehensive Income 0.01 (0.03)

As per the Shareholders' agreements, Aditya Birla Sun Life Trustee Private Limited and Aditya Birla Wellness Limited cannot distribute their profits

until they obtain consent from other venture partners.

Aditya Birla Capital Limited holds, either directly or through its subsidiary, more than half of the equity shares holding in the following entities.
However, as per the Shareholders' agreement/statute, the Company needs to jointly decide with other Shareholders of the respective entity on

certain relevant activities. Hence, the same are being accounted as per equity method of accounting.

a)Aditya Birla Sun Life Trustee Private Limited
b) Aditya Birla Wellness Private Limited




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 52
DISCONTINUED OPERATION

The company has sold its entire stake of 50.002% in Aditya Birla Insurance Brokers Limited ("ABIBL") to Edme Services
Private Limited, part of the Samara Capital Group and an affiliate of Samara Alternate Investment Fund on 30th August
2024 and accordingly ABIBL has ceased to be a Subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. 30th August 2024. The Company has
recognised gain of ¥213.79 crore (Net of Tax, Gain is ¥ 176.21 crore) during the year ended 31st March 2025. Profits of
ABIBL has been presented in the consolidated financial statements as discontinued operations..

Summarised Financial Information of Discontinued Operations as at 30th August 2024 are as follows :

Barticulars As at As at
artieutar 30" August 2024 31° March 2024
Assets
1. Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1.86 15.24
Bank balances other than (a) above 11.28 10.30
Trade Receivables 53.37 65.47
Loans 0.49 62.91
Investments 113.27 127.24
Other Financial Assets 0.82 1.53
Sub Total - Financial Assets 181.09 282.69
2. Non-Financial Assets
Current Tax Assets 26.05 34.30
Deferred Tax Assets 5.36 5.08
Property, Plant and Equipment 3.71 3.26
Right of Use Assets 6.42 5.96
Intangible Assets Under Development 0.20 0.40
Other Intangible Assets 1.82 1:57
Other Non-Financial Assets 35.68 31.27
Sub Total - Non-Financial Assets 79.24 81.84
Total Assets 260.33 364.53
Liabilities
1. Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 101.76 120.91
Lease Liabilities 6.89 6.30
Other Financial Liabilities 23.06 21.11
Sub Total - Financial Liabilities 131.71 148.32
2. Non-Financial Liabilities
Provisions 12.22 11.98
Other Non-Financial Liabilities 17.89 10.51
Sub Total - Non-Financial Liabilities 30.11 22.49
Total Liabilities 161.82 170.81




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 52
DISCONTINUED OPERATION

The financial results of Discontinued Operations for the period/year are as follows :

. For the period ended| For the year ended
Particulars th st
30" August 2024 31" March 2024
Revenue from Operations 256.45 551.07
Other Income 9.12 15.68
Total Income 265.57 566.75
Fees and commission expense 181.13 408.26
Employee benefits expense 28.85 54.52
Finance cost 0.20 0.38
Impairment on financial instruments 0.13 (0.50)
Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments - 0.19
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1.83 5.46
Other expenses 16.47 31.01
Total Expenses 228.61 499.32
Profit before tax from Discontinued Operations 36.96 67.43
Current Tax 9.23 16.50
Short/(Excess) Provision for Tax Related to Earlier Years (Net) - 0.15
Deferred Tax (0.27) 0.17
Tax Expense 8.96 16.82
Profit after tax from Discontinued Operations 28.00 50.61
The summarised cash flow position of Discontinued Operations for the period/year is as follows :
Particul As at As at
artieutars 30" August 2024 31 March 2024
Net Cash generated from / (used in) Operating Activities 27.78 17.91
Net Cash generated from / (used in) Investing Activities 82.82 (0.97)
Net Cash generated from / (used in) Financing Activities (123.98) (2.59)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents from
Discontinued Operations (13.38) 14.35
Opening cash and cash equivalents 15.24 0.89
Closing cash and cash equivalents 1.86 15.24
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 53

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF THE POLICYHOLDERS OF LIFE INSURANCE BUSINESS

Particulars

Assets
Financial Assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents
(b) Bank Balances other than (a) above
(c) Derivative Financial Instruments
(d) Trade Receivables
(e) Loans
(f) Investments of Policyholders
(9) Assets Held to Cover Linked Liabilities
(h) Other Financial Assets
Sub Total
Non-Financial Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Right-to-Use of Assets
(c) Capital Work-in-Progress
(d) Intangible Assets Under Development
(e) Other Intangible Assets
(f) Other Non-Financial Assets
Sub Total

Total Assets of Policyholders of Life Insurance Business

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
(a) Derivative Financial Instruments
(b) Trade Payables
- Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
- Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
(c) Lease Liabilities

(d) Life Insurance Contract Liabilities and Restricted Surplus

(e) Other Financial Liabilities
Sub Total
Non-Financial Liabilities

(a) Provisions

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

(c) Other Non-Financial Liabilities
Sub Total

Total Liabilities of Policyholders of Life Insurance Business

As at As at
Note No. 31°* March 2025 31% March 2024

[0) 1,047.85 927.92

(i)(a) 0.25 0.25

(x) 503.52 349.74

(i) 606.34 527.47

(iii) 712.09 914.86

(iv) 57,437.57 47,103.55

(v) 37,762.26 36,005.19

(vi) 2,287.40 1,594.24

1,00,357.28 87,423.22

(vii) 82.64 65.13

250.26 181.72

(vii) 21.95 7.83

(viii) 24.28 20.24

(vii) 92.58 78.47

(ix) 266.42 205.51

738.13 558.90

1,01,095.41 87,982.12

(x) 29.04 10.77
(xi)

17.52 12.34

721.70 582.23

259.50 190.19

(xiv) 98,350.55 85,388.46

(xii) 2,171.77 1,597.26

1,01,550.08 87,781.25

(xii) 144.59 123.82

20.12 14.87

(xv) 117.19 97.50

281.90 236.19

1,01,831.98 88,017.44




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)

Note (i) : Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at As at
31% March 2025  31° March 2024
Cash on Hand 6.12 4.26
Balances with Banks
- Current Accounts 401.80 190.66
- Deposits with original maturity period of three months or less 491.78 580.90
Cheques, Drafts on Hand 148.15 152.10
1,047.85 927.92
Note (i)(a): Bank Balances other than (i) above
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025  31° March 2024
Balances at Banks
- Deposits with original maturity of more than three months 0.25 0.25
0.25 0.25
Note (ii): Trade Receivables
Particulars As at As at

31° March 2025

31° March 2024

Trade Receivables at Amortised Cost

Unsecured, Considered Good 606.34 527.47
606.34 527.47

Note (iii): Loans at Amortised Cost

Particulars As at As at

31° March 2025

31° March 2024

Loans and Advances:

Other Related Parties - 17.68
Agents' Balances (Gross) - 3.17
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts - (0.54)
Advances Recoverable in Cash or in Kind or for value to be received - 377.03
Loans Against Policies 712.09 517.52
712.09 914.86
Secured
Secured by Insurance Policies 712.09 517.52
Unsecured - 397.34
712.09 914.86
Loans within India
Public Sectors - -
Others 712.09 914.86
712.09 914.86




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
(X in crore except otherwise stated)

Note (iv): Financial Assets - Investments of Policyholders
Particulars As at As at

31% March 2025  31° March 2024

A. Investments in Mutual Funds

Quoted Investments

Quoted Investments - at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 115.75 27.73
B. Investments in Equity Instruments

Unquoted Investments

At Fair Value through Profit or Loss 296.35 296.41

Quoted Investments

At Fair Value through Profit or Loss 4,021.32 3,578.49
‘ 4,317.67 3,874.90

C. Investments in Government or Trust Securities
Quoted Investments

At Amortised Cost 31,892.62 24,111.36
At Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income 5,317.87 5,098.71
37,210.49 29,210.07

D. Investments in Debentures
Quoted Investments

At Amortised Cost 8,103.75 7,938.91
Less: Allowance for Impairment Loss 5.90 5.09
8,097.85 7,933.82

At Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income 6,408.86 5,468.32
Less: Allowance for Impairment Loss 4.77 3.65
6,404.09 5,464.67

14,501.94 13,398.49

E. Other Investments
Unquoted Investments

At Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income 287.05 67.77
Quoted Investments
At Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income 462.91 263.91
Less: Allowance for Impairment Loss 0.74 -
462.17 263.91
At Amortised Cost 542.50 261.06
Less: Allowance for Impairment Loss - 0.38
542.50 260.68
1,291.72 592.36
Total (A+B+C+D+E) 57,437.57 47,103.55
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)

Note (v): Assets Held to Cover Linked Liabilities
Particulars

As at

_ 31* March 2025

As at
31° March 2024

Quoted Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Mutual Funds 412.89 562.74
Equity Instruments 18,465.25 17,602.35
Government or Trust Securities 11,478.15 10,016.32
Debentures 6,340.50 6,814.14
Other Investments 774.02 864.16
Other Assets 230.13 66.55
Unquoted Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Other Investments 61.32 78.93
37,762.26 36,005.19
Note (vi): Other Financial Assets As at As at
Particulars 31% March 2025 _ 31°' March 2024
Security Deposits 89.00 77.40
Unclaimed Maturity Fund 70.40 152.61
Re-Insurance Assets 1,641.76 1,363.92
MTM Margin A/c - FRA Receivables 4.97 0.31
Other Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 458.49 -
Advances recoverable from Related Parties 18.36 -
Agents' Balances (net) 2.81 -
Advance to Employees 1.39 -
SCWF Fund 0.22 -
2,287.40 1,594.24

" FRN:
1071220 |
W100677




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
(X in crore except otherwise stated)

Note (vii): Property, Plant and Equipment and Capital work in Progress

Information Furniture ' Capital
. Leasehold . Office :
Particulars Technology and Vehicles . Total work in
. Improvement : Equipment
Equipment Fixtures Progress
As at 31% March 2025
Gross Block Amount
Opening Gross Block Amount 32.20 8.92 23.14 15.80 8.66 88.72 7.83
Additions 11.41 8.81 10.24 7.15 5.85 43.46 76.01
Disposals 24.31 1.09 3.36 4.24 6.58 39.58 61.89
19.30 16.64 30.02 18.71 7.93 92.60 21.95
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Depreciation 16.04 (3.96) 4.80 4.04 2.67 23.59 -
Depreciation for the Year 6.00 4.57 4.73 4.70 2.71 22.71 -
Disposals 24.07 1.01 2.86 1.91 6.49 36.34 -
(2.03) (0.40) 6.67 6.83 (1.11) 9.96 -
Net Block Amount 21.33 17.04 23.35 11.88 9.04 82.64 21.95
As at 31% March 2024
Gross Block Amount
Opening Gross Block Amount 22.67 473 13.59 9.70 6.17 56.86 6.43
Additions 11.61 7.20 10.33 10.26 3.66 43.06 55.34
Disposals 2.08 3.01 0.78 4.16 1.17 11.20 53.94
32.20 8.92 2314 15.80 8.66 88.72 7.83
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Depreciation 12.66 (4.23) 2.81 4.91 2.03 18.18 -
Depreciation for the Year 5.37 3.25 2.68 2.96 1.79 16.05 -
Disposals 1.99 2.98 0.69 3.82 1.16 10.64 -
16.04 (3.96) 4.80 4.05 2.66 23.59 -

Net Block Amount 16.16 12.88 18.34 11.75 6.00 65.13 7.83




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)

Note (viii): Intangible Assets

Intangible
Particulars Software asset under
development

As at 31st March 2025
Gross Carrying Amount

Opening Gross Carrying Amount 248.35 20.24
Additions 43.67 47.77
Disposals 26.07 43.73
265.95 24.28
Accumulated Amortisation
Opening Amortisation 169.88 -
Amortisation for the Year 29.58 -
Disposals 26.09 -
173.37 -
Net Carrying Amount 92.58 24.28

As at 31st March 2024
Gross Carrying Amount

Opening Gross Carrying Amount 204.34 17.74
Additions 45.31 47.81
Disposals 1.30 45.31
248.35 20.24
Accumulated Amortisation
Opening Amortisation 141.12 -
Amortisation for the Year 29.94 -
Disposals 1.18 -
169.88 -
Net Carrying Amount 78.47 20.24
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)

Note (ix): Other Non-Financial Assets
Particulars

Capital Advances

Prepaid Expenses

Deferred Acquisition Cost
Leave Encashment Fund
Gratuity Fund

Advances to Suppliers
Other Statutory Receivables
Advances to Employees
SCWF Fund

Other Advances

Note (x): Derivative Financial Instruments
Particulars

Interest Rate Derivatives

As at As at
31° March 2025 31 March 2024
3.15 6.29
4373 4773
- 0.59
50.72 46.79
96.66 83.31
62.14 12.83
9.41 7.33
0.02 0.34
= 0.30
0.59 -
266.42 205.51
As at As at

31° March 2025

31° March 2024

Asset

Dirty Notional Amounts 16,321.79 15,089.11

Clean Notional Amounts 15,740.51 14,625.02

Fair Value Assets 503.52 349.74

Liability

Dirty Notional Amounts 4,118.74 1,508.57

Clean Notional Amounts 3,888.35 1,415.79

Fair Value Liability 29.04 10.77

Note (xi): Trade Payables

Particulars As at As at
31* March 2025 31% March 2024

Total Outstanding Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises 17.52 12.34

Total Outstanding Dues for Credit other than Micro

and Small Enterpgrises 72170 582.23

739.22 594.57

Terms and Conditions of the above Financial Liabilities:
i) Trade payables are non-interest bearing, and are normally settled on 60-90 day terms.
ii) For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer to Note 55.

Note (xii): Other Financial Liabilities
As at As at

Particulars . =
31> March 2025 31° March 2024

(At Amortised Cost)

Payables for Salaries, Wages, Bonus and other Employee Benefits 208.69 166.65
Payables for Capital Expenditure 0.04 0.01
Dues to Policyholders 1,462.74 1,003.98
Liability for Unclaimed and Terminated Cases 70.36 152.66
Deposits 5.10 3.68
Mark To Market - FRA Payable 424 .84 268.33
Subvention Money Received - 1.95

2,171.77 1,597.26




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31° March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

Note (xiii): Provisions

Particulars

Provision for Employee Benefits
Leave Encashment

Long term incentive plan
Provision for Gratuity

Note (xiv): Life Insurance Contract Liabilities and Restricted Surplus

Particulars

Contract Liabilities of Life Insurance
Insurance Contract Liabilities
Investment Contract Liabilities
Fair Value Changes of Policyholders' Investments
Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Policyholder Fund Other Changes
Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Amortised Cost (Others)

Note (xv): Other Non-Financial Liabilities

Particulars

Advances from Customers

Other Payables
Deferred Liabilities for Deposits
Deferred Fees
Statutory Dues
Deposits for Agents Training and Others
Subvention Money Received

FRN :
107122W /
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As at As at
31° March 2025 31% March 2024
34.67 28.50

7.31 9.18

102.61 86.14

144.59 123.82

As at As at

31% March 2025

31° March 2024

83,480.46 60,787.67
13,510.34 23,494.84
284.26 447.61
1,012.08 618.92
33.91 21.73
(9.58) (9.17)
39.08 26.86
98,350.55 85,388.46
As at As at
31° March 2025 31° March 2024
16.70 22.71
3.28 2.36
. 0.31
94.19 71.22
1.07 0.90
1.95 -
117.19 97.50




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31° March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

Note (xvi): Income from Life Insurance Operations

Particulars Note No.
Life Insurance Premium (Net of Service Tax/GST)

Reinsurance Ceded

Fees and Commission Income

Interest Income (xvi)A
Dividend Income

Fair Value Changes (xvi)B
Other Income (xvi)C

Note (xvi)A: Interest Income of Life Insurance Operations

Particulars

Interest on Loans
On Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Interest Income from Investments
On Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through OCI
On Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost
On Financial Assets Classified at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Interest on Deposits with Banks
On Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through OCI
On Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Other Interest Income
On Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Note (xvi)B: Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Changes of Life Insurance Operations
Particulars

A. On Financial Instruments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
On Trading Portfolio
Equity
Others
B. On Financial Instruments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Debts
C. On Financial Instruments at Amortised Cost
Debt
Equity
Total Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Changes
Fair Value Changes:
Realised
Unrealised

Note (xvi)C: Other Income of Life Insurance Operations
Particulars

Changes in Market Value of Leave Encashment Fund and Gratuity
Notional Interest Income

Deferred Lease Income on Refundable Deposits

Sub-Lease Rent Income

Others

Year ended

31° March 2025

Year ended
31% March 2024

18,507.63 15,057.60
(595.96) (535.94)

0.31 0.38
3,572.51 2,890.36
77.19 75.02

53.55 430.83

26.79 31.82
21,642.02 17,950.07
Year ended Year ended

31° March 2025

31° March 2024

- 0.55

879.60 736.81
2,603.40 2,068.03
(5.34) 15.97

6.74 3.14

- 0.49

88.11 65.37
3,572.51 2,890.36
Year ended Year ended

31% March 2025

31° March 2024

71.99 505.82
(34.32) (83.08)

9.10 1.81

6.78 10.23

- (3.95)

53.55 430.83
340.32 168.88
(286.77) 261.95
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 _ 31% March 2024
11.69 14.73

(0.33) 2.37

0.47 0.35

14.96 12.57

- 1.80

26.79 31.82




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31° March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

Note (xvii): Expenses of the Life Insurance Operations

Particulars

Finance Costs

Fees and Commission Expenses
Impairment on Financial Instruments
Employee Benefits Expenses

Benefits Payout

Claims Ceded to Reinsurers

Changes in Valuation of Liabilities
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Other Expenses

Add: Restricted Life Insurance Surplus Retained in Policyholders' Fund

WM&
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Note No.

(xvii)A

(xvii)B
(xvii)C
(xvii)D

(xvii)E
(xvii)F
(xvii)G

Year ended Year ended
31° March 2025 31 March 2024
18.20 14.68
1,359.00 908.94
435 0.91
1,520.35 1,191.00
8,849.31 7,181.98
(536.98) (379.12)
9,399.64 7,594.89
108.72 97.62
1,172.82 992.26
21,895.41 17,603.16
(280.37) 266.77
21,615.04 17,869.93




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31° March 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)

Note (xvii)A: Finance Costs of Life Insurance Operations

Particulars

Finance Cost - Lease Liabilities

Note (xvii)B: Impairment on Financial Instruments of Life Insurance Operations

Particulars

Provision for Security Deposits

Provision on Investments (ECL)

Provision for Standard and Non-Standard Assets
Provision on Agent's Receivable

Provision Others

Note (xvii)C: Employee Benefits Expenses of Life Insurance Operations

Particulars

Salaries, Wages and Bonus

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Gratuity Expenses

Staff Welfare Expenses

ESOP Charges

Note (xvii)D: Benefits Payouts of Life Insurance Operations
Particulars

Claims by Death

Claims by Maturity
Annuities/Pension Payments
Surrender and Withdrawals
Other Benefits (Riders)

Note (xvii)E: Changes in Valuation of Liabilities in Respect of Life Insurance Policies in Force of Life Insurance Operations

Particulars

Changes in Valuation of Liabilities in respect of Life Insurance Policies
Release from funds from future appropriations
Changes in Premium Discontinuance Funds

Investments (Income)/Loss on Life Insurance Policyholders' Fund related to Linked Business

/32
EEN
/%W
(3¢ tom22w/
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Year ended Year ended
31° March 2025 31 March 2024
18.20 14.68
18.20 14.68
Year ended Year ended
31° March 2025 31% March 2024
(0.09) (0.29)
2.29 1.82
s (0.05)
0.91 (0.23)
1.24 (0.34)
4.35 0.91
Year ended Year ended
31% March 2025 31 March 2024
1,410.20 1,105.78
63.12 49.22
7.15 5.90
21.08 26.20
18.80 3.90
1,520.35 1,191.00
Year ended Year ended
31° March 2025 31 March 2024
1,260.04 996.45
422.37 694.21
64.44 40.13
6,067.51 4,924.95
1,034.95 526.24
8,849.31 7,181.98
Year ended Year ended
31° March 2025 31 March 2024
11,885.24 14,117.39
23.37 61.61
11.32 93.86
(2,520.29) (6,677.97)
9,399.64 7,594.89




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31° March 2025

(R in crore except otherwise stated)

Note (xvii)F: Depreciation and Amortisation Expense of Life Insurance Operations

Particulars

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

Amortisation of Intangible Assets
Amortisation of RoU Assets

Note (xvii)G: Other Expenses of Life Insurance Operations

Particulars

Rent
Repairs and Maintenance of:
Buildings
Others
Rates and Taxes
Electricity Expenses
Advertisements
Distribution Expenses
Legal and Professional Fees
Printing and Stationery
Travelling and Conveyance
Communication Expenses
Loss on Sale /Discard of Fixed Assets (Net)
Information Technology Expenses
Miscellaneous Expenses
Others Expenses

Year ended Year ended
31" March 2025 31 March 2024
22.71 16.03
29.58 29.95
56.43 51.64
108.72 97.62
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025  31% March 2024
25.59 14.72

2.43 1.94

30.79 11.21
73.73 65.99

12.11 9.23

37.91 243.76

120.32 93.21
54.72 45.67

3.84 473

36.38 23.51

8.18 9.15

0.17 -0.06

133.71 113.69
560.87 289.61
72.07 65.90
1,172.82 992.26




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 54

A. CARRYING VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Category-wise classification of financial assets and financial liabilities as on 31 March 2025

Particulars Amortised Cost Man:\e;-trc;rll-ly at FVTOCI Des;:gi/n_?;id o Tot:ln:::J;)t/mg
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,330.79 - - - 4,330.79
(b) Bank Balances other than (a) above 1,672.49 - - - 1,672.49
(c) Derivative Financial Instruments - 503.52 31.01 0.02 534.55
(d) Receivables

(i) Trade Receivables 688.25 - - - 688.25

(i) Other Receivables 11.43 - - - 11.43
(e) Loans 1,52,643.80 - - - 1,52,643.80
(f) Investments
- Investments of Life Insurance Business

(i) Investments of Life Insurance Policyholders 40,532.97 4,433.42 12,471.18 - 57,437.57

(ii) Investments of Life Insurance Shareholders - 233.36 4,834.02 - 5,067.38
- Other Investments 366.42 7,432.42 29.97 - 7,828.81
(g) Assets Held to Cover Linked Liabilities - 37,762.26 - - 37,762.26
(h) Other Financial Assets 2,882.72 - - - 2,882.72
Total Financial Assets 2,03,128.87 50,364.98 17,366.18 0.02 2,70,860.05
(a) Derivative Financial Instruments - 29.04 128.36 0.02 157.42
(b) Payables

- Trade Payables

(i) Tsor::]&ur:ts;?;:g;% Dues of Micro Enterprises and 69.30 ) ) i 69.30

e et el - - | e

- Other Payables

(i) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and ) ) ) ) )

Small Enterprises
(if) Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than ) ) ) i i
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

(c) Debt Securities 49,568.68 - 182.74 49,751.42
(d) Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 83,731.22 - - - 83,731.22
(e) Subordinated Liabilities 5,864.75 - - - 5,864.75
(f) Lease Liabilities 661.75 - - - 661.75
(g) Policyholders' Liabilities - - - 98,350.55 98,350.55
(h) Other Financial Liabilities 5,587.84 - - - 5,687.84
Total Financial Liabilities 1,46,732.48 29.04 128.36 98,533.31 2,45,423.19
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31° March 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)
Category-wise classification of financial assets and financial liabilities as on 31 March 2024

Particulars Amortised Cost Mans‘?_’:%rlily et FVTOCI Desgnm;id at Toi‘;::zmg
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,554.30 - - - 1,554.30
(b) Bank Balances other than (a) above 2,024.71 - - - 2,024.71
(c) Derivative Financial Instruments - 349.74 10.33 0.08 360.15
(d) Receivables

(i) Trade Receivables 698.14 - - - 698.14

(i) Other Receivables 16.08 - - - 16.08
(e) Loans 1,23,117.76 - - - 1,23,117.76
(f) Investments
- Investments of Life Insurance Business

- Investments of Life Insurance Policyholders 32,305.87 3,902.63 10,443.62 - 46,652.12

- Investments of Life Insurance Shareholders - 136.17 3,864.81 - 4,000.98
- Other Investments 3.85 8,479.15 3.97 - 8,486.97
(g) Assets Held to Cover Linked Liabilities - 36,005.19 - - 36,005.19
(h) Other Financial Assets 1,817.69 - - - 1,817.69
Total Financial Assets 1,61,538.40 48,872.88 14,322.73 0.08 2,24,734.09
(a) Derivative Financial Instruments - 10.76 83.11 3.62 97.49
(b) Payables

- Trade Payables

(i) ;ﬁleOEL:tset?:slsr;i Dues of Micro Enterprises and 30.89 } ) : 30.89

O e e s : : | e

- Other Payables

(i) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and } ; A ) }

Small Enterprises
(i) Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than : ) B } 3
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

(c) Debt Securities 36,397.68 - - 497.87 36,895.55
(d) Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 68,834.42 - - - 68,834.42
(e) Subordinated Liabilities 3,810.13 - - - 3,810.13
(f) Lease Liabilities 599.24 - - - 599.24
(g) Policyholders' Liabilities - - - 85,388.46 85,388.46
(h) Other Financial Liabilities 5,026.42 - - - 5,026.42
Total Financial Liabilities 1,16,080.97 10.76 83.11 85,889.95 2,02,064.79

B. FAIR VALUES
Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying

amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Particulars Asat 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
Financial Assets related to Life Insurance Business 40,532.97 42,394.14 32,305.87 33,221.02
Loans 1,52,643.80 1,52,643.80 1,23,117.76 1,23,117.76
Investments in Debentures/Bonds 361.74 361.74 3.85 3.85
Investments in Pass Through Securities 4.68 4.63 - -
Total 1,93,543.19 1,95,404.31 1,55,427.48 1,56,342.63
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
Debt Securities 49,568.68 49,971.30 36,397.68 36,423.01
Borrowings other than Debt Securities 83,731.22 83,731.22 68,834.42 68,834.42
Subordinated Liabilities 5,864.75 5,913.37 3,810.13 3,793.34
Total 1,39,164.65 1,39,615.89 1,09,042.23 1,09,050.77

Carrying value of loans given by the Group Approximates the fair value.

The Management assessed that loans against policies, leave encashment, advances to related party and others, security deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafts, and other current financial liabilities and assets approximate their carrying amounts,
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value - Fair Value Hierarchy

All assets and liabilities, for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements, are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1: Category includes financial assets and liabilities that are measured in whole or in significant part by reference to published quotes in an
active market.

* Level 2: Category includes financial assets and liabilities measured using a valuation technique based on assumptions that are supported by prices
from observable current market transactions. These include assets and liabilities, for which pricing is obtained via pricing services, but where prices
have not been determined in an active market, financial assets with fair values based on broker quotes and assets that are valued using the Group’s
own valuation models, whereby the material assumptions are market observable.

« Level 3: Category includes financial assets and liabilities measured using valuation techniques based on non-market observable inputs. This means
that fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable
current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data. The main asset classes in this category are unlisted
equity investments as well as unlisted funds.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks
of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Valuation Technique for Level 2 Instruments

Investments in Preference Shares: Investment made in preference share is not actively traded on stock exchange and such instrument are classified
as Level 2.

Investments in Government Securities: The Fair Values of investments made in Government Securities are based on valuation report from ICRA as
at the reporting period, and the same are classified under Level 2.

Investment in Alternate funds, Mutual funds and Security Receipts: Investment in Alternate funds, mutual funds & Security Receipts: Such
instruments are measured based on their published net asset value (NAV), taking into account redemption and/or other restrictions. Such instruments
are generally Level 2. NAV represents the price at which the issuer will issue further units and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from

Investments in Debt Securities:

a. NBFC

Fair value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative quote of price and yields prevailing in the market as at reporting date. The NBFC
business has used quoted price of National Stock Exchange wherever bonds are traded actively. In cases where debt securities are not actively traded,
the business has used CRISIL corporate bond valuer model for measuring fair value i.e., fair value has been computed using the Fixed Income Money
Market and Derivatives Association of India (‘FIMMDA") data on corporate bond spreads, and such instruments are classified as Level 2.

b. Life Insurance

Fair valuation of Non-Convertible Debentures, AT1 Bonds, Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares are carried basis yield matrix provided by
CRISIL on daily basis using CRISIL Bond Valuer to arrive at security level prices. Similarly, basis the available yield matrix valuation is derived for
Commercial Paper, Certificate of Deposit, and Treasury Bills. Such instruments are classified as Level 2.

>
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31° March 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)

The following table analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the reporting date, by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair
value measurement is categorised. The amounts are based on the values recognised in the statement of financial position.

Quantitative Disclosures of Fair Value Measurement Hierarchy for Assets as at 31% March 2025:

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets Measured at Fair Value:
Derivative Assets - 534.55 - 534.55
Re-insurance Assets* - - 1,641.76 1,641.76
FVTOCI Assets:
Equity - - 29.97 29.97
Financial Assets Related to Life Insurance Business
Policyholders 5,317.87 7,153.31 - 12,471.18
Shareholders 1,513.24 3,313.28 751 4,834.03
FVTPL Assets:
Equity 0.79 - - 0.79
Mutual Funds - 452.32 - 452.32
Debentures/Bonds 716.76 1,636.87 - 2,353.63
Government Securities - 4,486.08 - 4,486.08
Other Investments - 9.80 129.80 139.60
Financial Assets Related to Life Insurance Business
Policyholders 32,815.13 9,103.72 46.71 41,965.56
Shareholders 112.08 121.29 - 233.37
FVTPL Liabilities:
Debt Securities - 182.74 - 182.74
40,475.87 26,993.96 1,855.75 69,325.58
Assets for which Fair Values are disclosed above:
Loans - - 1,52,643.80 1,52,643.80
Investments in Debentures/Bonds - 361.74 - 361.74
Investments in Pass Through Securities - 4.63 - 4.63
Financial Assets Related to Life Insurance Business
Policyholders 33,422.48 8,971.66 - 42,394.14
Total 73,898.35 36,331.99 1,54,499.55 2,64,729.89
Liabilities Measured at Fair Value:
Derivative Liabilities - 157.42 - 157.42
Insurance Contract Liabilities* 24,451.00 - 59,029.46 83,480.46
Investment Contract Liabilities* 13,497.99 - 12.35 13,510.34
Liabilities for which Fair Values are disclosed above:
Debt Securities - 40,860.51 9,110.79 49,971.30
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) - - 83,731.22 83,731.22
Subordinated Liabilities - 5,902.37 11.00 5,913.37
Total 37,948.99 46,920.30 1,51,894.82 2,36,764.11

* Refer Note 55 Risk related to Insurance Business for movement and sensitivity analysis

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31° March 2025

(R in crore except otherwise stated)

Quantitative Disclosures of Fair Value Measurement Hierarchy for Assets as at 31 March 2024:

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets Measured at Fair Value:
Derivative Assets - 360.15 - 360.15
Re-insurance Assets* - - 1,363.92 1,363.92
FVTOCI Assets:
Equity - - 3.97 3.97
Financial Assets Related to Life Insurance Business
Policyholders 5,098.71 5,344.90 - 10,443.61
Shareholders 1,321.50 2,542.43 0.88 3,864.81
FVTPL Assets:
Equity 0.68 - - 0.68
Mutual Funds - 1,367.00 - 1,367.00
Debentures/Bonds 429.97 816.52 - 1,246.49
Government Securities - 5,291.31 - 5,291.31
Other Investments - - 573.67 573.67
Financial Assets Related to Life Insurance Business
Policyholders 30,368.43 9,472.84 - 39,841.27
Shareholders 52.02 84.16 - 136.18
FVTPL Liabilities:
Debt Securities - 497.87 - 497.87
37,271.31 25,777.18 1,942.44 64,990.93
Assets for which Fair Values are disclosed above:
Loans - - 1,23,117.76 1,23,117.76
Investments in Debentures/Bonds - 3.85 - 3.85
Financial Assets Related to Life Insurance Business
Policyholders 24,836.10 8,384.92 - 33,221.02
62,107.41 34,165.95 1,25,060.20 2,21,333.56
Liabilities Measured at Fair Value:
Derivative Liabilities - 97.49 - 97.49
Insurance Contract Liabilities* 24,098.67 - 36,689.00 60,787.67
Investment Contract Liabilities* 11,968.26 - 11,526.58 23,494.84
Liabilities for which Fair Values are disclosed above: - . - -
Debt Securities - 25,212.23 11,210.78 36,423.01
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) - - 68,834.42 68,834.42
Subordinated Liabilities - 3,782.34 11.00 3,793.34
Total 36,066.93 29,092.06 1,28,271.78 1,93,430.77

* Refer Note 55 Risk related to Insurance Business for movement and sensitivity analysis

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(X in crore except otherwise stated)

Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, together with a
quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31% March 2025 and 31% March 2024 are as shown below:

Financial Assets/Liabilities Related to Insurance Business (Investment in
CDSL Insurance Repository)

Valuation
Techniques

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs

Range

Sensitivity of
the Input to Fair
Value

For 31° March 2025

Private Equity Investment

Private Equity Investment

Private Equity Investment

Price to Book
Value Method

Valuation at
10% Discount
compared to
peer group

Valuation at par
with peer group

Valuation at
10% Premium
compared to
peer group

0.45

0.50

0.55

6.58

7.31

8.04

For 31%" March 2024

Private Equity Investment

Private Equity Investment

Private Equity Investment

Price to Book
Value Method

Valuation at
10% Discount
compared to
peer group

Valuation at par
with peer group

Valuation at
10% Premium
compared to
peer group

0.45

0.50

0.55

6.34

7.05

7.75

Financial Assets/Liabilities Related to Insurance Business
(Investment in National Stock Exchange of India Limited)

Valuation
Techniques

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs

Range

Sensitivity of
the Input to Fair
Value

For 31° March 2025

Private Equity Investment

Private Equity Investment

Private Equity Investment

Price to Book
Value Method

Valuation at
10% Discount
compared to
peer group

Valuation at par
with peer group

Valuation at
10% Premium
compared to
peer group

8.10

9.00

9.90

3,923

4,359

4,795

For 31%" March 2024

Private Equity Investment

Private Equity Investment

Private Equity Investment

Price to Book
Value Method

Valuation at
10% Discount
compared to
peer group

Valuation at par
with peer group

Valuation at
10% Premium
compared to
peer group

7.20

8.00

8.8

2,979

3,310
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March 2025
(X in crore except otherwise stated)

Impact on Fair Value of Level 3 Financial Instruments measured at Fair Value of changes to key assumptions

The table summarises the valuation techniques together with the significant unobservable inputs used to calculate the fair value of the Group’s Level 3
assets and liabilities.

Relationships between unobservable inputs have not been incorporated in this summary.

Fair Value
As at 31° March 2025
Financial Assets Related to Other Level 3 . Significant
Business  Valuation| - rvable
Assets Technique Inputs
Equity Shares 29.97 bt Warth af Instrument Price

Investee Company

Discounted| Expected Gross
Others 129.80 Projected Cash| Recoveries and
Flow| Discount Rates

Fair Value
As at 31% March 2024
Financial Assets Related to Other ignifi
Buo Level 3 Valuation Significant
usiness - Unobservable
Technique
Assets Inputs
Net Worth of i
Equity Shares 3.97 | |nvestee Company Instrument Price

Discounted| Expected Gross
Others 573.67 Projected Cash| Recoveries and
Flow| Discount Rates

Sensitivity of Fair Value Measurements to changes in unobservable market data

As at 31° March 2025 As at 31° March 2024
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable| Unfavourable
Particulars Changes Changes Changes Changes
(+5%) (-5%) (+5%) (-5%)
Equity Shares 1.50 (1.50) 0.20 (0.20)
Others 6.49 (6.49) 28.68 (28.68)
Reconciliation of Level 3 Fair Value Instruments
Particul Year ended Year ended
articutars 31% March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the Year 1,942.44 1,789.07
Gains or Losses
in Profit or Loss (86.90) 51.24
in OCI 1.04 0.91
Purchases 170.74 12.24
Sales (449.41) -
Movement of Other Current Assets - -
Movement of Re-Insurance Assets 277.84 88.98
Balance at the end of the Year 1,855.75 1,942.44




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

NOTE: 55
RISK RELATED TO INSURANCE BUSINESS

Insurance and Financial Risk
The principal risk the Group faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefits payments or the timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the
frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. Therefore, the objective of the Group is to ensure that sufficient reserves

are available to cover these liabilities.
The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical areas. The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and
implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements.

1. Life Insurance Contracts and Investment Contracts with and without Discretionary Participation Feature (DPF)

Ind AS 104 requires products offered by the Insurance Group to classify them in Insurance Contract and Investment Contract. Each contract needs to be classified in insurance contract
and investment contract based on the risk they carry.

A contract would be an insurance contract and investment contract with DPF, if the benefits pavable on death is higher by:
atleast 5% of the fund value at any time during the life on the contract for unit-linked products, or
at 5% of the premium at any time durina the life of the contract for other than unit-linked products.

All other contracts are categorised as Investment Contracts.

For contracts with DPF, the participating nature of these contracts result in a significant portion of the insurance risk being shared with the insured party. For contracts without DPF, the
Group charges for death and disability risks on a quarterly basis. Under these contracts, the Group has the right to alter these charges to take account of death and disability experience,
thereby mitigating the risks to the Group.

The main risks that the Group is exposed to are as follows:

i) Persistency Risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder experiences (lapses and surrenders) being different than expected.

ii) Mortality Risk — risk of loss arising due to policyholder death experience being different than expected.

iii) Morbidity Risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder health experience being different than expected.

iv) Longevity Risk - risk of loss arising due to the annuitant living longer than expected.

v) Investment Return Risk - risk of loss arising from actual returns being different than expected.

vi) Expense Risk - risk of loss arising from expense experience being different than expected.

vii) Product and Pricing Risk — risk of loss due to incorrect pricing or not adhering to the product regulations or higher payouts due to ambiguity in terms and conditions.
viii) Reinsurance Risk — The Group enters into reinsurance agreements in order to mitigate insurance risk. However, this leads to default risk from the reinsurer at the time of claim
payment or also concentration risk, if all the risks are insured to one reinsurer.

ix) Concentration Risk — The Group faces concentration risk by selling business to specific geography or by writing only single line business, etc.

Control Measures
The actuarial department has set up systems to continuously monitor the Group’s experience with regard to parameters like policy lapses, premium persistency, maintenance expenses

and investment returns. The underwriting team, with actuarial guidance, has set in place processes and procedures to review proposal. Many products offered by the Group also have
an investment guarantee. The Group has set aside additional reserves to cover this risk.

Further, the possible financial effect of adverse mortality and morbidity experience has been reduced by entering into reinsurance agreements with multiple reinsurers. The Group has
entered into a separate agreement with reinsurers to cover the catastrophic risks under individual and the Group business.

A further element of managing risk is to limit the exposure to individual segments of the population. In essence, being over-represented in any population segment will increase the
variance of the Group's experience, and so, there are advantages to diversifying across all relevant population segments, at least until data is available to confirm which segments can be
expected to have relatively favourable experience. At the present stage in the Group’s development, the focus is on building new distribution, and so, geographical diversification is
actively taking place. In future, the actuarial team will need to be alert to assess potential risk aggregations.

The Group has a Board approved Risk Management Policy covering underwriting, claims and reserving for policy liabilities. The Group has a detailed claims processing manual in place.
Complicated and large claims are referred to the Group’s Claims Review Committee.




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31°' March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

Life Insurance Contracts Liabilities

As at 31* March 2025 As at 31°' March 2024
Particul. i i
artiedars With DPF Linked Others Total With DPF Linked Others Total
Business Business
Gross Liabilities at the beginning of the
year 9,320.88 24,335.52 27,131.27 60,787.67 7,825.04 20,805.62 20,889.59 49,520.25
Reclassified as Insurance Contracts 10,447.85 - 1,061.68 11,509.53
Add/(Less)
Premium 4,242.48 3,476.69 10,938.89 18,658.06 1,554.92 2,607.28 8,732.28 12,894.48
g:‘;’g;gg‘g of tie Discouritinterest 1,136.04 1,465.18 2,897.39 5,498.61 707.27 5,303.08 1,931.34 7,941.69
Insurance Liabilities Released (2,425.72) (4,272.31) (3,543.58) (10,241.61) (460.31) (4,032.86) (2,663.75) (7,156.92)
Undistributed Participating - - 61.61 61.61
- B 5 .37
Policvholders surplus (FFA) 1822 1045 B
Others (Expense Overrun, Contribution
from S/H and ProfitiLoss) 259.29 (283.81) (2,730.65) (2,755.17) (306.04) (347.60) (1,819.80) (2,473.44)
Gross Liabilities at the end of the Year 22,980.82 24,734.49 35,765.15 83,480.46 9,320.88 24,335.52 27,131.27 60,787.67
Recoverable from Reinsurance 413 27.69 1,609.94 1,641.76 4.18 23.15 1,336.59 1,363.92
Net Liabilities 22,976.69 24,706.80 34,155.21 81,838.70 9,316.70 24,312.37 25,794.68 59,423.75
Investment Contracts Liabilities
As at 31* March 2025 As at 31* March 2024
Particul. ; s
artiethars With DPF Linked Others Total With DPF Linked Others Total
Business Business
At the beginning of the Year 10,447.85 11,971.92 1,075.07 23,494.84 8,649.61 10,013.54 624.16 19,287.31
Reclassified as Insurance Contracts (10,447.85) - (1,061.68) (11,509.53)
Additions
Premium - 1,980.47 0.24 1,980.71 2,288.40 1,603.55 473.69 4,365.64
Interest and Bonus Credited to - 1,016.93 0.49 1,017.42 442.49 1,339.03 58.53 1,840.05
Policvholders
Deductions
Withdrawals/Claims - 1,370.40 - 1,370.40 1,209.79 824.38 - 2,034.17
Fee Income and Other Expenses - 18.27 4.44 22.71 - 14.84 15.10 29.94
Other Profit and Loss - 77.47 2.52 79.99 (277.14) 142.91 66.21 (68.02)
Others (includes DAC, DOF and ) R ) R R i
Profit/Loss) 207 207
At the end of the Year - 13,503.18 7.16 13,510.34 10,447.85 11,971.92 1,075.07 23,494.84
Reinsurance Assets
. st 31% March
Particulars 31% March 2025 2024
At the beginning of the Year 1,363.92 1,274.94
Add/(Less)
Premium 595.96 535.94
Unwinding of the Discount/Interest
Credited 94.66 79.25
Insurance Liabilities Released (536.97) (379.12)
Others (Experience Variations) 124.19 (147.09)
At the end of the Year 1,641.76 1,363.92
Deferred Acquisition Costs
Particulars Amount
As at 1** April 2023 1.38
Expenses deferred -
Amortisation (0.79)
As at 31% March 2024 0.59
Expenses deferred -
Amortisation 0.59
As at 31* March 2025 -
Deferred origination fees
Particulars Amount
As at 1% April 2023 0.69
Expenses deferred -
Amortisation (0.38)
As at 31* March 2024 0.31
Expenses deferred -
Amortisation 0.31
As at 31* March 2025 -
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31°' March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)
Key Assumptions

The assumptions play vital role in calculating Insurance Liabilities for the Group. Material judgement is required in determining the liabilities and in the choice of assumptions. Best
estimate assumptions in use are based on historical and current experience, internal data, some judgement and as per guidance notes/actuarial practice standards. However, for the
purpose of valuation, an additional level of prudence has been kept on all the best estimate assumptions known as MfAD (Margin for Adverse Deviation).The Group keeps adequate
MfAD, as prescribed in APS 7, issued by the Institute of Actuaries of India (1Al), in all assumptions over the best estimate value.

Best Estimate Assumptions are further evaluated on a continuous basis in order to ensure realistic and reasonable valuations.
Assumptions can vary by type of product, duration, gender, etc., if the experience of any category is significantly different, and data is credible for the respective category.

The key assumptions to which the estimation of liabilities is particularly sensitive, are as follows:

i) Mortality and Morbidity Rates

Assumptions are based on historical experience and for new products based on industry, reinsurers data. An appropriate, but not excessive, allowance may be made for expected future
improvements. Assumptions may vary by type of product, distribution channel, gender, etc.

An increase in mortality/morbidity rates will usually lead to a larger number/amount of claims (and claims could occur sooner than anticipated), which will increase the liability and
reduce profits for the shareholders.

ii) Longevity

Assumptions are based on standard industry and national tables, adjusted when appropriate to reflect the Group's own risk experience. An appropriate, but not excessive, prudent
allowance is made for expected future improvements. Assumptions are normally differentiated by gender, underwriting class and contract type. An increase in longevity rates will lead to
an increase in the number of annuity payments to be made, which will increase the liability and reduce profits for the shareholders.

iii) Investment Returns and Discount Rates
The weighted-average rate of return is derived based on a model portfolio that is assumed to back liabilities, consistent with the long-term asset allocation strategy. These estimates are

based on current market returns as well as expectations about future economic and financial developments.

An increase in investment return would lead to an increase in profits for the shareholders.

Life Insurance liabilities are determined as the sum of the discounted value of the expected benefits and future administration expenses directly related to the contract, less the
discounted value of the expected theoretical premiums that would be required to meet these future cash outflows. Discount rates are based on investment strategy of the Group, current
industry risk rates, adjusted for the Group’s own risk exposure.

A decrease in the discount rate will increase the value of the insurance liability and, therefore, reduce profits for the shareholders.

iv) Expenses and Inflation
Operating expenses assumptions reflect the projected costs of maintaining and servicing in-force policies and associated overhead expenses. The current level of expenses is taken as

an appropriate expense base, adjusted for expected expense inflation, if appropriate.
An increase in the level of expenses would result in an increase in expenditure, thereby reducing profits for the shareholders.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31°' March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)
v) Lapse, Surrender and Partial Withdrawal Rates

Lapses relate to the termination of policies due to non-payment of premiums. Surrenders relate to the voluntary termination of policies by policyholders. Policy termination assumptions
are determined using statistical measures based on the Group's experience, and usually vary by product type, policy duration and sales trends.

An increase in lapse rates early in the life of the policy would tend to reduce profits for shareholders, but later increases are broadly neutral in effect.

The best estimate assumptions, that have the greatest effect on the Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of Profit and Loss of the Group, are listed below.

asset backing non-
unit liabilities

asset backing non-
unit liabilities

Mortality Rates Investment Returns Lapse and Surrender Rates
Portfolio Assumptions by the Type of Business Impacting Net Liabilities 31 March 31 March 21 March 21 March 31 March 2025 | 31" March 2024
2025 2024 2025 2024
Insurance
PY1:9% - 25%
PY1:9% - 21%
N 75% - 275% of 75% - 275% of 56 PY2:1%
With DPF IALM2012-14 | IALM2012-14 /-L5%:pa [ PY2; 3 PY3+:1% - 2%
PY3 +:2% 3
(varying by product)
a) 9.0% pa for a) 9.0% pa for \ G667 .
assets backing assets backing P';;l- ‘31;)02’ _33?;{;’/0 ?Y(; : ;26%.2232
. - 40-100% of 55% of IALM2012-| linked liabilities linked liabilities S e fnh 'w_ "
Linked Business IALM2012-14 14 b) 6.85% pa for | b)6.9%pafor | TS 25%-20% | PY3+: 3%-20%

(varying by product
and duration)

(varying by product
and duration)

Others

20.07%-450% of
IALM2012-14

19.4%-407% of
IALM2012-14

6.51%-7.58% pa

6.53%-7.53% pa

PY1 : 0%-40%
PY2: 0% - 15%
PY3+: 0% -12%

(varying by product
and duration)

PY1:0%-40%
PY2:0% - 15%
PY3+: 0% -12%
(varying by product
and duration)

Partial Withdrawal

Renewal Per Policy Expense
Assumptions

Inflation

Portfolio Assumptions by the Type of Business impacting Net Liabilities

31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March
2025 2024 2025 2024 31st March 2025| 31st March 2024
Insurance
With DPF N/A N/A Max 862.43 Per Max 82‘!.36 Per 0.05 0.05
policy policy
Linked Business 0%- 3% p.a. 0%-3% p.a. | 862.43 Per policy 82;'0?;?;” 0.05 0.05
Max 862.43 Per | Max 821.36 Per
Others N/A N/A policy (varies by |policy (varies by 0.05 0.05
' product) product)

Note: Commission scales have been allowed in accordance with the product filing with IRDA.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following analysis is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other assumptions held constant, showing the impact on gross liabilities. The
correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact, due to changes in assumptions, assumptions had to be
changed on an individual basis. It should be noted that the movements in these assumptions are non-linear. The method used for deriving sensitivity information and significant
assumptions made did not change from the previous period. The sensitivities are same as shared with Regulators during annual reporting.

31° March 2025 31 March 2024

Sensitivity Parameters T Investments | Investments IhSiifance Investments Investments
with DPF without DPF with DPF without DPF

Lapses Increased by 10% 70,346.46 12,141.94 13,509.99 60,078.70 10,447.88 12,907.88
Lapses Decreased by 10% 72,162.95 12,141.94 13,510.79 61,425.81 10,447.88 13,197.31
Mortality Increased by 10% 72,326.47 12,141.94 13,520.90 60,989.17 10,447.88 13,103.50
Mortality Decreased by 10% 70,162.53 12,141.94 13,499.68 60,477.78 10,447.88 12,993.62
Expenses Increased by 10% 71,616.51 12,141.94 13,604.77 60,949.41 10,447.88 13,004.95
Expenses Decreased by 10% 70,833.52 12,141.94 13,362.03 60,505.17 10,447.88 12,999.51
Interest Rate Increased by 100 bps 7117142 12,141.94 13,312.00 60,659.68 10,447.88 13,032.70
Interest Rate Decreased by 100 bps 7137655 12,141.94 13,727.02 60,795.40 10,447.88 13,061.86
Inflation Rate Increased by 100 bps 71,585.88 12,141.94 1371826 60,996.86 10,447.88 13,105.15
Inflation Rate Decreased by 100 bps 70,926.09 12,141.94 13,377.81 60,507.25 10,447.88 12,999.95

W100672
MUMBAI




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

Financial Risks

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The Group is subject to credit
risk in connection with issuers of securities held in our investment portfolio and reinsurers. Losses may occur when a counterparty fails to make timely payments,
pursuant to the terms of the underlying contractual arrangement or when the counterparty’s credit rating or risk profile otherwise deteriorates. Credit risk can occur at
multiple levels, as a result of broad economic conditions, challenges within specific sectors of the economy, or from issues affecting individual companies. Events that
result in defaults, impairments or downgrades of the securities in our investment portfolio would cause the Group to record realised or unrealised losses and increase

our provisions for asset default, adversely impacting earnings.

Governance structure, in the form of Investment Committee, and well defined investment policies and processes are in place to ensure that the risks involved in
investments are identified and acceptable levels are defined. Stringent investment norms and approval structure ensures healthy portfolio while delivering the expected
performance. All Regulatory and Internal Norms are built in the investment system, which monitors the investment limits and exposure norms on real-time basis. The
Group uses systems like MSCI Barra One to evaluate and monitor risks.

The policyholders’ funds are invested in accordance with regulatory norms, investment policy, fund objective of unit-linked funds and risk profile of the respective fund in
fixed income segment. Majority of the investments are made in the government securities having sovereign rating and debt securities issued by reputed corporate

Derivative financial instrument: The settlement risk, the Group is exposed to, is mitigated by an adequate amount of margin money.

Industry Analysis

As on 31* March 2025

Particulars Infrastructure Financial and Government | IT Services Manufacturin Others Total
Insurance a
1 |Financial Assets at FVTOCI
Policyholders
Debt 519.08 5,408.62 - 160.73 300.36 15.30 6,404.09
Government Securities - - 5,182.06 109.77 - 26.04 5,317.87
Others - 466.15 283.07 - - - 749.22
Shareholders
Debt 503.52 2,322.56 - 74.36 345.96 5.44 3,251.84
Equity - 67.12 - 6.60 - - 73.72
Government Securities - - 1,399.74 21.25 - 26.04 1,447.03
Others - 31.51 29.92 - - - 61.43
2 |Financial Assets at FVTPL
Policyholders
Debt 833.37 4,836.35 - 142.67 528.11 - 6,340.50
Equity 3,189.64 6,713.51 - 2,765.65 8,858.42 1,255.70 22,782.92
Government Securities - - 11,478.15 - - - 11,478.15
Mutual Fund Units - 528.64 - - - - 528.64
Others - 243.76 591.58 - - 230.13 1,065.47
Shareholders
Debt - 35.34 - - - 2.11 37.45
Government Securities - - 8.00 - - - 8.00
Equity - 157.03 - - - - 157.03
Mutual Fund Units - 30.88 - - - - 30.88
3 |Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
Policyholders
Debt 1,610.39 6,163.00 - 92.60 216.71 15.15 8,097.85
Government Securities - - 31,837.06 55.56 - - 31,892.62
Others - - 542.50 - - - 542.50
Total Credit Risk Exposure 6,656.00 27,004.47 51,352.08 3,429.19 10,249.56 1,575.91 1,00,267.21
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March 2025
(% in crore except otherwise stated)

As on 31% March 2024

Particulars Infrastructure Financial And Government | IT Services Manufactirin Others Total —’
Insurance q
1 |Financial Assets at FVTOCI
Policyholders
Debt 382.81 4,154.21 - 174.81 270.74 30.66 5,013.23
Government Securities - - 4,989.94 82.73 - 26.04 5,098.71
Others - 109.89 221.79 - - - 331.68
Shareholders
Debt 359.62 1,906.91 - 63.06 175.68 10.62 2,515.89
Equity - 30.77 - - - - 30.77
Government Securities - - 1,244.62 20.96 - 26.04 1,291.62
Others - 10.67 15.86 - - - 26.53
2 |Financial Assets at FVTPL
Policyholders
Debt 1,037.43 4,819.99 - 170.81 754.82 31.09 6,814.14
Equity 3,141.31 5,962.65 - 3,141.99 8,127.41 1,103.90 21,477.26
Government Securities - - 10,016.32 - - - 10,016.32
Mutual Fund Units - 590.47 - - - - 590.47
Others - 340.03 603.05 - - 66.55 1,009.63
Shareholders
Debt 1.54 40.18 - - - 2.50 44.22
Equity - 74.55 - - - - 74.55
Government Securities - - 7.80 - - - 7.80
Mutual Fund Units - 9.60 - - - - 9.60
3 [Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
Policyholders
Debt 1,552.25 6,046.86 - 97.78 216.64 20.29 7,933.82
Government Securities - - 24,055.80 55.57 - - 24,111.37
Others - - 260.68 - - - 260.68
L Total Credit Risk Exposure 6,474.96 24,096.78 41,415.86 3,807.71 9,545.29 1,317.69 86,658.29
Credit Exposure by Credit Rating
As on 31 March 2025
Particulars UNR SOVEREIGN AAA AA+ AA- AA Others Total
1 |Financial Assets at FVTOCI
Policyholders
Debt - - 5,360.36 895.55 - 148.18 - 6,404.09
Government Securities - 5,182.06 135.81 - - - - 5,317.87
Others 287.05 283.07 179.10 - - - - 749.22
Shareholders
Debt - 2,346.05 715.43 67.20 122.11 1.05 3,251.84
Equity 73.72 - - - - - - 73.72
Government Securities - 1,399.74 47.29 - - - - 1,447.03
Others 31.51 29.92 - - - - - 61.43
2 |Financial Assets at FVTPL
Policyholders
Debt - - 5,495.81 547.07 82.50 215.12 - 6,340.50
Equity 22,148.49 - 371.72 241.85 - 20.86 - 22,782.92
Government Securities - 11,478.15 - - - - - 11,478.15
Mutual Fund Units 528.64 - - - - - - 528.64
Others 61.32 591.58 182.44 - - - 230.13 1,065.47
Shareholders
Debt - - 37.45 - - - - 37.45
Government Securities - 8.00 - - - - - 8.00
Equity 56.61 - - 84.78 - 15.64 - 157.03
Mutual Fund Units 10.01 - 3.18 - - - 17.69 30.88
3 |Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
Policyholders
Debt - - 7,340.22 396.68 290.51 57.47 12.97 8,097.85
Government Securities - 31,837.06 55.56 - - - - 31,892.62
Others - 542.50 - - - - - 542.50
Total Credit Risk Exposure 23,197.35 51,352.08 21,554.99 2,881.36 440.21 579.38 261.84 1,00,267.21

N\D ACCO
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As on 31% March 2024

Particulars UNR SOVEREIGN AAA AA+ AA- AA Others Total
1|Financial Assets at FVTOCI
Policyholders
Debt - - 4,197.72 573.83 - 241.68 - 5,013.23
Government Securities - 4,989.94 108.77 - - - - 5,098.71
Others 67.77 221.78 42.13 - - - - 331.68
Shareholders
Debt - - 1,887.74 287.88 51.86 269.10 19.31 2,515.89
Equity 30.77 - - - - - - 30.77
Government Securities - 1,244.62 47.00 - - - - 1,291.62
Others 10.67 15.86 - - - - - 26.53
2 |Financial Assets at FVTPL
Policyholders
Debt - - 5,946.79 480.99 15.57 370.79 - 6,814.14
Equity 20,868.04 - 343.44 244.98 - 20.80 - 21,477.26
Government Securities - 10,016.32 - - - - - 10,016.32
Mutual Fund Units 590.47 - - - - - - 590.47
Others 78.90 603.05 261.13 - - - 66.55 1,009.63
Shareholders
Debt - - 44.22 - - - - 44.22
Equity - - - 58.96 - 15.59 - 74.55
Government Securities - 7.80 - - - - - 7.80
Mutual Fund Units - - 3.13 - - - 6.47 9.60
.3 [Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
Policyholders - - - - - - -
Debt - - 7,430.22 240.84 104.80 134.04 23.92 7,933.82
Government Securities - 24,055.80 55.57 - - - - 24,111.37
Others - 260.68 - - - - - 260.68
Total Credit Risk Exposure 21,646.64 41,415.85 20,367.86 1,887.48 172.23 1,052.00 116.25 86,658.29

It is the Group’s policy to maintain accurate and consistent risk ratings across its credit portfolio. This enables management to focus on the applicable risks and the
comparison of credit exposures across all lines of business, geographic regions and products. The rating system is supported by a variety of financial analytics
combined with processed market information to provide the main inputs for the measurement of counterparty risk. All internal risk ratings are tailored to the various
categories and are derived in accordance with the Group’s rating policy. The attributable risk ratings are assessed and updated regularly.

The Group manages its product mix to ensure that there is no significant concentration of credit risk.

Expected Credit Loss

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial

assets and credit risk exposure:
a) Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost, and
b) Financial assets (debt) that are measured as at fair value

ECL has been calculated on Non-ULIP portfolio as ULIP portfolio is marked-to-market. For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the
Group determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk, since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month

ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.
Loss Given Default (LGD) of 75% has been assumed across all securities.

ECL allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as an expensel/income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The Group does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/origination.

On other items, as per simplified approach, the Group makes provision on agent receivable, security deposit and other creditors as per our policy basis the ageing of
corresponding assets and liability.

ECL Allowance computed, basis above, during the period under consideration is as follows:

Financial
Movement of Allowances Assets and
Others
As at 1st April 2023 12.47
Provided during the Year 3.92
Amounts Written Off (0.95)
As at 31st March 2024 15.44
Provided during the Year 22.87
Amounts Written Off (1.34)
As at 31st March 2025 36.97

N100672
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Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the possibility that the Group will not be able to fund all cash outflow commitments as they fall due. The Group's primary funding obligations
arise in connection with the payment of policyholder benefits. Sources of available cash flow include general fund premiums and investment related
inflows (such as maturities, principal repayments, investment income and proceeds of asset sales).

An asset-liability mismatch occurs when the financial terms of the Group’s assets and liabilities do not correspond. These can lead to non-
payment/deferment of claims, expenses, etc. Through effective cash management and capital planning, the Group ensures that it is properly funded and
maintain adequate liquidity to meet obligations. Based on the Group's historical cash flows and liquidity management processes, we believe that the cash
flows from our operating activities will continue to provide sufficient liquidity for us to satisfy debt service obligations and to pay other expenses as they fall
due. A governance structure, in the form of ALM Committee and well defined Asset-Liability Management framework, requires periodic monitoring of the
Asset/Liability position of the Group. Insurance Business's asset-liability management techniques aim to manage the volume, mix, maturity, rate sensitivity,
quality and liquidity of assets and liabilities, as a whole, so as to attain a predetermined acceptable risk/reward ratio. Further, the NAV guarantee products
use proprietary monitoring mechanisms to ensure adequate ALM.

Maturity Profiles

For insurance contracts liabilities and reinsurance assets, maturity profiles are determined based on estimated timing of net cash outflows from the
recognised insurance liabilities. Unearned premiums have been excluded from the analysis as they are not contractual obligations. Unit-linked liabilities are
repayable or transferable on demand, and are included in the up-to-a-year column. Repayments, which are subject to notice, are treated as if notice were

to be given immediately.

The Group maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can be easily liquidated in the event of an unforeseeable interruption of cash

flow.

The Group manages its product mix to ensure that there is no significant concentration of credit risk.

The table below summarises the expected settliement of Financial Liabilities.

Maturity Analysis on Expected Maturity Basis

As on 31% March 2025

Particulars kess than'd 8 tol2 1to2Years | 2to3 Years | 3to5 Years >5Years Total
Months Months

Financial Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities 2,212.62 - - - - - 2,212.62

Lease Liabilities 9.95 48.32 54.77 51.99 81.34 74.72 321.09

LIfE Insurange Contract Liabilfies:and 1,760.75 1,821.69 6,077.56 9,002.96 | 1512357 |  64564.02| 9835055

Restricted Surplus

Subordinated Liabilities - - - - - 1,299.30 1,299.30

Trade and Other Payables 746.41 - - - - - 746.41

As on 31% March 2024

Particulars Less'than3 3to12 1to2Years | 2to3 Years | 3to5 Years >5Years Total
Months Months

Financial Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities 1,606.50 s 5 - - 5 1,606.50

Lease Liabilities 9.93 45.45 37.92 33.62 54.11 51.36 232.39

Life Ipsurance Contract Liabilities and 1,486.87 1,345.42 6,121.78 4,020.11 6,658.39 65,755.90 85,388.47

Restricted Surplus

Subordinated Liabilities - - - - - 749.69 749.69

Trade and Other Payables 599.10 - - - - - 599.10
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Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The Group is exposed to

financial and capital market risks — the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an insurance contract or financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes or
volatility in market prices. Market risk includes equity market and interest rate risks. .

Market risk governance practices are in place, including independent monitoring, review and reporting to the Senior Management and the Risk Management
Committee. The Group has investment policy in place, which deals with guidelines for asset allocation and portfolio limit structure, to ensure that assets back specific

policyholders’ liabilities.

The Group issues unit-linked investment policies in a number of its operations. In the unit linked business, the policyholder bears the investment risk on the assets
held in the unit-linked funds as the policy benefits are directly linked to the value of the assets in the fund. The Group’s exposure to market risk on this business is
limited to the extent that income arising from asset management charges is based on the value of assets in the fund.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Floating rate

instruments expose the Group to cash flow interest risk, whereas fixed interest rate instruments expose the Group to fair value interest risk.

The following analysis is performed for reasonably possible movements in key variables with all other variables held constant, showing the impact on profit before tax
and equity. The correlation of variables will have significant effect in determining the ultimate impact of interest rate risk, but to demonstrate the impact due to
changes in variables, variables had to be changed on an individual basis. It should be noted that movements in these variables are non-linear. The method used for
deriving sensitivity information and significant variables have not changed from the previous period.

As at 31* March 2025 As at 31° March 2024
. Change in Interest )
Market Indices Rate Impact on Profit Impact on Impact on Profit| Impacton
Before Tax Equity* Before Tax Equity*
25 Basis Point Down | Nil 201.49 | Nil 179.78
50 Basis Point Down | Nil 408.43 | Nil 368.09
t 5 .

IteREStRa 25 Basis Point Up | Nil (196.26)| Nil (175.10)
50 Basis Point Up | Nil (387.50)| Nil (345.13)

* Shock only on Interest Rate on FVTOCI instrument. Hence, no impact on Profit Before Tax considered.

Other price risk

Equity market risk is the potential for financial loss arising from declines or volatility in equity market prices. The Group is exposed to equity risk from a number of
sources. A portion of our exposure to equity market risk arises in connection with benefit guarantees on contracts. The cost of providing for these guarantees is
uncertain, and will depend upon a number of factors, including general capital market conditions, underlying fund performance, policyholder behaviour, and mortality
experience, which may result in negative impacts on our net income and capital.

The Group has no significant concentration of equity price risk.

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in market indices, i.e., BSE 100 with all other variables held constant, showing the impact on
profit before tax (due to changes in fair value of financial assets and liabilities, whose fair values are recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss) and equity (that
reflects changes in fair value of FVTPL financial assets). The correlation of variables will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impact on price risk, but
to demonstrate the impact due to changes in variables, variables had to be changed on an individual basis.

As at 31° March 2025

As at 31° March 2024

Market Indices Change in Variables| Impact on Profit Impacton |Impact on Profit| Impacton
Before Tax Equity Before Tax Equity
BSE 100 10% rise 399.43 347.01 337.57 315.94
10% fall (399.43) (347.01) (337.57) (315.94)
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Operational Risks
Operational Risk means the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, frauds or from external events. When controls fail

to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss. The Group cannot expect to eliminate
all operational risks but by initiating a rigorous control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Group is able to manage the risks.
Controls include effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education, monitoring of adherence to assigned
risk thresholds or limits and assessment processes.

Operational risks are managed according to the Operational Risk Management policy and are reviewed in the Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC)
with the Leadership Team. The Group maintains an operational loss database to track and mitigate risks resulting in financial losses. The Group has also initiated a
Risk Control & Self Assessment process to embed the control testing as a part of day to day operations. Additionally there is a process of policy certification to take a
confirmation from stakeholders on implementation of Risk policies. To control operational risk, operating and reporting processes are reviewed and updated
regularly. Ongoing training through internal and external programs is designed to equip staff at all levels to meet the demands of their respective positions. To
manage and report operational risk we use various tools including self-assessments, continuous control monitoring and review of key risk indicators. We are also in
the process of implementing a comprehensive workflow system at Group level to manage operational risks in a streamlined, efficient, and integrated manner.

The Group has a robust Business Continuity Plan and Information Technology Disaster Recovery Plan in place to manage any business / technology interruption risk.
Business Continuity Management System is certified against the global standard ISO 22301. It also has Business Continuity Policy to have a planned response in the
event of any contingency ensuring recovery of critical activities at agreed levels within agreed timeframe thereby complying with various regulatory requirements
and minimizing the potential business impact.

Information Security Risk is the risk arising from IT systems (data leakage, application vulnerabilities, lack of segregation of duties and access control), human error,
etc. which can cause damage to finances or reputation. Information Security risks are governed through Information Security Management System aligned and
certified against ISO 27001 which is a global benchmark. The Group has a comprehensive Information Security and Cyber security policy designed to comply with
ISO 27001, IRDAI Cyber guidelines, privacy and/or data protection legislations as specified in Indian Information Technology Act, 2008 and Notification dated 11th
April 2011 on protection of sensitive personal information and it provides direction to Information Security staff, Management and Employees regarding their roles
and responsibilities towards Information Security.

Fraud management is handled through an internal committee, and is governed by the Fraud Reporting and Investigation Policy.

Capital Management Objectives and Policies
The Group has established the following capital management objectives, policies and approach to manage the risks that affect its capital position:

i) To maintain the required level of stability of the Group, thereby providing a degree of security to policyholders

i) To allocate capital efficiently and support the development of business by ensuring that returns on capital employed meet the requirements of its capital providers
and shareholders

iii) To retain financial flexibility by maintaining strong liquidity and access to a range of capital markets

iv) To align the profile of assets and liabilities taking account of risks inherent in the business

v) To maintain financial strength to support new business growth and to satisfy the requirements of the policyholders, regulators and stakeholders

vi) To maintain strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business objectives and maximisé shareholders value

The Group has met all of these requirements throughout the financial year. In reporting, financial strength, capital and solvency are measured using the rules
prescribed by the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDAV). These regulatory capital tests are based upon required levels of solvency,
capital and a series of prudent assumptions in respect of the type of business written. The Group’s capital management policy for its insurance business is to hold
sufficient capital to cover the statutory requirements based on the IRDAI directives.

Regulatory Framework

Regulators are primarily interested in protecting the rights of policyholders and monitor them closely to ensure that the Group is satisfactorily managing affairs for
their benefit. At the same time, regulators are also interested in ensuring that the Group maintains an appropriate solvency position to meet unforeseeable liabilities
arising from economic shocks or natural disasters. The operations of the Group are subject to regulatory requirements within the jurisdictions in which it operates.
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NOTE: 56
RISK RELATED TO LENDING (NBFC) AND HOUSING FINANCE (HFC) SEGMENT

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings (Including Debt Securities & Subordinated Liabilities) and trade and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance and support the Group’s operations. The Group’s principal financial assets include loans, investments, cash and
cash equivalents and other receivables that derive directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to certain Risks such as Market risk, credit risk, liquidity Risk, etc. The Group’s senior management oversees the management of these risks.
The Group’s senior management is supported by a Risk Management Committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance
framework for the Group. The Risk Committee provides assurance to the Group’s senior management that the Group’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives. The
Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

The Group has identified and implemented comprehensive policies and procedures to assess, monitor and manage risk throughout the Group. The risk
management process is continuously reviewed, improved and adapted in the changing risk scenario and the agility of the risk management process is monitored
and reviewed for its appropriateness in the changing risk landscape. The process of ongoing risk evaluation involves reassessing the risk landscape in response to
specific events, while simultaneously considering the long-term economic outlook.

The Group has an elaborate process for risk management. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating
actions on a continuing basis.

Operational and Business Risk

Operational risk refers to the risk of loss arising from activities conducted within an entity, due to inadequate structures, system failures, untrained personnel, or
inefficient products or processes. To strengthen the overall framework, a Board-approved Operational Risk Management Framework has been established and is
executed by a dedicated team within the Risk Management function. A bottom-up Risk and Control Self-Assessment (RCSA) process is employed to identify high-
risk areas and potential gaps, serving as an early warning mechanism to enable timely initiation of remedial measures

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the potential loss the Group may suffer if customers or counterparties fail to fulfil their contractual obligations. The Group manages and mitigates
credit risk by establishing limits on the level of exposure it is willing to accept for individual counterparties, as well as for specific geographic regions and industry
sectors. These exposures are continuously monitored to ensure compliance with the defined limits.

The NBFC business has instituted a credit quality review process to enable early detection of potential changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties, including
periodic reassessment of collateral. Counterparty limits are determined through a credit risk classification system, which assigns a risk rating to each counterparty.
These risk ratings are reviewed and updated on a regular basis. The credit quality review process is designed to evaluate potential losses arising from its exposures
and to implement corrective measures as necessary.

Credit risk of HFC business is managed and controlled through a Credit Risks Management Framework comprising detailed risk evaluation of borrower and security.
The business has developed expertise to underwrite all kinds of customer segments (salaried, self-employed professionals, self-employed non-professionals),
underwriting guidelines are benchmarked to the market and adequate internal controls have been put in place to maintain the quality of loans being approved. To
mitigate collateral risk, the business has dual external valuation process and the same is also evaluated internally.

Analysis of maximum exposure to credit risk and collateral and other credit enhancements

Particulars - Asat
31 March| 31* March 2024
At amortised Cost
i)Secured by Tangible Assets . 1,09,655.28 83,334.06
i) Secured by Intangible Assets 1,069.94 509.53
ii)Covered by Bank/Government Guarantees 4,416.96 4,960.39
w;ifﬁgega%;i?;igebts, Inventories, Fixed Deposits and Other 6,448.37 5,614.69
iv)Unsecured 31,718.59 29,149.20
Total 1,53,309.14 1,23,567.87
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NOTE: 56

The NBFC & HFC, by way of loan sanction letter and other loan securing documents, agrees with its customers on collateral security to be provided by the
customers in secured loan exposures that are subject to credit risk. Collateral security enables us to recover all or part of the outstanding exposure by liquidating
the collateral asset provided, in cases where the borrower is unable or unwilling to fulfil its primary obligations.

Collateral security accepted could be in the form of:

a) Financial collateral in the form of pledge of equity shares, units of mutual funds, assignment of life insurance policies
b) Current Assets in the form of inventories meant for sale or receivables arising out of the sale of finished goods

c) Fixed Assets (in the form of immovable properties — Real Estate, Plant and Machinery, Equipment)

d) Third-party obligation (in the form of Irrevocable Unconditional Guarantee issued by Bank, Third party)

e) Risk participation from Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro and Small Enterprises (CGTMSE)

f) Assignment of borrower’s rights and interests under agreements with third parties.

In addition, we also stipulate escrow of cash flows and a Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA) for project loans. Collateral serves to mitigate the inherent risk of
credit loss in an exposure, by either improving recoveries in the event of a default or substituting the borrower.

As part of the assessment of a credit transaction the availability, adequacy and suitability of collateral for the transaction is evaluated and decided upon. The
processes include verification of the title to the collateral offered and valuation by technical experts where warranted. We accept as collateral only securities of
good quality and have in place legally effective and enforceable documentation.

For guarantees taken, the guarantor creditworthiness is assessed during the credit assessment process of the transaction. We have collateral type specific haircuts
in place, which are reviewed at intervals as appropriate to the type of collateral.

NBFC & HFC recognises that collateral can be a credit mitigant (alternative source of repayment), but does not replace or dilute the underwriting standards
adopted to underwrite credit exposures.

Forward looking Information

The NBFC business determines impairment allowances based on the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model under Ind AS, using empirical portfolio performance
adjusted for forward-looking macroeconomic factors. Provisioning under this approach remains higher than the floor levels prescribed by the RBI for NBFCs. ECL
estimation is statistically validated, incorporating historical data, current conditions, and anticipated portfolio performance. It is based on three key components:
Probability of Default (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD), and Exposure at Default (EAD). The PD models intrinsically account for macroeconomic influences,
considering factors such as GDP trends and extraordinary events like demonetization. With most portfolios having weathered one to two economic cycles, default
probabilities reflect upturns, downturns, and stable conditions..

Additionally, the Industry Rating Module, developed with CRISIL, integrates forward-looking indicators—such as demand-supply dynamics, trade factors, and policy
changes—enhancing the transition from through-the-cycle to point-in-time risk assessment.

Grouping financial assets measured on a collective basis

The NBFC business calculates ECLs either on a collective or an individual basis.

Asset classes where the business calculates ECL on an individual basis include:
1. Corporate portfolio

Asset classes where the business calculates ECL on a collective basis include:
1. Retail portfolio

The ECL methodology allows for individual assessment for corporates and therefore these loans are generally measured individually
(c) Analysis of risk concentration of NBFC Business
Concentration analysis are presented for Portfolio pool, Location, Top borrower exposures, Group exposures etc. These are regularly

analysed and presented for further review/action. Based on the exposures of NBFC business towards various sectors, analysis is as
follows:

As at 31 March,

Top 20 Industry Sectors 2025

Commercial Real Estate (CRE and CRE-RH) 10.89%
Real Estate Activities - Builders and Contractors 7.65%
Commercial Real Estate (CRE and CRE-RH) LAP 6.48%
Electricity, Gas, Steam and Water Supply 2.86%
Construction - Infrastructure 2.30%
NBFCs against receivable 2.11%
Transportation, Logistics & Allied Services 1.91%
Wholesale Trade and Commission trade (Except of Motor Vehicles and Motorcycles) 1.87%
Renewable Energy 1.85%
Hotels, Motels and Resorts 1.78%
Textiles, Readymade Garments, Apparels - Spinning, Mfg. and Trading 1.57%
Personal Loans 1.32%
Chemical & related products 1.28%
Automobiles & Ancillaries 1.21%
Food & Beverages 1.17%
Hospital & medical business 1.14%
Metals (Mfg. of Basic & Structural, casting) 1.05%
Brokers / Traders - Shares, securities 1.05%
Retail Trade (Except of Motor Vehicles and Motor Cycles) 0.88%
Real Estate Activities - Builders and Contractors - LAP 0.82%
Top 20 Industry Exposures 51.19%

107122W/
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As at 31 March,
Top 20 Industry Sectors 2024
Commercial Real Estate (CRE and CRE- RH) 10.67%
Commercial Real Estate (CRE and CRE- RH) LAP 7.38%
Real Estate Activities - Builders and Contractors 4.11%
Other Trade (Wholesale/ Retail) 2.66%
Energy Renewable 2.58%
Hotels, Motels and Resorts 2.34%
Finance - Investment / Others 2.25%
NBFCs against receivable 2.13%
Transportation, Logistics & Allied Services 2.11%
NBFCs others 2.08%
Textiles, Readymade Garments, Apparels - Spinning, Mfg. and Trading 1.96%
Food & Beverages 1.53%
Real Estate Activities - Builders and Contractors - LAP 1.52%
Construction/Maintenance of Roads 1.48%
Automobiles & Ancillaries 1.40%
Chemical & related products 1.37%
Hospital & medical business 1.34%
Business & Self-Employed 1.28%
Education 1.23%
Brokers / Traders - Shares, securities 0.85%
Top 20 Industry Exposures 52.27%
Note:

1. Industry Sectors tagging on loans is done by the Company’s management as per internal MIS which have been relied upon by the auditors.
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Financial Risk Management and its Policies for NBFC & HFC Businesses

Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the NBFC & HFC will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility
that the NBFC & HFC might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due, as a result of mismatches in the
timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances.

NBFC & HFC manages its liquidity requirement by analysing the maturity pattern of NBFC & HFC's cash flows of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

The Group maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that are assumed to be easily liquidated in the event
of an unforeseen interruption in cash flow. The Group also has lines of credit that it can access to meet liquidity needs. In
accordance with the Group’s policy, the liquidity position is assessed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration
to stress factors relating to both the market in general and specifically to the Group. Net liquid assets consist of cash.

Borrowings from banks and financial institutions and issue of debentures are considered as important sources of funds to
finance lending to customers. They are monitored using the advances to borrowings ratio, which compares loans and
advances to customers as a percentage of secured and unsecured borrowings.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the NBFC & HFC’s financial liabilities as
at 31% March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Financial Liabilities
As at 31° March 2025

Particulars Within 12 Months| After 12 Months Total
Trade and Other Payables 544.24 - 544.24
Other Financial Liabilities

including Lease Liabilities and 2,277.49 503.65 2,781.14
Derivative Financial Instrument

Debt Securities 17,223.42 39,921.81 57,145.23
ZaITOwINGS GHhar fdn Dbt 35,699.00 57,786.31 93,485.31
Securities

Subordinated Liabilities 522.27 6,358.79 6,881.06
Total 56,266.42 1,04,570.56 1,60,836.98
As at 31° March 2024

Particulars Within 12 Months| After 12 Months Total
Trade and Other Payables 638.59 - 638.59
Other Financial Liabilities

including Lease Liabilities and 2,903.80 416.16

Derivative Financial Instrument 3,319.96
Debt Securities 15,417.98 26,696.07 42,114.05
Sorfeings alber tham Debt 29,417.99 47,784.32 77,202.32
Securities

Subordinated Liabilities 348.02 4,022.05 4,370.07
Total 48,726.39 78,918.61 1,27,644.99
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Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. In the case of the
Group, market risk primarily comprises of interest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity, other post-retirement obligations and provisions.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and
financial liabilities held at 31%* March 2025 and 31* March 2024.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss in net income out of change in level of interest rates and/or their implied volatility. To mitigate the interest rate risk, ALM
policy of the NBFC business stipulates interest rate sensitivity gap of all the time buckets. The Interest rate sensitivity statement is prepared every month
and placed before Asset liability committee ("ALCO"). The statement captures the duration of rate sensitive assets & liabilities. The impact of change in
interest rate on the earning is also measured every month and same is presented to ALCO.

Interest Rate Sensitivity of NBFC Business

31% March 2025 31% March 2024
. . Impact on 2
Market Indices Change in Interest Rate e Impact on Impact on Profit| Impact on
Profit Before L i
Tax Equity Before Tax Equity
25 Basis Point Down 97.18 73.19 63.46 49.24
; 50 Basis Point Down 194.37 146.37 126.91 98.48
Interest Rate (Borrowings) 25 Basis Point Up (97.18) (73.19) (63.46) (49.24)
50 Basis Point Up (194.37) (146.37) (126.91) (98.48)
31% March 2025 31% March 2024
. ? Impact on ’
Market Indices Change in Interest Rate g Impact on Impact on Profit| Impact on
Profit Before : :
Tax Equity Before Tax Equity
25 Basis Point Down (220.92) (166.38) (174.88) (135.70)
50 Basis Point Down (441.85) (332.75) (349.75) (271.41)
Inerest Ret.aans) 25 Basis Point Up 220.92 166.38 174.88 135.70
50 Basis Point Up 441.85 332.75 349.75 271.41
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the break-up of borrowings into variable rate and fixed rate.
Particulars 31* March 2025 | 31% March 2024
Variable Rate Borrowings 38,873.00 25,382.62
Fixed Rate Borrowings 70,945.00 65,981.52
Variable Rate Loans 88,369.86 69,950.60
Fixed Rate Loans 34,512.68 34,559.07
Note:

1. Borrowings having contractual tenor less than 12 months are considered as floating rate.
2. Face value of borrowings has been considered for above disclosure.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in foreign currency, which fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of fluctuation in foreign exchange rates primarily relates to its External Commercial Borrowings.
The Group uses derivative instruments like cross currency swaps to hedge exposure to foreign currency risk.

The Group has taken foreign currency floating rate borrowings, which are linked to USD SOFR or JPY TONA. For managing the foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk, arising from changes in applicable benchmark (USD SOFR or JPY TONA) on such borrowings, the Group has entered into Cross
Currency Swap (CCS) for the entire loan liability covering the entire tenor of the loan along with the interest payable. Under the terms of the CCS, the
Group pays interest at the fixed rate to the swap counterparty in INR and receives the floating interest payments based on the applicable benchmark (USD
SOFR or JPY TONA) in foreign currency.

Capital Management Objectives and Policies
For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the

equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure, and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. The Group monitors capital using a capital adequacy ratio, which is weighted-assets divided by total capital derived as per the RBI requirements.
As per the RBI guidelines, the Group, being a Non-Banking Finance group, has to maintain 15% of capital adequacy ratio of NBFC business and 15% of
capital adequacy ratio of HFC business.

The actual Capital Adequacy Ratio is as under:

Particulars 31% March 2025 31% March 2024
Capital Adequacy Ratio of Aditya Birla Capital Limited (Core Investment Company) NA 111.04%
Capital Adequacy Ratio of Aditya Birla Capital Limited * 18.22% NA
Capital Adequacy Ratio of HFC 16.54% 16.79%

* Capital Adequacy Ratio is calculated after considering impact of merger of Aditya Birla Finance Limited ("NBFC") with Aditya Birla Capital Limited with
appointed date of 1st April 2024.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached
to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings. Breaches in meeting, the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings.
There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowings in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31" March 2025 and 31 March 2024.
/:’,/)T:.’_’.‘_?;‘;\‘
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Risk Related to Other Business
Credit Risk of Other Companies

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a customer contract or financial instrument,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities, primarily trade receivables, and from its
financing/investing activities, including deposits with banks, mutual fund investments, and investments in debt securities, foreign
exchange transactions. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure.

As at 315 March 2025 Past Due But Not Impaired
il e 30to60 | 61t090 | 91to120 120
Nor Impaired 0 o o >
P <30 Days Days Days Days Days Total
Trade Receivables 0.20 25.77 0.24 3.09 0.30 3.23 32.83
Total 0.20 25.77 0.24 3.09 0.30 3.23 32.83
As at 31% March 2024 Past Due But Not Impaired
nelior RastDue 30t0 60 | 61t090 | 91t0120| >120
Nor Impaired <
or Impai 30 Days Days Days Days Days Total
Trade Receivables 0.07 123.73 12.05 0.52 0.89 6.64 143.90
Total 0.07 123.73 12.05 0.52 0.89 6.64 143.90

Movement of ECL

31° March 2025

31° March 2024

Opening 8.88 10.46
Provided during the year 0.85 0.40
Amounts Written Off - (1.98)
De-recognised on account

of sale of ABIB (2.02) -
Closing 7.71 8.88

Investments, Derivative Instruments, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Bank Deposits:

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks/financial institutions is generally low, as the said deposits have been
made with banks/financial institutions, who have been assigned high credit rating by international and domestic rating agencies.

Credit risk on derivative instruments is generally low, as the Group enters into the Derivative Contracts with the reputed banks.

Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved Financial Institutions/Counterparties. Investments primarily include
investments in units of quoted Mutual Funds, quoted Bonds, Non- Convertible Debentures issued by Government/Semi-
Government Agencies/PSU Bonds/High Investment Grade Corporates, etc. These mutual funds and counterparties have low credit
risk.

The Group has standard operating procedures and investment policy for deployment of surplus liquidity, which allows investment in
debt securities and mutual fund schemes of debt and arbitrage categories, and restricts the exposure in equity markets.

Compliances of these policies and principles are reviewed by internal auditors on periodical basis.
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Financial Risk Management and lIts Policies for Other Businesses

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable price. Prudent liquidity
risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
undrawn credit facilities to meet obligations, when due. The Group's finance team is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement
management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by the Senior Management. The Management monitors the
Group's liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual

undiscounted payments.

As at 31° March 2025 On Demand Li:;;?:: 3| 3to12 Months| 1to 5 Years M°Z;:‘:” 5 Total

Debt Securities - 1,808.39 - - - 1,808.39
Borrowings other than Debt Securities 10.98 4.44 11.71 46.14 - 73.27
Subordinated Liabilities - - - - 11.00 11.00
Trade and Other Payables - 26.71 28.35 - - 55.06
Other Financial Liabilities 437.00 95.28 601.54 7.04 - 1,140.86
Total 447.98 1,934.82 641.60 53.18 11.00 3,088.58
As at 31 March 2024 On Demand Le;:):ﬂ:z B 3to12 Months| 1to5 Years MO;Z:::“ 5 Total

Debt Securities - 1,283.97 56.62 152.72 - 1,493.31
Borrowings other than Debt Securities 51.22 17.79 33.69 40.19 - 142.89
Subordinated Liabilities - - - - 11.00 11.00
Trade and Other Payables - 207.44 8.56 0.23 - 216.23
Other Financial Liabilities 486.26 67.03 57.68 6.75 - 617.73
Total 537.48 1,576.23 156.55 199.89 11.00 2,481.16

Capital Management Objectives and Policies

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value, comply to the regulatory requirements and
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital to the Group. The Group continues its policy of a conservative capital structure,
which has ensured that it retains the highest credit rating.

i
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NOTE: 57
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS (ECL) RISK

Impairment Assessment
The credit loss provisioning approach is based on ECL model. This model ensures (a) timely recognition of ECL, (b) a structured
assessment of significant increases in credit risk (c) the development of more accurate business ratios., which will provide better disclosure

and (c) ascertainment of better business ratios.

The following references provide details on the Group's impairment assessment and measurement methodologies and should be read
alongside the Material Accounting Policy Information

*An overview of the Group’s internal grading system (refer to the section Definition of Default below).

*Details on how the Group defines, calculates, and monitors Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD), and Loss Given Default
(LGD) (refer to sections The Group’s Internal Rating and PD Estimation Process, Probability of Default, and Exposure at Default below).
+Criteria used by the Group to determine when there has been a significant increase in credit risk (refer to Significant Increase in Credit Risk
below).

*The Group's policy for segmenting financial assets assessed on a collective basis (refer to Grouping Financial Assets Measured on a
Collective Basis below).

*ECL calculation methodologies across Stage 1, Stage 2, and Stage 3 assets (refer to Probability of Default, Exposure at Default, and Loss

Given Default sections below).

Definition of Default
The Group categorizes a financial instrument as defaulted—and therefore as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL purposes—when the
borrower is 90 days past due on contractual payments.

Additionally, as part of a qualitative assessment, the Group evaluates several indicators of unlikeliness to pay, including:
a) Significant financial difficulties faced by the borrower or issuer;

b) Breach of contractual obligations, such as defaults or overdue payments;

c) Increased likelihood of bankruptcy or financial reorganization of the borrower;

d)Any material adverse development/news etc. .

The Group’s Internal Rating and PD Estimation Process

Internal Rating:

In line with regulatory expectations (as outlined by the Reserve Bank of India), a robust internal credit rating framework has been
established to support effective credit risk management. The Group has developed its internal rating framework in collaboration with
CRISIL. Ratings are assigned to all eligible customers or portfolio pools and are integral to internal decision-making processes.

As per the Group’s policy, eligible borrowers must have an internal credit rating of at least 'investment grade' according to the internal
credit model or possess a valid and current external rating.

Probability of Default ("PD")

PD represents the likelihood that a borrower will default within a one-year horizon (used for Stage 1 assets). For Stage 2 assets, where
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the PD is assessed over the borrower's lifetime.

Exposure at Default

EAD represents the gross exposure or potential exposure under a facility at the point of default. It estimates the total outstanding amount
thatis owed by the borrower at the time of default.

Loss Given Default ("LGD")

LGD is expressed as the percentage of the EAD that is expected to be lost in the event of default. It is influenced by factors such as the type
and value of collateral, expected recovery proceeds, and recovery costs, all considered on a net present value (NPV) basis.

Significant Increase in Credit Risk

a) A significant increase in credit risk is deemed to have occurred when account performance deteriorates and there is no foreseeable
resolution.

b) For large borrowers, a comprehensive assessment of multiple risk factors—industry risk, business risk, management risk, financial risk,
and banking and facility-level conduct—is undertaken to determine whether credit risk has significantly increased.

c) Credit ratings are also utilized as indicators of significant credit risk changes. These ratings evaluate a borrower's capacity and
willingness to meet financial obligations promptly and consistently, serving as a measure of the relative risk of default.

d) Anv other material neaative/adverse news/development.
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Grouping Financial Assets Measured on a Collective Basis

The Group calculates ECL either on a collective or an individual basis.

Asset classes where the Group calculates ECL on an individual basis include:
1. Corporate Portfolio

Asset classes where the Group calculates ECL on a collective basis include:

1. Retail Portfolio

The ECL methodology allows for individual assessment for corporates, and therefore, these loans are generally measured individually as
each of these exposures has unique characteristics and structuring. For retail exposures and exposures which can be clubbed in
homogeneous pools, ECL is measured on a collective basis. This has been arrived at based on common characteristics like nature of
product, customer profile, etc.

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to loans of Housing Finance
Business, is as follows:

A Reconciliation of Gross Carrying Amount of Housing Finance Business:

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
31% March 2025
Gross Carrying Amount - Opening Balance 17,357.58 193.92 325.48 17,876.98
New Assets Originated or Purchased 17,647.15 0.13 0.33 17,647.61
Assets Derecognised or Repaid (excluding Write Offs) (6,105.82) (48.48) (120.93) (6,275.23)
Transfers to Stage 1 84.42 (59.36) (25.06) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (141.95) 147.49 (5.54) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (58.43) (18.79) 77.22 -
Amounts Written Off (2.15) (2.42) (58.63) (63.20)
Gross Carrying Amount Closing Balance 28,780.80 212.49 192.87 29,186.16
31% March 2024
Gross Carrying Amount - Opening Balance 13,119.61 242.51 445,91 13,808.03
New Assets Originated or Purchased 8,448.01 0.27 2.75 8,451.03
Assets Derecognised or Repaid (excluding Write Offs) (4,096.46) (71.91) (152.64) (4,321.01)
Transfers to Stage 1 80.71 (62.92) (17.79) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (123.79) 128.01 (4.22) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (65.77) (40.99) . 106.76 -
Amounts Written Off (4.73) (1.05) (55.29) (61.07)
Gross Carrying Amount Closing Balance 17,357.58 193.92 325.48 17,876.98
B Reconciliation of ECL Balance for Housing Finance Business is given below:
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
31% March 2025
ECL Allowance - Opening Balance 74.02 15.13 109.95 199.10
New Assets Originated or Purchased 48.49 0.01 0.09 48.59
Assets Derecognised or Repaid (excluding Write Offs) (24.36) (4.04) (82.13) (110.53)
Transfers to Stage 1 3.46 (2.16) (1.30) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (2.82) 3.03 (0.21) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (19.61) (5.99) 25.60 -
lmpact on year end ECL of exposures transferred between Stages 18.70 274 (6.45)
durina the vear 14.99
ECL recognised due to change in credit risk (3.16) (1.33) 41.44 36.95
Recoveries - - (3.98) (3.98)
Amounts Written Off 0.01 0.29 23.06 23.36
ECL Allowance - Closing Balance 94.73 7.68 106.07 208.48
31% March 2024
ECL Allowance - Opening Balance 87.43 16.04 147.64 251.11
New Assets Originated or Purchased 38.46 0.05 0.94 39.45
Assets Derecognised or Repaid (excluding Write Offs) (26.30) (2.81) (45.97) (75.08)
Transfers to Stage 1 1.89 (1.44) (0.45) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (7.89) 8.45 (0.56) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (24.15) (15.78) 39.93 -
Impact on year end ECL of exposures transferred between Stages 28.96 9.41 (5.87)
during the vear 32.50
ECL recognised due to change in credit risk (24.26) 1.27 (0.95) (23.94)
Recoveries - = (4.94) (4.94)
Amounts Written Off (0.12) (0.06) (19.82) (20.00)
ECL Allowance - Closing Balance 74.02 15.13 109.95 199.10
ZZsM
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

(% in crore except otherwise stated)

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation toloans of NBFC Business is as
follows:

A Reconciliation of Gross carrying amount - Loans:

Particulars

31st March 2025

Loans Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Opening balance of gross carrying amount 1,00,952.21 2,094.24 2,649.06 1,05,695.51
New assets originated or purchased 65,858.23 253.73 199.62 66,311.58
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (44,367.50) (644.64) (924.70) (45,936.84)
Transfers to Stage 1 524.01 (388.41) (135.60) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (1,316.45) 1,352.68 (36.23) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (1,133.77) (376.34) 1,510.11 -
Amounts written-off (1,085.34) (377.14) (484.83) (1,947.31)
Closing balance of gross carrying amount 1,19,431.39 1,914.12 2,777.43 1,24,122.94
31st March 2024

Loans Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Opening balance of gross carrying amount 75,767.59 2,187.36 2,507.10 80,462.05
New assets originated or purchased 60,350.10 504.10 289.03 61,143.23
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (33,339.76) (522.08) (345.08) (34,206.92)
Transfers to Stage 1 691.99 (659.47) (32.52) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (1,051.38) 1,070.71 (19.33) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (536.56) (257.48) 794.04 -
Amounts written-off (929.77) (228.90) (544.18) (1,702.85)
Closing balance of gross carrying amount 1,00,952.21 2,094.24 2,649.06 1,05,695.51

B Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Loans:

ECL

31st March 2025 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Opening balance of ECL allowance 377.63 80.32 1,322.45 1,780.40
Increase in new / existing assets originated or purchased 1,148.72 417.54 478.58 2,044.84
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (40.34) - (59.16) (99.50)
Transfers to Stage 1 44.90 (5.61) (39.29) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (7.64) 11.16 (3.52) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (22.52) (12.65) 35.17 -
Amounts written-off (1,085.34) (377.14) (484.83) (1,947.31)
Closing balance of ECL allowance 415.41 113.62 1,249.40 1,778.43
31st March 2024 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Opening balance of ECL allowance 374.73 70.66 1,157.94 1,603.33
Increase in new / existing assets originated or purchased 946.66 243.10 711.29 1,901.05
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (24.02) (3.01) (0.76) (27.79)
Transfers to Stage 1 20.60 (11.31) (9.29) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (6.31) 15.70 (9.39) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (4.26) (5.92) 10.18 -
Amounts written-off (929.77) (228.90) (537.52) (1,696.19)
Closing balance of ECL allowance 377.63 80.32 1,322.45 1,780.40

The above disclosure has been prepared based on the impact of exposures transferred between stages during the period, or changes in
items within the same stage. Hence, write-offs during the year (including settlements and technical write- -offs) are reported according to the
staging (i.e., Stage 1, 2, or 3) at the start of the year. The classification of fresh loan disbursements is based on the staging status at the end

of the period.
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NOTE: 58
MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABLITIES

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. With regard to loans
and advances to customers, the Group uses the same basis of expected repayment behaviour as used for estimating the EIR.

31° March 2025 31st March 2024
Particulars Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
Months Months Months Months
| ASSETS
(1) Financial Assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,330.79 - 4,330.79 1,554.30 - 1,554.30
(b) Bank Balances other than (a) above 1,577.31 95.18 1,672.49 1,677.23 347.48 2,024.71
(c) Derivative Financial Instruments 178.90 355.65 534.55 86.68 273.47 360.15
(d) Trade and Other Receivables 699.68 - 699.68 714.22 - 714.22
(e) Loans 31,601.98 | 1,21,041.82 | 1,52,643.80 31,187.23 91,930.53 | 1,23,117.76
(f) Investments
- Investments of Life Insurance Business
(i) Investments of Life Insurance Policyholders 1,910.18 55,527.39 57,437.57 1,317.68 45,334.44 46,652.12
(i) Investments of Life Insurance Shareholders 276.86 4,790.52 5,067.38 140.67 3,860.31 4,000.98
- Other Investments 7,381.55 447.26 7,828.81 8,247.24 239.73 8,486.97
(g) Assets Held to Cover Linked Liabilities 3,780.97 33,981.29 37,762.26 3,827.19 32,178.00 36,005.19
(h) Other Financial Assets 1,170.32 1,712.40 2,882.72 393.22 1,424.47 1,817.69
Sub Total 52,908.54 | 2,17,951.51 | 2,70,860.05 49,145.66 | 1,75,588.43 | 2,24,734.09
(2) Non-Financial Assets
(a) Current Tax Assets (Net) - 152.93 152.93 - 119.63 119.63
(b) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) - 513.27 513.27 - 517.91 517.91
(c) Investment Property - 13.50 13.50 - 13.94 13.94
(d) Property, Plant and Equipment - 357.45 357.45 - 255.44 255.44
(e) Capital Work-in-Progress - 22.08 22.08 - 9.65 9.65
(f) Intangible Assets Under Development - 100.08 100.08 - 84.58 84.58
(g) Goodwill - 554.83 554.83 - 554.83 554.83
(h) Other Intangible Assets - 388.73 388.73 - 262.62 262.62
(i) Right-to-Use of Assets 7.92 606.67 614.59 - 565.50 565.50
(j) Investments in Associate and Joint Venture Companies - 4,857.17 4,857.17 - 4,393.65 4,393.65
(k) Other Non-Financial Assets 354.59 272.11 626.70 489.59 95.96 585.55
(1) Assets Held for Sale - - - 4.44 - 4.44
Sub Total 362.51 7,838.82 8,201.33 494.03 6,873.71 7,367.74
Total Assets 53,271.05 | 2,25,790.33 | 2,79,061.38 49,639.69 | 1,82,462.14 | 2,32,101.83
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
Months Months Months Months
Il LIABILITIES
(1) Financial Liabilities
(a) Derivative Financial Instruments 54.82 102.60 157.42 5.42 92.07 97.49
(b) Payables
-Trade Payables
(i) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and
Small Enterprises 69.30 - 69.30 30.89 = 30.89
(i) Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 1,248.94 - 1,248.94 1,382.19 & 1,382.19
(c) Debt Securities 17,347.57 32,403.85 49,751.42 15,783.93 21,111.62 36,895.55
(d) Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 31,279.51 52,451.71 83,731.22 25,686.31 43,148.11 68,834.42
(e) Subordinated Liabilities 362.35 5,502.40 5,864.75 234.21 3,5675.92 3,810.13
(f) Lease Liabilities 146.24 515.51 661.75 145.62 453.62 599.24
(g) Policyholders' Liabilities 3,682.44 94,768.11 98,350.55 2,832.29 82,556.17 85,388.46
(h) Other Financial Liabilities - 5,458.59 129.25 5,587.84 5,018.61 7.81 5,026.42
Sub Total 59,549.76 | 1,85,873.43 | 2,45,423.19 51,119.47 | 1,50,945.32 | 2,02,064.79
(2) Non-Financial Labilities
(a) Tax Liabilities (Net) 234.49 - 234.49 315.56 - 315.56
(b) Provisions 225.91 134.22 360.13 194.74 124.28 319.02
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - 418.08 418.08 - 478.54 478.54
(d) Other Non-Financial Liabilities 272.22 6.22 278.44 278.77 7.37 286.14
Sub Total 732.62 558.52 1,291.14 789.07 610.19 1,399.26
Total Liabilities 60,282.38 | 1,86,431.95 | 2,46,714.33 51,908.54 | 1,51,555.51 | 2,03,464.05
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NOTE: 59

In 2018, ABCL and Varde Partners (“Varde”) established a strategic partnership to pursue investments in stressed and distressed assets in India. In
accordance with the commercial agreements between ABCL and Varde, Aditya Birla ARC Limited ("ABARC") has recognised amounts attributable to
Varde's economic interest in the funds available from the resolution and redemption of specific security receipts, in line with letter dated 28th March 2025
issued by ABCL to ABARC. The above agreements were earlier entered into by ABCL with Varde for protecting the ABARC from losses, if any, suffered by
the ABARC due to the ABARC's investment in specific security receipts.

In view of the same, an estimated amount of ¥ 525 crore has been provided by ABARC by reducing ‘Net gain on fair value changes' and corresponding
amount, being amounts attributable to Varde has been disclosed under ‘Other Financial Liabilities’. Any payment to Varde pursuant to the aforesaid shall be

subject to applicable Laws and applicable Regulatory approvals.
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NOTE: 60

Involvement with unconsolidated structured entities by Aditya Birla ARC Limited (“the Company")

The company has concluded that the Assets Reconstruction trust in which it invests, but do

because -

- The voting rights in the company are not dominant rights in deciding who controls them because the ri

- Trust activities are restricted by trust deed.
- Insufficient equity to permit the structured entity to finance its activities without substantial financial support, and

- The trust have well defined objective to provide recovery activities to investors.

ght relate to administrative tasks only.

The following table describes the type of structured entities that the company does not consolidate but in which it holds an interest-

es not consolidate meet the definition of structured entities

Type of Structures Entity Nature and Purpose Interis;:;lai;)y the As of 31* March 2025 As of 31° March 2024
Investment in Security | SRs issued by [SRs subscribed| SRsissued by SRS.
Receipts Trust by Compan Trust subscribed
y pany by Company
To acquire stressed assefs for
. the purpose of carrying on the |Acting as trustee to the
Asset Reconstruction Trust activity of securitization and Trusts 3,93,78,610 59,06,791 5,70,38,072 85,55,711
assets reconstruction

The following table sets out an analysis of the carrying amount of interest held b

loss in carrying amount of the asset held is as below:

(X in crore)
. As at As at
GRrrying Amaant 31° March 2025 31° March 2024
Investment in SR 37.36 557.85
Advance to Trusts - 13.70
Reimbursement from Trustg - 0.01
Fees Receivable - 9.56

Yy company in unconsolidated structure entities. The maximum exposure to
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NOTE: 61

RELATIONSHIP WITH STRUCK OFF COMPANIES

Nature of Transaction with

Balance Outstanding as

Relationship with

Segment Namgefths Company Struck Off Company on 31st March 2025 |Struck Off Company
NBFC Emirate Fashions Private Limited Outstanding balance (loan given) 0.10 |Customer
NBFC Chennai School Of Ship Management Private Limi| Outstanding balance (loan given) - Customer
NBFC Lakshayprime Marketing Private Limited Outstanding balance (loan given) 0.07 |Customer
NBFC Digikore Studios Limited Outstanding balance (loan given) 0.60 |Customer
Stock and Securities broking Savinan Enterprises Private Limited Commission Charges B Creditor
Stock and Securities broking Orion Media Private Limited AMC Charges - Customer
Stock and Securities broking Doniv Enterprises Private Limited AMC Charges - Customer
Stock and Securities broking Gurukul Commosales Private Limited AMC Charges - Customer
Stock and Securities broking Pusha Steels Limited AMC Charges - Customer
Stock and Securities broking Chaturbhuja Securities Private Limited AMC Charges - Customer
Stock and Securities broking Moneyspider Investment Services Private Limited |Commission Charges - Creditor
Stock and Securities broking Virtual Securities Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking JMM Nine Stocks Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Makshi Multitrading Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Gangour Distributors Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Ceeplast Trading Company Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Indo Austro Corporation Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Ayyappan Capital Services Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Katman Finbiz Services Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Vishal Resources Pvt Ltd AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Aanishka Construction Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Amore Garments Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Balaji Texfab Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Chahat Capital Traders Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Dynamic Infratech Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Jai Dada Steel Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Jbm Dealers Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking K Parikh Agencies Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Kartikey Brokers Private Limited AMC Charges § Customer
Stock and Securities broking Bmp Intrade Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Newgen Financial Services Private Limited AMC Charges § Customer
Stock and Securities broking Silicon Realty Ventures Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Shri Rajaganapathi Developers India Private Limitef AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Sai Kripa Wealth & Assets Limited Commission Charges B Creditor
Stock and Securities broking Finstem Outsourcing Services India Private Limite{ Commission Charges B Creditor
Stock and Securities broking Two Cents3 Worth Investment Consultants LLP  [AMC Charges B Customer

Nature of Transaction with

Balance Outstanding as

Relationship with

Segment Namaigfithe Gompany Struck Off Company on 31st March 2024 Struck Off Company
Stock and Securities broking Savinan Enterprises Private Limited Commission Charges B Creditor
Stock and Securities broking Orion Media Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Doniv Enterprises Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Gurukul Commosales Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Virtual Securities Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Pusha Steels Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Jmm Nine Stocks Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Makshi Multitrading Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Chaturbhuja Securities Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Moneyspider Investment Services Private Limited |Commission Charges B Creditor
Stock and Securities broking Gangour Distributors Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Ceeplast Trading Company Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Indo Austro Corporation Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Ayyappan Capital Services Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Stock and Securities broking Katman Finbiz Services Private Limited AMC Charges B Customer
Housing Finance Maark Vision Architects Private Limited Loan to Customer (Receivable) - Customer
NBFC Emirate Fashions Private Limited Outstanding balance (Loan given) B Customer
NBFC Chennai School of Ship Management Private Limit|Outstanding balance (Loan given) B Customer
NBFC Uttam Consultancy Private Limited Outstanding balance (Loan given) - Customer
Insurance Broker Vintage Motors Private Limited Payable towards distribution fees - Vendor
Insurance Broker The Riders Zone Private Limited Payable towards distribution fees - Vendor
Payable towards distribution fees - Vendor

Insurance Broker

Dimple Motors Private Limited
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NOTE: 62
Disclosure on Revenue Recognition as per Ind AS 115
Reconciliation of Revenue Recognised from Contract Liabilities:

Particulars fsat As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Closing Contract Liability - Advance from Customers 60.11 80.83

The Contract Liability outstanding at the beginning of the year has been recognised as revenue during the year ended 31* March
2025.

NOTE: 63

Other significant notes

1. Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) under Sections
230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013, erstwhile Aditya Birla Finance Limited (“the ABFL"), a then wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, was amalgamated with the Company (“ABCL") with effect from the Appointed Date, i.e., 1st April 2024. The Scheme
became effective upon filing of the certified order of the NCLT with the Registrar of Companies on 1st April 2025.

2. During the year ended 31st March 2024, the Company had sold 1,39,94,199 Equity Shares of Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC
Limited (“ABSLAMC”) representing 4.86% of the issued and paid-up equity share capital of ABSLAMC and recognised gain of ¥
486.43 crore (Net of tax, gain is ¥ 433.00 crore). During the year ended 31st March 2025 , the Company has further sold
3,90,728 Equity Shares of ABSLAMC, representing 0.14% of the issued and paid-up equity share capital of ABSLAMC and has
recognised gain of ¥ 16.13 crore (Net of Tax, Gain is ¥ 14.30 crore).

3. The Company, during the year ended 31st March 2024, issued share capital through Qualified Institutional Placement of
10,00,00,000 shares to Qualified Institutional Buyers and through Preferential Issuance of 7,57,11,688 shares to its Promoter and
a member of Promoter Group entity, both aggregating to ¥ 3,000 crore. In accordance with Ind AS 32, the costs that are
attributable directly to the above transaction have been adjusted against securities premium reserve.

4. Aditya Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited and Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited have paid ¥ 16.80 crore and ¥
20.43 crore respectively in the earlier years, pursuant to the GST query with respect to GST input tax credit on business
promotion expenses. Pending further developments on the same, the mentioned amount has been treated as deposit as at 31st

March 2025.
5. The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020, which subsumes the Provident Fund and the Gratuity

Act and rules there under. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has also released draft rules thereunder on 13th November
2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders. The Group will evaluate the rules, assess the impact, if any, and account
for the same once the rules are notified and become effective.

6. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Group to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on
behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Group has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the
understanding that the Group shall whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on
behalf of the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.
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7. Figures of ¥ 50,000/- or less have been denoted by 'R".
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